
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 
Thursday, June 4, 2015 – 7:00 PM 

 Chairperson Linda Smith 

 Commissioners Ed Newman 

  Gayle Ortiz 

  TJ Welch 
  Susan Westman 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 
 

B. Public Comments 
Short communications from the public concerning matters not on the Agenda.  
All speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their 
name may be accurately recorded in the Minutes. 

 
C. Commission Comments 

 
D. Staff Comments 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Approval of Draft May 7, 2015 Planning Commission meeting minutes. 

 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under “Consent Calendar” are considered by the Planning Commission to be routine and 
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items prior to the time the Planning Commission votes on the action unless members of the public or the 
Planning Commission request specific items to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for 
separate discussion will be considered in the order listed on the Agenda. 

 
A. 2185 41st Avenue      #15-083      APN: 034-192-02 

Sign Permit for a new awning with signs for a dentist’s office in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and thus does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Dr. Mike Raffo 
Representative: Christian Nielsen, filed: 5/11/15 

 
  



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – Thursday, June 4, 2015  2 
  

 

 
B. 3555 Clares Street Suite TT      #15-079      APN: 034-261-59 

Conditional Use Permit for sale of beer and wine at an existing restaurant (Roux Dat) in 
the Community Commercial (CC) zoning district. 
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and thus does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Bob Rivers (Brown Ranch Properties) 
Representative: Chad Glassley, filed: 4/30/15 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Public Hearings are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each item listed as a Public 
Hearing.  The following procedure is as follows:  1) Staff Presentation; 2) Public Discussion; 3) Planning 
Commission Comments; 4) Close public portion of the Hearing; 5) Planning Commission Discussion; and 
6) Decision. 

 
A. 429 Riverview Avenue      #13-179      APN: 035-121-034 

Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and Variance to setback requirements for an 
addition to an existing historic single family home in the R-1 (Single Family) zoning 
district.  
This application requires a Coastal Development permit which is appealable to the 
California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the 
City.  
Environmental Determination: Exempt 
Property Owner: Mike and Cindy Reardon 
Representative: Derek Van Alstine, filed 12/19/13 

 
B. 1601 41st Avenue      #15-067      APN: 034-151-20 

Design Permit and Conditional Use Permit for expansion of nursery, exterior remodel,  
permanent and seasonal outdoor displays, and height exception for a 16-foot high fence 
for Orchard Supply Hardware in the Community Commercial (CC) zoning district.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit.   
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Ow Trusts 
Representative: Nicholas De Torres, filed 4/16/15 

 
C. 809 Bay Avenue      #15-074      APN: 035-021-43 

Design Permit and Conditional Use Permit for a private outdoor seating area and onsite 
sale and consumption of beer and wine for the Nob Hill grocery store located in the CC 
(Community Commercial) Zoning District.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and thus does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Redtree Properties 
Representative: Michael Gates, filed: 4/22/15 

 
6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – Thursday, June 4, 2015  3 
  

 

 

 

 

APPEALS:  The following decisions of the Planning Commission can be appealed to the City Council within the 
(10) calendar days following the date of the Commission action:  Conditional Use Permit, Variance, and Coastal 
Permit.  The decision of the Planning Commission pertaining to an Architectural and Site Review can be appealed 
to the City Council within the (10) working days following the date of the Commission action.  If the tenth day falls 
on a weekend or holiday, the appeal period is extended to the next business day. 
 

All appeals must be in writing, setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is 
considered to be in error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.  An appeal must be 
accompanied by a one hundred forty two dollar ($142.00) filing fee, unless the item involves a Coastal Permit that 
is appealable to the Coastal Commission, in which case there is no fee.  If you challenge a decision of the 
Planning Commission in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the 
public hearing described in this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the 
public hearing. 
 

Notice regarding Planning Commission meetings:  The Planning Commission meets regularly on the 1
st
 

Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The Planning Commission Agenda and complete Agenda Packet are 
available on the Internet at the City's website:  www.cityofcapitola.org.  Agendas are also available at the Capitola 
Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.  Need more 
information?  Contact the Community Development Department at (831) 475-7300. 
 

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Materials that are a public record 
under Government Code § 54957.5(A) and that relate to an agenda item of a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission that are distributed to a majority of all the members of the Planning Commission more than 72 hours 
prior to that meeting shall be available for public inspection at City Hall located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
during normal business hours. 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the Community Development Department at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at (831) 475-7300.  
In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from 
wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 

Televised Meetings:  Planning Commission meetings are cablecast "Live" on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be replayed on the following Monday and Friday at 1:00 p.m. on Charter Channel 
71 and Comcast Channel 25.  Meetings can also be viewed from the City's website:  www.cityofcapitola.org. 
 

 

 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



  
 
Chairperson Smith called the Regular Meeting of the Capitola Planning Commission to order  
at 7 p.m.     
 
1.   ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners:  Ed Newman, Gayle Ortiz, TJ Welch, and Susan Westman and 
Chairperson Linda Smith. 

  
2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda  

 
1. Appointment to Traffic and Parking Commission 

 
Commissioner Welch offered to serve on this Commission. He was appointed by consensus. 
 

B. Public Comment  

 
Resident Richard Lippi spoke to concerns about the proposed skate park at Monterey Park, 
referencing a letter addressed to the commission. 
 
Resident Helen Bryce spoke to open spaces within the City, and specifically questioned the proposed 
skate park at Monterey Park. She asked that the city develop a comprehensive plan for green space 
and parks.  

 
C. Commission Comment   

 
Commissioner Welch noted that Margaritaville, which recently received a sign permit, has reopened 
on the Esplanade and welcomed it to the area. 
 

D. Staff Comments  - None 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. April 2, 2015, Draft Planning Commission Minutes 

 
A motion to approve the April 2, 2015, meeting minutes was made by Commissioner Ortiz and 
seconded by Commissioner Welch.   
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Newman, Ortiz, and Welch and 
Chairperson Smith. No: None. Abstain: Commissioner Westman. 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR   
 
Commissioner Welch recused himself from items 4A and 4B. 
 

A. 4525 Capitola Road      #15-005      APN: 034-124-06 

DRAFT MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, MAY 7, 2015 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

-1-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  2 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Conditional Use Permit for a Sunday School to be located in the CR (Commercial 
Residential) Zoning District.  
This project is located in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit.   
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Calvary Chapel Capitola, filed 1/20/15 
Representative: Sandy Hale 

 
A motion to approve application #15-005 for a Conditional Use Permit was made by 
Commissioner Ortiz and seconded by Commissioner Newman with the following conditions 
and findings:  
 
CONDITIONS 
1.  The project approval consists of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Sunday school at 4525 

Capitola Road.  There is a 728-square-foot home at 4525 Capitola Road that is owned by the 
Calvary Church.  The church has rented the home for habitation in the past.  The current request 
is to convert the home to a Sunday school. 
 

2.  Two onsite parking spaces must be provided for use by school teachers or administrators.  
Families utilizing the Sunday school will park in the adjacent church parking lot.     

 
3.  Prior to occupancy of the site as a Sunday school, the ADA access must be installed in 

compliance with the State and Federal regulations.  Also, fire sprinklers must be installed within 
the structures.  

 
4.  The school shall only be utilized as a Sunday school associated with the adjacent Church.  The 

building has not been approved as a daycare facility or a private school and shall not be utilized 
as such without the proper permits.  The Sunday school shall operate during the same hours as 
the Church.   

 
5.  The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-compliance 

with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 

FINDINGS 
 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance and General Plan. 
Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have reviewed the application and determined that the the Church may be 
granted a conditional use permit for a Sunday school within the CR Zoning District. The use meets 
the intent and purpose of the Commercial Residential Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have 
been included to ensure that the use is consistent with the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   

Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have reviewed the proposed use and determined that the use complies with 
the applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and maintain the character and integrity of this 
area of the City. This area of the City is a mix of commercial and residential uses.  Conditions of 
approval have been included to carry out these objectives. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental 

Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 

-2-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  3 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

The proposed project involves the conversion of a single-family home to a Sunday school adjacent to 
an existing Church.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by 
either the Community Development Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Newman, Ortiz, and Westman 
and Chairperson Smith. No: None. Abstain: None.  
 

B. 208 Hollister      #15-031      APN: 036-124-17 

Design Permit for the demolition of an existing single-story residence and construction 
of a new two-story residence located in the R-1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning 
District.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit, which is 
appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are 
exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Brian Sherer 
Representative: Derek Van Alstine, filed: 2/25/15 

 
Chairperson Smith asked to add a condition requiring the fire pit to be gas-burning. Commissioner 
Westman asked to prohibit any future second-floor decks. 
 
A motion to approve application #15-031 for a Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit 
was made by Commissioner Ortiz and seconded by Commissioner Newman with the following 
conditions and findings:  
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1. The project approval consists of construction of a new 2,386-square-foot home at 208 Hollister 
Ave. The maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 5,680 square foot property is 51% (2,386 square 
feet).  The total FAR of the project is 50.9% with a total of 2,386 square feet, compliant with 
the maximum FAR within the zone. The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final 
plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on May 7, 2015, except as 
modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent 
with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and site improvements 
shall be completed according to the approved plans. 

 
3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the building plans must show that the existing 

overhead utility lines will be underground to the nearest utility pole.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 
full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

5. At the time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail Storm Water 
Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP) shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet 
into the construction plans.  All construction shall be done in accordance with Public Works 
Standard Detail Storm Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP).   

 
6. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested 

and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes 

-3-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  4 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require Planning Commission 
approval. Second-story decks and porches require Planning Commission approval.   
 

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and approved by 
the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect the Planning 
Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species and details of 
irrigation systems.   

 
8. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit # 15-031 shall be 

paid in full. 
 

9. The fire pit in the side yard is approved as a gas fireplace. A wood-burning fire pit is not 
permitted. Changes to the fire pit require approval from the Community Development 
Department, which can be forwarded to the Planning Commission for review.  
 

10. Prior to issuance of a building permit, affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as required 
to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing Ordinance.   

 
11. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 

approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel Creek 
Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   

 
12. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion control 

plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans shall be in 
compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16 Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

13. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater management 
plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements all applicable Post 
Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard Details, including all standards 
relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

14. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading official to 
verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  

 
15. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 

the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 

 
16. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 

except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise 
shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty a.m. on weekdays. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work 
between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. 
§9.12.010B 
 

17. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or sidewalk 
shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction of the Public 
Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or sidewalk shall meet 
current Accessibility Standards. 

    
18. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall 

be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.  Upon evidence 

-4-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  5 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions, the 
applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director or shall file an application for a permit amendment for Planning Commission 
consideration. Failure to remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in permit 
revocation. 
 

19. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

20. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the applicant 
to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site on which 
the approval was granted. 
 

21. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be placed out 
of public view on non-collection days.  

 
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 
Commission have all reviewed the addition to the single family home. The project conforms to the 
development standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) zoning district. Conditions of 
approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan 
and Local Coastal Plan.  

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 
Commission have all reviewed the project. The project conforms to the development standards of 
the R-1 (Single Family Residence) zoning district. Conditions of approval have been included to 
ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity of the neighborhood. The proposed 
addition to the single-family residence compliments the existing single-family homes in the 
neighborhood.  
 

COASTAL FINDINGS 
 

D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific 
written factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development 
conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

 The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan (LCP). 
The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 
access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), 
to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and 
decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an 
access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how 
the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the 

-5-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  6 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the 
individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other current 
projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the 
regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity 
of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative build-out. 
Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal access and 
recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical 
characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland 
recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the 
importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities;  
 

 The proposed project is located at 208 Hollister Avenue.  The home is not located in an 
area with coastal access. The home will not have an effect on public trails or beach 
access. 
 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 
including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 
shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season 
when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description and 
analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative 
effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of 
the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability of 
the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. 
Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public 
tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 
 

 The proposed project is located along Hollister Avenue.  No portion of the project is located 
along the shoreline or beach.   

 
(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 
public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) 
who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the 
nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the 
record owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner 
to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 

-6-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  7 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

 There is no history of public use on the subject lot.     

(D)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the 
development which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

 The proposed project is located on private property on Hollister Avenue.  The project 
will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, public 
recreation areas, or views to the shoreline.   

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other 
aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the 
public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any 
alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any 
diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be 
attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development.    
 

 The proposed project is located on private property that will not impact access and 
recreation. The project does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands 
committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of 
public use areas. 
 

 (D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 
one of the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, bluff 
top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, the 
agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis for 
the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, intensity, 
hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile coastal 
resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area of 
public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

 The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply. 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character 
of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

-7-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  8 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

a.  Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 The project is located in a residential area without sensitive habitat areas.   

  b.  Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 The project is located on a flat lot. 

 c.  Recreational needs of the public; 

 The project does not impact recreational needs of the public.  

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the project 
back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is the 
mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as part of a 
management plan to regulate public use. 

 
(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 
appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, 
required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 
 

 No legal documents to ensure public access rights are required for the proposed 
project. 

  
(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  

 
 SEC. 30222 
 The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational facilities 

designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall have priority over 
private residential, general industrial, or general commercial development, but not over 
agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

 

 The project involves a single-family home on a residential lot of record.  

  

 SEC. 30223 
 Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for such 

uses, where feasible. 
 

 The project involves a single-family home on a residential lot of record.   

-8-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  9 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

c)  Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed areas 
shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of attraction for 
visitors. 

 

 The project involves a single-family home on a residential lot of record.   

 (D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 
public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or 
traffic improvements; 
 

 The project involves the construction of a single family home.  The project complies 
with applicable standards and requirements for provision for parking, pedestrian 
access, alternate means of transportation and/or traffic improvements.   

 
(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 
city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 

 The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by the 
Municipal Code.   

  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views 
to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

 The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views.  The project 
will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline.   

 
(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 

 The project is located on a legal lot of record with available water and sewer services.   

 
(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 

 The project is located within close proximity of the Capitola fire department.  Water is 
available at the location.   

  (D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 

 The project is for a single family home.  The GHG emissions for the project are projected 
at less than significant impact. All water fixtures must comply with the low-flow standards of 
the soquel creek water district. 

 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 

 The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 
 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 

 The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes.   
 

-9-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  10 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies;  
 

 Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with established policies. 
 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 

 The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where Monarch 
Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

 Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with applicable erosion 
control measures. 

 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 
 

 Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professionals for this 
project.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project applicant shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the most recent version of the California 
Building Standards Code.   
 

(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 
the project design; 

 

 Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project complies with geological, 
flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for and will be mitigated in the project design. 

   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  

 The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 
  

(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 
 

 This use is an allowed use consistent with the Single-Family Residential zoning 
district.  

(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project review procedures; 

 

 The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements and 
project development review and development procedures. 

 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 
 The project site is located within the area of the Capitola parking permit program. 
 

-10-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  11 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Newman, Ortiz, and Westman 
and Chairperson Smith. No: None. Abstain: None.  
 

C. 110 Stockton Ave      #15-063      APN: 035-23-114 

Conditional Use Permit for a take-out restaurant and bakery to be located in the CV 
(Central Village) Zoning District. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit, which is 
appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are 
exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: SouthStar Property Management 
Representative: Helmut J. Fritz, filed: 4/7/15 

 
Commissioner Ortiz asked to pull this item to discuss hours of operation. It was heard at the start of 
the public hearing agenda.   
 
Planner Cattan presented the staff report and noted a revised interior plan. She explained the six-seat 
limit meets the definition of a to-go restaurant and does not increase parking intensity from the 
previous use. 
 
Commissioner Newman raised the possibility of adding a condition within this and other village 
conditional use permit applications to adhere to all sign regulations. His thought is that violations such 
as sandwich boards would endanger the permit itself and give staff leverage for enforcement. Director 
Grunow responded that he does not believe conditions requiring applicants to adhere to the municipal 
code add to ability to police infractions.  Commissioner Newman also noted that the standard 
condition “The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-
compliance” does not carry sufficient weight and suggested replacing it with “the permit may be 
revoked.” Staff will bring forward options in the future. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz supports the project but asked that hours of operation be included in conditions of 
approval.  She also suggested they should be extended to allow the business to stay open until 8 p.m. 
Her intent is for the neighborhood to be clear about what use can be expected at various times. 
Commissioner Westman agreed, but suggested a 9 p.m. limit. Commissioner Ortiz concurred.   
 
Commissioner Westman acknowledged frustration with the six-seat provision and feels it is often is 
not followed once a location opens. Staff agreed that the seating limit can impact businesses that 
would otherwise like to locate in the Village, but it is the current option since any intensity of use is not 
allowed under the local coastal program without providing new parking. 
 
Commissioner Smith asked if the CUP is granted, what type of use needs to come back for a new 
permit? Staff explained a bakery is principally permitted use and the answer would depend on if it was 
another type of restaurant. 
 
Applicant Helmut Fritz thanked the commission for the offer to expand hours. He described the 
product type as small, European-style fare. Most cooking of savory items plus much of the baking will 
be done in his Davenport restaurant and noted health department requirements would change 
cooking equipment types for cooking meat onsite. There is a delivery spot in back so it will not impact 
traffic and he will not need large trucks.  
 
Commissioner Newman noted many eating establishments have residents above them. The landlord 
can control issues between tenants and government may not need to regulate by conditioning the 
hours. 
 

-11-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  12 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Commissioner Westman feels the reason for a CUP is to provide additional public awareness.  
 
Commissioner Welch also prefers to limit regulation.  
 
A motion to approve application #15-063 for a Conditional Use Permit and Coastal 
Development Permit was made by Commissioner Newman and seconded by Commissioner 
Welch with the following conditions and findings:  
 
CONDITIONS 

 
1.  The project approval consists of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a bakery/to-go restaurant within 

the existing commercial space located at 110 Stockton Avenue.  No modifications to the exterior of 
the building are proposed.      

 
2.  Seating is limited to a maximum of 6 seats. 

 
3.  There shall be no amplified audible entertainment inside the business that can be audible outside 

of the business.  
 
4.  The applicant is responsible for maintaining the area directly in front of the business free from litter 

and/or graffiti. 
 
5.  Trash shall not be emptied later than 8 pm.  Trash collection times must be consistent with hours 

established for the Village.  
 
6.  No outdoor display of good, outdoor seating, or outdoor dining is allowed within this permit.   

 
7.  The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-compliance 

with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 

FINDINGS 
 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance and General Plan. 
Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site review committee, and the 
Planning Commission have reviewed the application and determined that the business owner may 
be granted a conditional use permit for a bakery/to-go restaurant within the CV Zoning District. 
The use meets the intent and purpose of the Central Village Zoning District.  Conditions of 
approval have been included to ensure that the use is consistent with the Zoning Ordinance and 
General Plan. 

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   

Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site review committee, and the 
Planning Commission have reviewed the proposed use and determined that the use complies with 
the applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and maintain the character and integrity of this 
area of the City. This area of the City is a mix of commercial and residential uses.  Conditions of 
approval have been included to carry out these objectives. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental 

Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 

-12-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  13 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

The proposed project involves a bakery/to-go restaurant.  No adverse environmental impacts were 
discovered during project review by the Community Development Department Staff, the 
Architectural and Site review committee, or the Planning Commission. 
 

COASTAL FINDINGS 
 

D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific 
written factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development 
conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

 The proposed intersection improvements conform to the City’s certified Local Coastal 
Plan (LCP). The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as 
follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 
access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), 
to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and 
decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an 
access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how 
the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the 
dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the 
individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other current 
projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the 
regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity 
of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative build-out. 
Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal access and 
recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical 
characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland 
recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the 
importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities;  
 

 The proposed tenant change is in the Capitola Village.  The proposed tenant change will 
not impact pedestrian safety to coastal access.  The project will not have an impact on 
demand for access or recreation. 
 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 
including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 
shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season 
when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 

-13-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  14 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description and 
analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative 
effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of 
the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability of 
the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. 
Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public 
tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 
 

 No portion of the project is located along the shoreline or beach.   
 

(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 
public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) 
who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the 
nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the 
record owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner 
to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

 There are no adverse impacts on public use.   

(E)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the 
development which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

 The project will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or views to the shoreline.   

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other 
aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the 
public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any 
alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any 
diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be 
attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development.    
 

 The proposed project will not impact access and recreation.  The project does not 
diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation nor alter 
the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas. 
 

 (D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 
one of the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

-14-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  15 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, bluff 
top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, the 
agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis for 
the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, intensity, 
hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile coastal 
resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area of 
public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

 The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character 
of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 The project is located within an existing commercial building that does not have 
sensitive habitat areas.   

 b.Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 The project is located on a flat area of land.   

 c. Recreational needs of the public; 

 The project does not impact recreational needs of the public.  

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the project 
back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is the 
mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as part of a 
management plan to regulate public use. 

(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 
appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, 
required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 
 

 No legal documents to ensure public access rights  are required for the proposed 
project 

  

-15-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  16 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  
 
 SEC. 30222 
 The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational facilities 

designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall have priority over 
private residential, general industrial, or general commercial development, but not over 
agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

 

 The project involves a tenant modification within an existing commercial building.   

 

       SEC. 30223 
 Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for such 

uses, where feasible. 
 

 The project involves a tenant modification within an existing commercial building.  

  

c)  Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed areas 
shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of attraction for 
visitors. 

 

 The project involves a tenant modification within an existing commercial building.  

 

 (D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 
public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or 
traffic improvements; 
 

 The project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision for 
parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or traffic 
improvements.   

(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 
city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 

 The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by the 
Municipal Code.   

  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views 
to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

 The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views.  The project 
will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline.   

 
(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 

 The location has existing water and sewer services.   

 
(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 

-16-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  17 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 The project is located within close proximity of the Central Fire District.  Water is available 
at the location.   

 (D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 

 The project complies with water and energy conservation standards. 

 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 

 The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 
 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 

 The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes.   
 
(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies;  
 

 The project involves a tenant modification within an existing commercial building.   
 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 
 

 The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where Monarch 
Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

 The project involves a tenant modification within an existing commercial building. 
 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 
 

 The project involves a tenant modification within an existing commercial building..     
 

(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 
the project design; 

 
The project involves a tenant modification within an existing commercial building. 
   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  

 The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 
  

(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 
 

 This use is a conditional use consistent with the Central Village zoning district.  

-17-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  18 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project review procedures; 

 

 The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements and 
project development review and development procedures. 

 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 

 Parking demand is not increased within the proposal. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Newman, Ortiz, Welch and 
Westman and Chairperson Smith. No: None. Abstain: None.  
 
5.     PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. 408 Monterey Ave      #15-052      APN: 036-092-04 

Design Permit for the demolition of an existing single-story residence and construction 
of a new two-story home in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District, and a 
variance request to exclude first-story decks within Floor Area calculation. 
This project is located in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit, 
which is not appealable to the California Coastal Commission.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Arthur Lin 
Representative: Dennis Norton, filed: 3/24/15 

 
Assistant Planner Ryan Safty presented the staff report. He explained the variance request to exclude 
decks above 30 inches, without which the project exceeds the floor area limit, and provided 
illustrations of the sloping lot. He highlighted concerns for privacy with adjoining neighbors identified 
during Arch and Site Commission review and noted the applicant offered to make the bathroom 
window opaque. 
 
Chairperson Smith asked how much the fence height extends above the deck line. The fence height 
would be from ground level and therefore its height relative to the deck will vary. The deck will have its 
own railings as required by building code for safety. 
 
Commissioner Westman confirmed there is a 10-foot easement from Monterey Avenue. She felt 
comfortable with a variance given the slope of the lot and setting of the home. Commissioner Ortiz felt 
decking is an appropriate choice for yards given current landscaping and water challenges. Other 
commissioners concurred. 
 
A motion to approve application #15-052 for a Design Permit, Coastal Development Permit and 
Variance was made by Commissioner Ortiz and seconded by Commissioner Westman with the 
following conditions and findings:  
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1. The project approval consists of construction of a new 2,151 square-foot residence and 
approval of a variance to exclude first story decks within the Floor Area calculation. The 
maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 4,000 square foot property is 54% (2,160 square feet).  The 
total FAR of the project is 53.7% with a total of 2,151 square feet, compliant with the maximum 
FAR within the zone. The proposed project and variance request is approved as indicated on 
the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on May 7, 2015, except as 
modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 

-18-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  19 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 
2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 

modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent 
with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and site improvements 
shall be completed according to the approved plans 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the building plans must show that the existing 
overhead utility lines will be underground to the nearest utility pole.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 
full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  

 
5. At the time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail Storm Water 

Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP) shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet 
into the construction plans.  All construction shall be done in accordance with Public Works 
Standard Detail Storm Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP).   

 
6. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested 

and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes 
to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require Planning Commission 
approval.   
 

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and approved by 
the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect the Planning 
Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species and details of 
irrigation systems.   

 
8. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit # 15-052 shall be 

paid in full. 
 

9. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as required to 
assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing Ordinance.   

 
10. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 

approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel Creek 
Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   

 
11. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion control 

plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans shall be in 
compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16 Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

12. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater management 
plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements all applicable Post 
Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard Details, including all standards 
relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

13. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading official to 
verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  

 
14. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 

the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 

-19-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  20 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 
15. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 

except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise 
shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty a.m. on weekdays. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work 
between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. 
§9.12.010B 
 

16. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or sidewalk 
shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction of the Public 
Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or sidewalk shall meet 
current Accessibility Standards. 

 
17. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall 

be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.  Upon evidence 
of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions, the 
applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director or shall file an application for a permit amendment for Planning Commission 
consideration. Failure to remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in permit 
revocation. 
 

18. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

19. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the applicant 
to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site on which 
the approval was granted. 
 

20. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be placed out 
of public view on non-collection days.  

 
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 
Commission have all reviewed the single family home. The project conforms to the development 
standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) zoning district with a variance to exclude first-
story decks from the Floor Area calculation due to the existing slope of the subject property. 
Conditions of approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, 
General Plan and Local Coastal Plan.  

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 
Commission have all reviewed the project. The project conforms to the development standards of 
the R-1 (Single Family Residence) zoning district. Conditions of approval have been included to 
ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity of the neighborhood. The proposed 
new single-family residence compliments the existing single-family homes in the neighborhood.  

 

-20-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  21 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15303-A of the California    
Environmental  Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code 
of Regulations. 
This project involves the construction of a new single-family residence in the R-1 (Single-Family 
Residential) Zoning District. Section 15303-A of the CEQA Guidelines exempts the construction of 
a new home in a residential zone. 

 
COASTAL FINDINGS 
 

D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific 
written factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development 
conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

 The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan (LCP). 
The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 
access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), 
to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and 
decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an 
access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how 
the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the 
dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the 
individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other current 
projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the 
regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity 
of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative build-out. 
Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal access and 
recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical 
characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland 
recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the 
importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities;  
 

 The proposed project is located at 408 Monterey Avenue.  The home is not located in an 
area with coastal access. The home will not have an effect on public trails or beach 
access. 
 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 
including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 
shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season 
when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 

-21-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  22 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description and 
analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative 
effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of 
the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability of 
the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. 
Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public 
tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 
 

 The proposed project is located along Monterey Avenue.  No portion of the project is 
located along the shoreline or beach.   

 
(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 
public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) 
who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the 
nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the 
record owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner 
to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

 There is not history of public use on the subject lot.     

(F)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the 
development which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

 The proposed project is located on private property on Monterey Avenue.  The project 
will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, public 
recreation areas, or views to the shoreline.   

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other 
aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the 
public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any 
alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any 
diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be 
attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development.    
 

 The proposed project is located on private property that will not impact access and 
recreation. The project does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands 
committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of 
public use areas. 
 

-22-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  23 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 (D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 
one of the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, bluff 
top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, the 
agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis for 
the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, intensity, 
hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile coastal 
resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area of 
public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

 The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply. 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character 
of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 The project is located in a residential area without sensitive habitat areas.   

  b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 The project is located on a slightly sloping lot. The lot is accessed on the opposite side 
of the slope. The property is not near the coast.   

 c. Recreational needs of the public; 

 The project does not impact recreational needs of the public.  

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the project 
back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is the 
mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as part of a 
management plan to regulate public use. 

(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 
appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, 
required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 

-23-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  24 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 

 No legal documents to ensure public access rights are required for the proposed 
project. 

  
(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  

 
 SEC. 30222 
 The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational facilities 

designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall have priority over 
private residential, general industrial, or general commercial development, but not over 
agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

 

 The project involves a single family home on a residential lot of record.     

 

 SEC. 30223 
 Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for such 

uses, where feasible. 
 

 The project involves a single family home on a residential lot of record.   

 

c)  Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed areas 
shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of attraction for 
visitors. 

 

 The project involves a single family home on a residential lot of record.   

 

 (D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 
public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or 
traffic improvements; 
 

 The project involves the construction of a single family home.  The project complies 
with applicable standards and requirements for provision for parking, pedestrian 
access, alternate means of transportation and/or traffic improvements.   

 
(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 
city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 

 The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by the 
Municipal Code.   

  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views 
to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

 The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views.  The project 
will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline.   

 
(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 

-24-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  25 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 

 The project is located on a legal lot of record with available water and sewer services.   

 
(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 

 The project is located within close proximity of the Capitola fire department.  Water is 
available at the location.   

  (D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 

 The project is for a single family home.  The GHG emissions for the project are projected 
at less than significant impact. All water fixtures must comply with the low-flow standards of 
the soquel creek water district. 

 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 

 The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 
 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 

 The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes.   
 
(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies;  
 

 Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with established policies. 
 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 

 The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where Monarch 
Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

 Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with applicable erosion 
control measures. 

 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 
 

 Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professionals for this 
project.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project applicant shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the most recent version of the California 
Building Standards Code.   
 

(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 
the project design; 

 

-25-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  26 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project complies with geological, 
flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for and will be mitigated in the project design. 

   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  

 The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 
  

(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 
 

 This use is an allowed use consistent with the Single-Family Residential zoning district.  

 

(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project review procedures; 

 

 The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements and 
project development review and development procedures. 

 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 

 The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking permit program. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Newman, Ortiz, Welch, and 
Westman and Chairperson Smith. No: None. Abstain: None. 
 

B. Draft Climate Action Plan - Authorization to Initiate Public Review 
 
Director Grunow provided an overview of the purpose and goals of the Climate Action Plan. Much of 
the focus is on reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Transportation is the largest source of emissions, 
then energy use, according to 2010 baseline estimates from the Association of Monterey Bay Area 
Government. The City needs to achieve a 4.9 percent reduction by 2020, and is currently on target. 
Longer-term goals for 2035 and 2050 will be more difficult to reach.  
 
Capitola’s plan focuses primarily on voluntary, incentive-based measures. The City can have little 
impact on transportation without state and regional support, but can support new energy options and 
efficiencies. Incentives to change behaviors are a major portion of the plan. Funding for sidewalks and 
alternate transportation would impact future capital improvement plan budgets. 
 
If the commission and council approve release, the 30-day review will begin in July with adoption 
expected in the fall.  
 
Resident Richard Lippi asked if wood-burning appliances have an impact and if they are addressed. 
Director Grunow said there is cumulative impact and the general plan discourages wood-burning 
fireplaces.  
 
Mr. Lippi also noted he is working with the Police Department to reduce through-traffic at village 
events, thereby reducing emissions from idling vehicles, and to offer more efficient parking options. 
 
Commissioner Newman noted the plan offers benefits beyond climate impacts and praised the report.  
 
Commissioner Westman asked for a larger, darker font to reduce the lighting required to read it. 
 

-26-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 7, 2015  27 
 

P:\CURRENT PLANNING\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2015\Draft Minutes\5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Chairperson Smith supports flexibility in the implementation plan. 
 
The commission consensus was to recommend release.  
 
6.    DIRECTOR’S REPORT  
 
Director Grunow reported that the Monterey Avenue skate park application has been submitted and 
deemed complete. The next steps are hiring an EIR consultant for noise, traffic, and parking. An EIR 
scoping meeting and architecture and site review will occur earlier on in process.  
 
Staff will attend the May Traffic and Parking Commission to get input on zoning changes to parking 
ahead of commission discussion for the update. 
 
Based on progress from the joint meeting for the zoning code update, the special July meetings are 
currently open. The topic schedules will be updated as hearings occur. June 15 may be the 
community discussion of non-conforming residential structures and noticed to those areas.  
 
Commissioner Ortiz asked if future maintenance costs for the Monterey Avenue skate park would be 
included in the studies. Director Grunow replied those are not an issue for the EIR, but public works 
will address that during its review. 
 
7.  COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS  
 
Commissioner Welch will not be able to attend next week’s traffic and parking meeting. 
 
8.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chairperson Smith adjourned the meeting at 8:24 p.m. to a special meeting of the Planning 
Commission to be held on Monday, May 18, 2015, at 6 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

 
Approved by the Planning Commission on June 4, 2015. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Linda Fridy, Minutes Clerk 

 

-27-

Item #: 3.A. 5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-28-



 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JUNE 4, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 2185 41st Ave   #15-083  APN: 034-192-02 

Sign Permit for a new awning with signs for a dentist office in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and thus does not require a Coastal 
Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Dr. Mike Raffo 
Representative: Christian Nielsen, filed: 5/11/15 

  
APPLICANTS’ PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing two new wall signs and a new awning for the front of a new dentist 
office located at 2185 41st Avenue in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. The new 

awning signs require Planning Commission approval (§17.57.020). 

 
DISCUSSION 
The new dentist office is moving into the old 2,062 square foot Liberty Tax office space located 
on the northern edge of 41st Avenue, just south of the Gross Road intersection. The office 
building fronts 41st Avenue; the unit is currently undergoing a remodel. The applicant has a 
building permit for a full remodel of the exterior and interior of the unit. They will not be moving 
any doors or windows and they are not adding square footage, thus they did not need Planning 
Commission approval for those changes. The new dentist office is less than 3,000 square feet 

and is principally permitted in the CC district (§17.27.040).  

 
The applicant is proposing to build a new aluminum awning over the front (east) of the building 
that will connect with the existing parapet on the south-eastern corner.  The existing parapet 
overhangs 3’-8” over the southern edge and front of the building. There will be 9’-6” of clearing 
beneath the new awning (Attachment A). 
 
The two new wall signs will be backlit and attached to the new aluminum awning, on the south 
and front (east) elevations. The 9.5 square foot wall signs are backlit and will be located on 
adjacent corners of the building (Attachment A). Under the south elevation wall sign is a 
proposed 2.7 square foot directional parking sign, which will have an 8’-9” clearing. The 

Municipal Code requires a minimum of eight feet clearance below signs. (§17.57.070)  

 
The Capitola Municipal Code restricts businesses from having more than one wall sign unless 
they are located adjacent to two streets, a part of a master sign program, or if one of the signs is 

-29-

Item #: 4.A. 2185 41st Ave Staff Report.pdf



a center identification or directory sign (§17.57.070). The applicant is applying for an exception 

to this code section. The applicant is proposing two wall signs so that the office is visible from 
both direction of traffic on 41st Avenue. The front wall sign is attached to the slanted awning, 
making it visible for southbound traffic on 41st Avenue. The second sign is on the southeastern 
corner facing south, making it visible for northbound traffic on 41st.  
 
The applicant is also proposing window screening along the entire building. The east, north, and 
south facades are proposed to be screened 71% - 78% by glazing and vinyl coverage to provide 
privacy for patients.  
 
The rear parking lot contains nine parking spaces (the Municipal Code requires seven) and will 
be illuminated with a new wall-mounted light on the back of the building. Condition #4 has been 
included to ensure that any glare from the light-source is directed away from residences and 
41st Avenue.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve application #15-083, subject to the 
following conditions and findings: 
 
CONDITIONS 

1. The project approval consists of two wall signs and an awning located over the entrance 
of 2185 41st Ave. The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on June 4, 2015, except as 
modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. The applicant was granted a sign permit to construct a new sign awning over the 
entrance of 2185 41st Ave.  In any case where the conditions of the permit have not been 
or are not complied with, the community development director shall give notice thereof to 
the permittee, which notice shall specify a reasonable period of time within which to 
perform said conditions and correct said violation. If the permittee fails to comply with 
said conditions, or to correct said violation, within the time allowed, notice shall be given 
to the permittee of intention to revoke such permit at a hearing to be held not less than 
thirty calendar days after the date of such notice. Following such hearing and, if good 
cause exists therefore, the Planning Commission may revoke the permit.  

 
3. Prior to installation, a building permit shall be secured for the new sign authorized by this 

permit. Final building plans shall be consistent with the plans approved by the Planning 
Commission.   
 

4. Parking lot lights shall be pointed downward and use LED energy efficient bulbs and 
designed to prevent light and glare from spilling onto neighboring properties or public 
rights-of-way.  

 
5. The two new wall signs are backlit.  The backlighting shall not shine onto adjacent 

properties or distract motorists or pedestrians.    
 

6. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 
 

-30-

Item #: 4.A. 2185 41st Ave Staff Report.pdf



7. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 
requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes shall require Planning Commission approval.   
 

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #15-083 
shall be paid in full.   
 

9. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

10. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 

 
 
FINDINGS 
 

A. The signage, as designed and conditioned, will maintain the character and 
aesthetic integrity of the subject property and the surrounding area.  
The backlit signs have a simple design that will complement the aesthetics of the 
Community Commercial zoning district along 41st Avenue.  

 
B. The signage, as designed and conditioned, reasonable prevent and reduce the 

sort of visual blight which results when signs are designed without due regard to 
effect on their surroundings.   
The signs are modern and clean and will enhance the exterior appearance of the office 
space.   

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Sign Plan 
 

 
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Safty  

Assistant Planner                    
 

-31-

Item #: 4.A. 2185 41st Ave Staff Report.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-32-



D
A

TE

Jo
b:

D
at

e:
Sc

al
e:

D
ra

w
n:RE

V
IS

IO
N

S

C
he

ck
ed

:
20

14
-0

48

M
M

C
N

BY

A
1 5/

8/
15

Pl
ot

te
d 

O
n:

5/
11

/1
5

A
S

 N
O

TE
D

SITE PLAN / PROJECT DATA

RAFFO DENTAL OFFICES THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT SHALL NOT BE
CONSTRUED AS A GUARANTEE THAT ALL CODE
REQUIREMENTS ARE REFLECTED IN THE DOCUMENT.
THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR FOR THE PROJECT
SHALL BE ULTIMATELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING
THAT THE FINISHED PRODUCT COMPLIES WITH ALL
REGULATIONS, LAWS AND CODE REQUIREMENTS.

IF
 T

H
E 

A
BO

V
E 

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

 D
O

ES
 N

O
T

M
EA

SU
RE

 
O

N
E 

IN
C

H
 

(1
")

 
EX

A
C

TL
Y,

TH
IS

 
D

RA
W

IN
G

 
W

IL
L 

H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

EN
LA

RG
ED

 O
R 

RE
D

U
C

ED
, 

A
FF

EC
TI

N
G

A
LL

 L
A

BE
LE

D
 S

C
A

LE
S.

1"
 A

C
TU

A
L

JOB NAME:

ADRESS:

CITY, STATE:
APN:

Michael J Raffo, DMD
2185 41st Ave.
Capitola, CA 95010
034-192-02

CLIENT:

LI

R

C

C

E

HI
N

T
SE

EC

D

T

STAT

A

E
O

F
C

A
LI

FO

RNIA

C
H

R
IS

TI
A

N
 M

.
N

IE
LS

E
N

N
o.

 C
-3

18
88

R
E

N
E

W
A

L 
D

AT
E

A
U

G
U

S
T 

31
, 2

01
5

A
PN

:
ZO

N
IN

G
 D

IS
TR

IC
T:

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 A

RE
A

:
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TI

O
N

 T
YP

E:
O

C
C

U
PA

N
C

Y 
G

RO
U

P:
SI

TE
 S

LO
PE

:

03
4-

19
2-

02
C

C
20

62
 S

F
V

-B
B <1

0%

(N
) 

A
W

N
IN

G
 A

N
D

 S
IG

N
A

G
E,

 (
N

) 
V

IN
YL

 S
H

A
D

IN
G

SI
TE

C
A

BR
IL

LO
 H

IG
H

W
AY

 /
 H

W
Y 

1

41ST AVE

C
LA

RE
S 

ST

G
RO

SS
 R

D

C
LA

RE
S 

ST

D
EA

N
ES

 L
N

40TH AVE

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

E

12'-0"MIN

59'-6"

12
7'

-7
"

24
'-0

" 
M

IN

3'-8"

10
'-9

"
3'

-8
"

34'-10"

(N
) 

A
LU

M
A

W
N

IN
G

(N
) 

SI
G

N
A

G
E

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

(N
) 

SI
G

N
A

G
E

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

C C S S S S

S

H
CS

PA
RK

IN
G

 S
PA

C
ES

(6
) 

S 
 @

 9
'x

18
'

(2
) 

C
  @

 8
'x

16
'

(1
) 

H
C

  @
 9

'x
18

' (
W

/ 
8'

 A
C

C
ES

S
A

IS
LE

)

66
'-3

"

31'-2"

20
62

 S
F

O
U

TL
IN

E 
O

F 
(E

) 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

(E
) 

PA
RA

PE
T 

A
T 

SI
D

ES

(E
) 

RO
O

F 
TO

P 
M

EC
H

A
N

IC
A

L
PA

D
 A

N
D

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

(E
) 

 P
A

RA
PE

T

(E
) 

A
LU

M
A

W
N

IN
G

(N
) 

W
A

LL
 M

O
U

N
TE

D
LI

G
H

TI
N

G
 F

O
R 

PA
RK

IN
G

LO
T

(E
) 

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L 

PA
N

EL

1.
01

   
   

 T
H

E 
IS

SU
A

N
C

E 
O

F 
A

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
BE

C
O

N
ST

RU
ED

 A
S 

A
 G

U
A

RA
N

TE
E 

TH
A

T 
A

LL
 C

O
D

E 
RE

Q
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

 A
RE

RE
FL

EC
TE

D
 IN

 T
H

E 
D

O
C

U
M

EN
TS

.  
TH

E 
G

EN
ER

A
L 

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R 

FO
R

TH
E 

PR
O

JE
C

T 
SH

A
LL

 B
E 

U
LT

IM
A

TE
LY

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R 
IN

SU
RI

N
G

 T
H

A
T

TH
E 

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 P

RO
D

U
C

T 
C

O
M

PL
IE

S 
W

IT
H

 A
LL

 R
EG

U
LA

TI
O

N
S,

 L
A

W
S

A
N

D
 C

O
D

E 
RE

Q
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

.

1.
02

   
   

 T
H

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

A
RE

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
G

EN
ER

A
L 

C
O

N
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
PU

PO
SE

S 
O

N
LY

.  
TH

EY
 A

RE
 N

O
T 

EX
H

A
U

ST
IV

EL
Y 

D
ET

A
IL

ED
 N

O
R 

FU
LL

Y
SP

EC
IF

IE
D

.  
IT

 IS
 T

H
E 

RE
SP

O
N

SI
BI

LI
TY

 O
F 

TH
E 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R 

TO
SE

LE
C

T,
 V

ER
IF

Y,
 R

ES
O

LV
E 

A
N

D
 IN

ST
A

LL
 A

LL
 M

A
TE

RI
A

LS
 A

N
D

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T.

1.
03

   
   

 T
H

ER
E 

W
IL

L 
BE

 N
O

 O
BS

ER
VA

TI
O

N
 B

Y 
A

N
 A

RC
H

IT
EC

T 
D

U
RI

N
G

C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TI
O

N
.  

TH
E 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R 

IS
 S

O
LE

LY
 R

ES
PO

N
SI

BL
E 

FO
R 

TH
E

Q
U

A
LI

TY
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
A

N
D

 C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TI
O

N
 S

TA
N

D
A

RD
S 

FO
R 

TH
E

PR
O

JE
C

T.

1.
04

   
   

 A
LL

 C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TI
O

N
 W

O
RK

 (
A

RC
H

IT
EC

TU
RA

L,
 M

EC
H

A
N

IC
A

L,
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L,
 E

TC
.)

 S
H

A
LL

 M
EE

T 
O

R 
EX

C
EE

D
 T

H
E 

LA
TE

ST
 E

D
IT

IO
N

 O
F

C
O

D
ES

 A
D

O
PT

ED
 B

Y 
TH

E 
LO

C
A

L 
G

O
V

ER
N

IN
G

 A
G

EN
C

IE
S.

  T
H

ES
E

SH
A

LL
 IN

C
LU

D
E:

20
13

 C
A

LI
FO

RN
IA

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

D
E 

(2
01

2 
IB

C
)

20
13

 C
A

LI
FO

RN
IA

 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
A

L 
C

O
D

E 
- T

IT
LE

 2
4 

(2
01

2 
IR

C
)

20
13

 C
A

LI
FO

RN
IA

 F
IR

E 
C

O
D

E 
(2

01
2 

IF
C

)
20

13
 C

A
LI

FO
RN

IA
 M

EC
H

A
N

IC
A

L 
C

O
D

E 
(2

01
2 

U
M

C
)

20
13

 C
A

LI
FO

RN
IA

 P
LU

M
BI

N
G

 C
O

D
E 

(2
01

2 
U

PC
)

20
13

 C
A

LI
FO

RN
IA

 E
LE

C
TR

IC
 C

O
D

E 
(2

01
1 

N
EC

)
20

13
 E

N
ER

G
Y 

EF
FI

C
IE

N
C

Y 
ST

A
N

D
A

RD
 (

TI
TL

E 
24

)
20

13
 G

RE
EN

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

D
E 

(T
IT

LE
 2

4)
A

N
D

 A
LL

 O
TH

ER
 O

RD
IN

A
N

C
ES

 A
D

O
PT

ED
 B

Y 
TH

E 
G

O
V

ER
N

IN
G

A
G

EN
C

IE
S.

1.
05

   
   

TH
E 

G
EN

ER
A

L 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R 
SH

A
LL

 M
A

IN
TA

IN
 A

 C
U

RR
EN

T
A

N
D

 C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

SE
T 

O
F 

C
O

N
ST

RU
C

TI
O

N
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
TS

 O
N

 T
H

E 
JO

B
SI

TE
 D

U
RI

N
G

 A
LL

 P
H

A
SE

S 
O

F 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TI

O
N

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
U

SE
 O

F 
A

LL
TR

A
D

ES
 A

N
D

 S
H

A
LL

 P
RO

V
ID

E 
A

LL
 S

U
BC

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

RS
 W

IT
H

 C
U

RR
EN

T
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

TS
 A

S 
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

.

1.
06

   
   

 G
EN

ER
A

L 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R 
TO

 V
ER

IF
Y 

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
SH

O
W

N
 O

N
 T

H
ES

E 
D

RA
W

IN
G

S 
PR

IO
R 

TO
 C

O
M

M
EN

C
IN

G
 A

N
Y

W
O

RK
 O

R 
O

RD
ER

IN
G

 A
N

Y 
M

A
TE

RI
A

L.

1.
07

   
   

 D
O

 N
O

T 
SC

A
LE

 T
H

E 
D

RA
W

IN
G

S.
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
S 

SH
O

W
N

SH
A

LL
 S

U
PE

RC
ED

E 
SC

A
LE

 O
F 

D
RA

W
IN

G
S.

  A
N

Y 
D

IS
C

RE
PE

N
C

Y 
IN

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
O

R 
C

O
N

FL
IC

T 
IN

 P
LA

N
S 

O
R 

FI
EL

D
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
SH

A
LL

BE
 B

RO
U

G
H

T 
TO

 T
H

E 
A

TT
EN

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
A

RC
H

IT
EC

T 
PR

IO
R 

TO
C

O
N

TI
N

U
A

N
C

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
W

O
RK

 IN
 T

H
E 

A
FF

EC
TE

D
 A

RE
A

.  
IF

 W
O

RK
 IS

C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
 IN

 T
H

E 
A

FF
EC

TE
D

 A
RE

A
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
IN

ST
RU

C
TI

O
N

 O
R

C
LA

RI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
 B

Y 
N

IE
LS

EN
 A

RC
H

IT
EC

TS
, T

H
E 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R 

SH
A

LL
 B

E
SO

LE
LY

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R 
A

N
Y 

RE
SU

LT
A

N
T 

D
EF

EC
T,

 D
A

M
A

G
E 

O
R

C
H

A
N

G
E 

RE
Q

U
IR

ED
.

1.
08

   
   

 A
T 

JO
B 

C
O

M
PL

ET
IO

N
, P

RI
O

R 
TO

 S
U

BM
IT

TI
N

G
 T

H
E

RE
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
 F

O
R 

FI
N

A
L 

PA
YM

EN
T,

 T
H

E 
G

EN
ER

A
L 

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

SH
A

LL
 P

RO
V

ID
E 

TH
E 

O
W

N
ER

 W
IT

H
 A

 R
ED

LI
N

ED
 S

ET
 O

F 
BL

U
EP

RI
N

TS
SH

O
W

IN
G

 A
S-

BU
IL

T 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S.

1.
09

   
   

 G
EN

ER
A

L 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R 
TO

 P
RO

V
ID

E 
PR

O
PE

R 
C

O
N

TA
IN

ER
S

O
N

 T
H

E 
JO

B 
SI

TE
 T

O
 A

SS
U

RE
 C

O
N

TI
N

U
O

U
S 

RE
C

YC
LI

N
G

 O
F

M
A

TE
RI

A
LS

.

1.
10

   
   

 G
EN

ER
A

L 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R 
IS

 R
ES

PO
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R 
N

O
TI

FY
IN

G
SU

BC
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
RS

 A
N

D
 A

SS
U

RI
N

G
 T

H
EI

R 
C

O
M

PL
IA

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

RE
C

YC
LI

N
G

 P
RO

G
RA

M
.

1.
11

   
   

 N
FR

C
 L

A
BE

LS
 M

U
ST

 R
EM

A
IN

 A
TT

A
C

H
ED

 T
O

 T
H

E 
G

LA
ZI

N
G

U
N

TI
L 

A
FT

ER
 IN

SU
LA

TI
O

N
 IN

SP
EC

TI
O

N
 IS

 C
O

M
PL

ET
ED

.

BL
KG

	
	

	
BL

O
CK

IN
G
	

	
BO

T.
	

	
	

BO
TT

O
M

CO
N

C.
	

	
CO

N
CR

ET
E

CO
N

T.
		

	
CO

N
TI

N
UO

US
CU

.F
T.
		

	
CU

BI
C 

FE
ET

DI
A

.	
	

	
DI

AM
ET

ER
DW

G
S	
	

	
DR

AW
IN

G
S

(E
)	

	
	

EX
IS

TI
N

G
EA

.	
	

	
EA

CH
EN

	
	

	
EN

D 
N

AI
L

EQ
.	

	
	

EQ
UA

L
EX

T.
	

	
	

EX
TE

RI
O

R
FD

TN
	
	

	
FO

UN
DA

TI
O

N
FT

.	
	

	
FE

ET
 O

R 
FO

O
T

G
YP

BD
		

	
G

YP
BD

IN
.	

	
	

IN
CH

IN
T.
	

	
	

IN
TE

RI
O

R
LG

	
	

	
LO

N
G

M
AX

.	
	

	
M

AX
IM

UM
M

IN
.	

	
	

M
IN

IM
UM

(N
)	

	
	

N
EW

O
/	

	
	

O
VE

R
O

.C
.	

	
	

O
N

 C
EN

TE
R

PT
.	

	
	

PR
ES

SU
RE

 T
RE

AT
ED

RE
F.
	

	
	

RE
FE

R
RE

Q
'D
		

	
RE

Q
UI

RE
D

SC
HE

D	
	

	
SC

HE
DU

LE
S.

F.
	

	
	

SQ
UA

RE
 F

EE
T

ST
D	

	
	

ST
AN

DA
RD

SQ
.	

	
	

SQ
UA

RE
T&

B	
	

	
TO

P 
& 

BO
TT

O
M

TB
D	

	
	

TO
 B

E 
DE

TE
RM

IN
ED

TY
P.
	

	
	

TY
PI

CA
L

U.
N

.O
.	

	
UN

LE
SS

 N
O

TE
D 

O
TH

ER
W

IS
E

VE
RT

.	
	

	
VE

RT
IC

AL
VI

F	
	

	
VE

RI
FY

 IN
 F

IE
LD

W
/	

	
	

W
IT

H

SH
EE

T 
IN

D
EX

A
1 

  S
IT

E 
PL

A
N

 /
 P

RO
JE

C
T 

D
A

TA
A

2 
  E

XI
ST

IN
G

 A
N

D
 P

RO
PO

SE
D

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

S
A

3 
  F

LO
O

R 
PL

A
N

 A
N

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

 C
O

V
ER

A
G

E 
C

A
LC

U
LA

TI
O

N
S

A
4 

  P
ER

SP
EC

TI
V

ES

PR
O

JE
C

T 
D

A
TA

PR
O

JE
C

T 
D

ES
C

RI
PT

IO
N

V
IC

IN
IT

Y 
M

A
P

S
C

A
LE

: 1
/8

"  
 =

   
 1

'-0
"

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
TE

S

A
BB

RE
V

IA
TI

O
N

S

PL
A

N
N

O
RT

H

RA
FF

O
 D

EN
TA

L 
O

FF
IC

ES
 - 

FA
C

A
D

E 
IM

PR
O

V
EM

EN
TS

-33-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment A. Project Plans.pdf



D
A

TE

Jo
b:

D
at

e:
Sc

al
e:

D
ra

w
n:RE

V
IS

IO
N

S

C
he

ck
ed

:
20

14
-0

48

M
M

C
N

BY

A
2 5/

8/
15

Pl
ot

te
d 

O
n:

5/
11

/1
5

A
S

 N
O

TE
D

EXISTING AND PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

RAFFO DENTAL OFFICES THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT SHALL NOT BE
CONSTRUED AS A GUARANTEE THAT ALL CODE
REQUIREMENTS ARE REFLECTED IN THE DOCUMENT.
THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR FOR THE PROJECT
SHALL BE ULTIMATELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING
THAT THE FINISHED PRODUCT COMPLIES WITH ALL
REGULATIONS, LAWS AND CODE REQUIREMENTS.

IF
 T

H
E 

A
BO

V
E 

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

 D
O

ES
 N

O
T

M
EA

SU
RE

 
O

N
E 

IN
C

H
 

(1
")

 
EX

A
C

TL
Y,

TH
IS

 
D

RA
W

IN
G

 
W

IL
L 

H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

EN
LA

RG
ED

 O
R 

RE
D

U
C

ED
, 

A
FF

EC
TI

N
G

A
LL

 L
A

BE
LE

D
 S

C
A

LE
S.

1"
 A

C
TU

A
L

JOB NAME:

ADRESS:

CITY, STATE:
APN:

Michael J Raffo, DMD
2185 41st Ave.
Capitola, CA 95010
034-192-02

CLIENT:

LI

R

C

C

E

HI
N

T
SE

EC

D

T

STAT

A

E
O

F
C

A
LI

FO

RNIA

C
H

R
IS

TI
A

N
 M

.
N

IE
LS

E
N

N
o.

 C
-3

18
88

R
E

N
E

W
A

L 
D

AT
E

A
U

G
U

S
T 

31
, 2

01
5

9'-6"1'-6"

8'-8"

3'
-8

"

7'
-7

"

1'-2"

(E
) 

PA
RA

PE
T

(N
) 

A
LU

M
A

W
N

IN
G

C
U

T 
O

U
T 

LE
TT

ER
S 

W
/

A
C

RY
LI

C
 B

A
C

KI
N

G
 A

N
D

BA
C

KL
IT

(N
) 

V
IN

YL
A

FF
IX

ED
 T

O
W

IN
D

O
W

 G
LA

ZI
N

G

(N
) 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

A
L

SI
G

N
A

G
E

C
O

N
TR

O
L

JO
IN

T,
 T

YP
.

(E
) 

M
EC

H
SC

RE
EN

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
74

%
 C

O
V

ER
A

G
E

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
74

%
 C

O
V

ER
A

G
E

78
%

C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
71

%
C

O
V

ER
A

G
E

B.O. AWNINGAWNING

±0
.0

'
FI

RS
T 

FL
O

O
R

+9
.8

'
PL

A
TE

(E
) 

A
W

N
IN

G

Ra
ffo

 D
en

ta
l 

10
'-9

"
3'

-8
"

9'-6"1'-6"

8'-9"

7'
-7

"

1'-3"

(E
) 

PA
RA

PE
T

(N
) 

A
LU

M
A

W
N

IN
G

(N
) 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

A
L

SI
G

N
A

G
E

(N
) 

 V
IN

YL
SH

A
D

IN
G

C
O

N
TR

O
L

JO
IN

T,
 T

YP
.

(E
) 

M
EC

H
 S

C
RE

EN

(E
) 

A
W

N
IN

G

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
73

%
 C

O
V

ER
A

G
E

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
73

%
 C

O
V

ER
A

G
E

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
73

%
 C

O
V

ER
A

G
E

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
73

%
 C

O
V

ER
A

G
E

B.O. AWNINGAWNING

±0
.0

'
FI

RS
T 

FL
O

O
R

+9
.8

'
PL

A
TE

9'-6"1'-6"

3'
-8

"

8'-9"

(E
) 

G
A

S 
M

ET
ER

 IN
 R

EC
ES

S

(E
) 

EL
EC

 M
ET

ER

(E
) 

PA
RA

PE
T

(N
) 

A
LU

M
A

W
N

IN
G

(N
) 

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

A
L

SI
G

N
A

G
E

(N
) 

 V
IN

YL
A

FF
IX

ED
 T

O
G

LA
ZI

N
G

C
O

N
TR

O
L

JO
IN

T,
 T

YP
.

(E
) 

M
EC

H
SC

RE
EN

(E
) 

A
W

N
IN

G

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
73

%
 C

O
V

ER
A

G
E

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
73

%
 C

O
V

ER
A

G
E

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

A
G

E

B.O. AWNINGAWNING

(E
) 

M
EC

H
SC

RE
EN

(E
) 

G
A

S 
M

ET
ER

 IN
 R

EC
ES

S

(E
) 

EL
EC

 M
ET

ER

(E
) 

M
EC

H
SC

RE
EN

(E
) 

A
W

N
IN

G

(E
) 

A
W

N
IN

G

(E
) 

M
EC

H
 S

C
RE

EN

(E
) 

A
W

N
IN

G

±0
.0

'
FI

RS
T 

FL
O

O
R

+9
.8

'
PL

A
TE

±0
.0

'
FI

RS
T 

FL
O

O
R

+9
.8

'
PL

A
TE

±0
.0

'
FI

RS
T 

FL
O

O
R

+9
.8

'
PL

A
TE±0

.0
'

FI
RS

T 
FL

O
O

R

+9
.8

'
PL

A
TE

±0
.0

'
FI

RS
T 

FL
O

O
R

+9
.8

'
PL

A
TE

SC
A

LE
: 1

/4
" 

  =
   

 1
'-0

"
P1

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 E

A
ST

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

SC
A

LE
: 1

/4
" 

  =
   

 1
'-0

"
P3

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 W

ES
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
A

LE
: 1

/4
" 

  =
   

 1
'-0

"
P4

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

O
U

TH
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N

SC
A

LE
: 1

/4
" 

  =
   

 1
'-0

"
P2

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

O
RT

H
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N

SC
A

LE
: 1

/4
" 

  =
   

 1
'-0

"
E1

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 E

A
ST

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

SC
A

LE
: 1

/4
" 

  =
   

 1
'-0

"
E2

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 N

O
RT

H
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N

SC
A

LE
: 1

/4
" 

  =
   

 1
'-0

"
E3

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 W

ES
T 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

SC
A

LE
: 1

/4
" 

  =
   

 1
'-0

"
E4

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

O
U

TH
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N

-34-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment A. Project Plans.pdf



D
A

TE

Jo
b:

D
at

e:
Sc

al
e:

D
ra

w
n:RE

V
IS

IO
N

S

C
he

ck
ed

:
20

14
-0

48

M
M

C
N

BY

A
3 5/

8/
15

Pl
ot

te
d 

O
n:

5/
11

/1
5

A
S

 N
O

TE
D

FLOOR PLAN

RAFFO DENTAL OFFICES THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT SHALL NOT BE
CONSTRUED AS A GUARANTEE THAT ALL CODE
REQUIREMENTS ARE REFLECTED IN THE DOCUMENT.
THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR FOR THE PROJECT
SHALL BE ULTIMATELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING
THAT THE FINISHED PRODUCT COMPLIES WITH ALL
REGULATIONS, LAWS AND CODE REQUIREMENTS.

IF
 T

H
E 

A
BO

V
E 

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

 D
O

ES
 N

O
T

M
EA

SU
RE

 
O

N
E 

IN
C

H
 

(1
")

 
EX

A
C

TL
Y,

TH
IS

 
D

RA
W

IN
G

 
W

IL
L 

H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

EN
LA

RG
ED

 O
R 

RE
D

U
C

ED
, 

A
FF

EC
TI

N
G

A
LL

 L
A

BE
LE

D
 S

C
A

LE
S.

1"
 A

C
TU

A
L

JOB NAME:

ADRESS:

CITY, STATE:
APN:

Michael J Raffo, DMD
2185 41st Ave.
Capitola, CA 95010
034-192-02

CLIENT:

LI

R

C

C

E

HI
N

T
SE

EC

D

T

STAT

A

E
O

F
C

A
LI

FO

RNIA

C
H

R
IS

TI
A

N
 M

.
N

IE
LS

E
N

N
o.

 C
-3

18
88

R
E

N
E

W
A

L 
D

AT
E

A
U

G
U

S
T 

31
, 2

01
5

4'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

2'
-2

"
4'

-3
"

3'-8"4'-0"4'-0"4'-0"4'-0"4'-0"4'-0"7'-2"

14
'-5

"
34'-10"

P1
A2

E2A
2

P3
A2

P4 A
2

(N
) 

A
LU

M
A

W
N

IN
G

 A
BO

V
E

(E
) 

 P
A

RA
PE

T
A

BO
V

E

(N
) 

SI
G

N
A

G
E

LO
C

A
TO

N

(N
) 

SI
G

N
A

G
E

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

H
YG

 1
H

Y
G

 2
H

YG
 3

TR
TM

T 
4

TR
TM

T 
5

TR
TM

T 
6

M
EC

H

LA
B

PR
IV

A
TE

O
FF

IC
E

TO
IL

ET

TO
IL

ET

PA
N

O

ST
ER

IL

BR
EA

K

FI
N

 A
LC

O
V

E

RE
C

EP
TI

O
N

W
A

IT
IN

G
 A

RE
A

ST
O

R
ST

O
R

D
IG

-C
A

PT

C
H

EC
K-

IN

CHECK-OUT

TR
A

SH BUSINESS EQ.

LO
C

KE
RS

C
O

A
TS

W
/D

(G
A

S 
M

TR
)

W
H

23
 s

q 
ft

14
 s

q 
ft

14
 s

q 
ft

23
 s

q 
ft

17
 s

q 
ft

23
 s

q 
ft

11
 s

q 
ft

10
 s

q 
ft

17
 s

q 
ft

23
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

12
 s

q 
ft

11
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

12
 s

q 
ft

11
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

12
 s

q 
ft

17
 s

q 
ft

26
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

12
 s

q 
ft

11
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

12
 s

q 
ft

11
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

12
 s

q 
ft

11
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

15
 s

q 
ft

12
 s

q 
ft

11
 s

q 
ft

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

78
%

 C
O

V
ER

71
%

 C
O

V
ER

12
0S

F 
G

LA
ZI

N
G

89
 S

F 
V

IN
YL

C
O

V
ER

A
G

E

EA
ST

 F
A

C
A

D
E

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

73
%

 C
O

V
ER

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

73
%

 C
O

V
ER

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

75
 S

F

58
 S

F

N
O

RT
H

 F
A

C
A

D
E

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

73
%

 C
O

V
ER

12
0 

SF

92
 S

F 
C

O
V

ER
A

G
E

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

73
%

 C
O

V
ER

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

73
%

 C
O

V
ER

74
%

 C
O

V
ER

73
%

 C
O

V
ER

W
ES

T 
FA

C
A

D
E

SO
U

TH
 F

A
C

A
D

E

43
 S

F

35
8 

SF
 O

F 
TO

TA
L 

G
LA

ZI
N

G

23
9 

SF
 O

F 
V

IN
YL

 C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
67

%
 O

F 
A

LL
 G

LA
ZI

N
G

A
LL

 F
A

C
A

D
ES

17
 s

q 
ft

17
 s

q 
ft

SC
A

LE
: 1

/4
" 

  =
   

 1
'-0

"
2

FL
O

O
R 

PL
A

N

SC
A

LE
: 1

/4
" 

  =
   

 1
'-0

"
1

G
LA

ZI
N

G
 C

O
V

ER
A

G
E 

D
IA

G
RA

M
 A

N
D

 P
ER

C
EN

TA
G

E

-35-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment A. Project Plans.pdf



D
A

TE

Jo
b:

D
at

e:
Sc

al
e:

D
ra

w
n:RE

V
IS

IO
N

S

C
he

ck
ed

:
20

14
-0

48

M
M

C
N

BY

A
4 5/

8/
15

Pl
ot

te
d 

O
n:

5/
11

/1
5

A
S

 N
O

TE
D

PERSPECTIVES

RAFFO DENTAL OFFICES THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT SHALL NOT BE
CONSTRUED AS A GUARANTEE THAT ALL CODE
REQUIREMENTS ARE REFLECTED IN THE DOCUMENT.
THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR FOR THE PROJECT
SHALL BE ULTIMATELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING
THAT THE FINISHED PRODUCT COMPLIES WITH ALL
REGULATIONS, LAWS AND CODE REQUIREMENTS.

IF
 T

H
E 

A
BO

V
E 

D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

 D
O

ES
 N

O
T

M
EA

SU
RE

 
O

N
E 

IN
C

H
 

(1
")

 
EX

A
C

TL
Y,

TH
IS

 
D

RA
W

IN
G

 
W

IL
L 

H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

EN
LA

RG
ED

 O
R 

RE
D

U
C

ED
, 

A
FF

EC
TI

N
G

A
LL

 L
A

BE
LE

D
 S

C
A

LE
S.

1"
 A

C
TU

A
L

JOB NAME:

ADRESS:

CITY, STATE:
APN:

Michael J Raffo, DMD
2185 41st Ave.
Capitola, CA 95010
034-192-02

CLIENT:

LI

R

C

C

E

HI
N

T
SE

EC

D

T

STAT

A

E
O

F
C

A
LI

FO

RNIA

C
H

R
IS

TI
A

N
 M

.
N

IE
LS

E
N

N
o.

 C
-3

18
88

R
E

N
E

W
A

L 
D

AT
E

A
U

G
U

S
T 

31
, 2

01
5

2
SO

U
TH

 P
ER

SP
EC

TI
V

E

1
N

O
RT

H
 P

ER
SP

EC
TI

V
E

-36-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment A. Project Plans.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JUNE 4, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 3555 Clares Street, Ste. TT  #15-079 APN: 034-261-59 

Conditional Use Permit for sale of beer and wine at an existing restaurant (Roux Dat) in 
the Community Commercial (CC) zoning district. 
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and thus does not require a Coastal 
Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Bob Rivers (Brown Ranch Properties) 
Representative: Chad Glassley, filed: 4/30/15 

  
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant submitted a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the sale of beer and wine at 
the existing multi-tenant commercial building located at 3555 Clares Street Suite TT in the CC 
(Community Commercial) zoning district.  The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and 
Zoning Ordinance with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. 
 
DISCUSSION 
The property is located at 3555 Clares Street within Browns Ranch shopping center.  There are a mix 
of retail, restaurants, and personal service establishments within the center. The shopping center is 
located at the edge of the community commercial district with the mall located across the street and a 
residential neighborhood sharing the rear property line.     
 
Conditional Use Permit 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for onsite sale and consumption of beer and 
wine within the existing Roux Dat Cajun Creole Restaurant.  No hard liquor sales are proposed.  In 
considering an application for a CUP, the Planning Commission must give due regard to the nature 
and condition of adjacent uses and structures. The municipal code lists additional requirements and 
review criteria for some uses within the CUP consideration (§17.60.030).  There are no specific 
considerations or requirements for the sale of alcohol within the ordinance.  In issuing the CUP, the 
Planning Commission may impose requirements and conditions with respect to location, design, 
siting, maintenance and operation of the use  as may be necessary for the protection of the adjacent 
properties and in the public interest.   
 
The restaurant is open 7 days a week, including 11:30 am to 8:00 pm Sunday through Thursday and 
11:30 am to 9:00 pm Friday and Saturday. No live music or entertainment is proposed.  Food is 
prepared in the kitchen for onsite dining or carry out.  The conditions of the permit will limit beer and 
wine sales to onsite consumption.  No changes are proposed to the interior layout of the restaurant, 
the exterior façade, or the existing sign. Parking requirements are not influenced by the application.  
 

-37-

Item #: 4.B. 3555 Clares Street #PP staff report.pdf



 

Police Chief Escalante has reviewed the application and supports the application as conditioned.  The 
conditions of approval will ensure alcohol is only served onsite, no entertainment is allowed without a 
permit, and that the permit may be brought back to Planning Commission if any issues were to arise.  
Community Development staff does not have concerns for the alcohol permit at this location.  This 
area is within the regional shopping district and in which there is not an overconcentration of 
restaurants/bars serving alcohol.       
 
CEQA 
This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental Quality Act 
and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. The proposed 
project involves an existing restaurant use serving alcohol within an existing restaurant space. No 
adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the Planning 
Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve application #15-079, subject to the following 
conditions and based upon the following findings: 
 
CONDITIONS 
1.  The project approval consists of a Conditional Use Permit to allow onsite sale and consumption of 

beer and wine at the existing Roux Dat Restaurant located at 3555 Clares Street Suite TT, 
Capitola, CA.  No modifications to the exterior or interior of the building are proposed.  Parking 
requirements are not affected by this application.    
 

2.  The restaurant is open 7 days a week from 11:30 to 8:00 Sunday through Thursday and 11:30 to 
9:00 pm Friday and Saturday.  

 
3.  The establishment must maintain a valid license from the Alcohol Beverage Control.  A copy of the 

approved Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control Permit must be filed with the Community 
Development Department prior to initiating beer and wine sales.  

 
4.  No live or amplified entertainment is approved within this permit (15-079).   An Entertainment 

Permit is required for any entertainment that is audible outside of the structure.  An Entertainment 
Permit may be applied for through the Capitola Police Department.    
 

5.  Patrons shall not be allowed to leave with open alcoholic beverage containers. 
 

6.  Permits are non-transferrable.    
 

7.  The applicant shall receive permission from ABC prior to June 4, 2017.  The conditional use 
permit will expire in the case where the conditional use permit has not been used within two years 
after the date of granting thereof.  Any interruption or cessation beyond the control of the property 
owner shall not result in the termination of such right or privilege. A permit shall be deemed to 
have been “used” when actual substantial, continuous activity has taken place upon the land 
pursuant to the permit. 
 

8.  The applicant is required to complete and follow the Responsible Beverage Service (RBS) 
practices and procedures.  Employees who serve alcoholic beverages are required to attend and 
complete L.E.A.D.S. training offered by the Capitola Police Department. 
 

9.  The applicant is responsible for maintaining the area directly in front of the business free from litter 
and/or graffiti. 

 

-38-

Item #: 4.B. 3555 Clares Street #PP staff report.pdf



 

10. The applicant was granted a conditional use permit for the sale of beer and wine.  In any case 
where the conditions of the permit have not been or are not complied with, the community 
development director shall give notice thereof to the permittee, which notice shall specify a 
reasonable period of time within which to perform said conditions and correct said violation. If the 
permittee fails to comply with said conditions, or to correct said violation, within the time allowed, 
notice shall be given to the permittee of intention to revoke such permit at a hearing to be held not 
less than thirty calendar days after the date of such notice. Following such hearing and, if good 
cause exists therefore, the Planning Commission may revoke the permit.  

 
FINDINGS 
 

A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 
Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

 
Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project and 
determined that the proposed use is permitted in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning 
District with a Conditional Use Permit.  Conditions of approval have been included to carry out 
the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 

B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
 

Community Development staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project and 
determined that the proposed beer and wine sales within the existing restaurant will not have a 
negative impact on the character and integrity of the commercial area.  Conditions of approval 
have been included to ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity of the area. 

 

C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
The proposed project involves a conditional use permit to allow sale of beer and wine within 
and existing restaurant.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project 
review by either the Community Development staff or the Planning Commission. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Letter from applicant 
 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan, AICP 
    Senior Planner  

 
 
 

-39-

Item #: 4.B. 3555 Clares Street #PP staff report.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-40-



-41-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Letter from Applicant.pdf



-42-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Letter from Applicant.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JUNE 4, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 429 Riverview Avenue  #13-179  APN: 035-121-034 

Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and Variance for non-conforming structure and 
setback requirements for an addition to an existing single family home in the R-1 
(Single Family) zoning district.  
This application requires a Coastal Development permit which is appealable to the 
California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the 
City.  
Environmental Determination: Exempt 
Property Owner: Mike and Cindy Reardon 
Representative: Derek Van Alstine 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant submitted a Design Permit, Variance, Conditional Use Permit, and Coastal 
Development Permit application for an addition to a historic, single-family home located at 429 
Riverview Avenue (Attachment A: Plans).  The project is located in the R-1 (Single Family) zoning 
district.  The applicant is proposing an addition located on the front of the home along Riverview 
Avenue, with additional living space above an open covered parking area.  
 
BACKGROUND  
The original application was submitted in December of 2013.  The application was reviewed by 
Architectural Historian Leslie Dill.  In March of 2014, the applicant was provided with a list of 
recommended revisions to bring the application into compliance with the Secretary of Interior 
Standards.  The project was put on hold for approximately 9 months.  Updated plans were submitted 
in late January 2015.  On March 26, 2015, the Architectural Historian made findings that the updated 
plans were in compliance with the Secretary of Interior Standards pending minor modifications 
(Attachment B).  The current plans under review incorporate the suggested modifications by the 
Architectural Historian.   
 
On May 13, 2015, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application.     

 City Architect Representative, Frank Phanton, reviewed the application and expressed that the 
design does a good job of preserving the historic structure.       

 City Landscape Representative, Craig Waltz, had no comments.  

 City Public Works Representative, Danielle Uharriet, provided the applicant with storm water 
requirements and requested that sheet E-1 be updated to match the storm water permit 
project application form.        

 City Building Official, Brian Van Son, informed the applicant of fire sprinkler requirements and  
a no rise study prior to building permit.  

 The City Historian, Carolyn Swift, thought the design addressed the historic home well.   

-43-

Item #: 5.A. 429 Riverview Staff Report.pdf



 

 
 
SITE PLANNING AND ZONING SUMMARY 
The applicant is proposing rehabilitation of the existing house and a new addition on the front of the 
structure.  To maintain the existing mass and scale of the historic home, the applicant has extended 
the addition into the front yard setback area.  The applicant is requesting a variance to the front yard 
setback, the side yard setback on the second story, and parking space dimensions. The follow table 
outlines the zoning code requirements for development in the R-1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning 
District relative to the application:  

 

Historic 

Level of Historic Feature (local/state/federal or n/a)  Old Riverview Historic District 

Significant Alteration of Historic Feature? (CUP required)  Yes. CUP required 

Development Standards 

Building Height R-1 Regulation Proposed 

 25'-0" 22’ – 0” 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

Lot Size 3096 sq. ft. 

Maximum Floor Area Ratio 57% (Max 1,764 sq. ft.) 

  First Story Floor Area 1,037 sq. ft. 

 Second Story Floor Area    727 sq. ft. 

   TOTAL FAR 1,764 sq. ft.  

Yards (setbacks are measured from the edge of the public right-of-way) 

 R-1 Regulation Proposed 

Front Yard 1st Story 15 feet 
Existing: 19 feet 

6.5 ft. from right-of-way 
Variance Requested 

Front Yard  2nd Story & Garage 20 feet 6.5 ft. from right-of-way 
Variance Requested 

Side Yard 1st Story 10% lot 
width 

Lot width 30’ 
3 ft. min. 

0 ft. south property line – 
Existing non-conforming 
3 ft. from property line 

Side Yard 2nd Story 15% of 
width 

Lot width 30’  
4.5 ft. min 

3 ft. from property line 
Variance Requested 

Rear Yard 1st Story 20% of 
lot depth 

Lot depth  103’  
20 ft. min. 

20 ft. from property line 

Encroachments (list all) Block retaining wall; deck None 

Parking 

 Required Proposed 

Residential (from 1500 up to 
2000 sq. ft.) 

2 spaces total (1 covered) 
10’ x 20’ spaces 

2 spaces total 
2 covered 
Variance Requested.  
Substandard parking space 
 8.5’ x 18’ 

Garage and Accessory Bldg.  Located in front yard setback. 
Variance Requested. 

Underground Utilities: required with 25% increase in area Underground Utilities Required 

 
DISCUSSION 
The structure at 429 Riverview Avenue is located within the Old Riverview Historic District. The home 
was built during the settlement period of the district (1925 – 1930).  The Old Riverview District 
consists primarily of one and two-family, wood-frame homes that are located along the Soquel River.  
The character defining features of the historic home at 429 Riverview Avenue include the one and a 

-44-

Item #: 5.A. 429 Riverview Staff Report.pdf



 

half story main wing with the the distinctive bell-cast roofline, simple bargeboards with tapered ends, 
turned finials at the apex of the end gables, board and batten siding, two original wood casement 
windows, and French doors.  
 
Non-Conforming Structure 
The historic structure does not comply with the side yard setback regulations of the zoning code; and 
therefore, is a non-conforming structure.  Pursuant to code section 17.72.070, an existing non-
complying structure that will be improved beyond 80% of the present fair market value of the 
structure, may not be made unless the structure is brought into compliance with the current zoning 
regulations.  The building official has reviewed the existing versus proposed values and concluded 
that the new addition will exceed the 80% threshold.  To bring the historic home into compliance with 
setbacks would require removing a portion of the historic home and is contrary to historic 
preservation. The applicant is requesting a variance for t the non-conforming structure requirements 
of §17.72.070.  It should also be noted that the applicant is requesting a variance to build the new 
addition within the required front yard setback.  This will add to the non-conforming status of the 
structure.  By locating the addition in the front yard the home owner is able to attain the additional 
space they desire without impacting the historic form and scale of the original cottage.   
 
Variance 
The applicant is requesting a variance for the front and side yard setbacks and the non-conforming 
structure  80% threshold.  The new addition is located within 6.5 feet of the front property line and 3 
feet on the second story from the side property line.     
 
Pursuant to §17.66.090, the Planning Commission, on the basis of the evidence submitted at the 
hearing, may grant a variance permit when it finds: 
A. That because of special circumstances applicable to subject property, including size, shape, 

topography, location or surroundings, the strict application of this title is found to deprive subject 
property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and under identical zone 
classification; 

B. That the grant of a variance permit would not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent 
with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which subject property is 
situated. 
 

The special circumstance applicable to the subject property is that the existing cottage is historic. The 
historic resource is protected within the municipal code and under CEQA.  To bring the historic 
cottage into compliance with the setback regulations would require a portion of the historic home to be 
removed.  To do so would modify the massing of the original cottage and would be contrary to the 
Secretary of Interior Standards.  The new addition is placed within the front yard setback to preserve 
the massing of the historic structure.  The applicant is requesting a variance to the setbacks to follow 
accepted preservation practices.  Many of the historic cottages throughout the Old Riverview Historic 
District were built prior to current setback standards and do not conform.  This is a privilege enjoyed 
by others throughout the district. A finding can be made that the variance would not constitute a grant 
of special privilege inconsistent with other properties in the area.   
 
Historic preservation is a priority within the City of Capitola.  Goal LU-2 of the Capitola General Plan 
states “Preserve historic and cultural resources in Capitola.”  The General Plan includes the following 
policy statements in support of the variance for the historic cottage and applications of the Secretary 
of Interior’s Standards: 
GP-Policy LU-2.1: Historic Structures.  Encourage the preservation, restoration, rehabilitation, 
maintenance, and adaptive reuse of important historic structures in Capitola. 
GP-Policy LU 2.2: Modification Standards.  Use the U.S Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties as a guide for exterior modification to identified historic resources. 
 

-45-

Item #: 5.A. 429 Riverview Staff Report.pdf



 

Compliance with Historic Standards 
The applicant submitted a historic background and description and an assessment on compliance 
with the Secretary of Interior Standards by Historian Kent L. Seavey (Attachment C).  At time of 
submittal, staff sent the plans and Mr. Seavey’s report out for a third party technical review by 
Architectural Historian, Leslie Dill.  Ms. Dill did not agree with Mr. Seavey’s original review of the 
addition and identified standards that were not in compliance under the original design.  Home 
designer, Derek Van Alstine, worked with Ms. Dill to address her design concerns.  On March 26, 
2015, Ms. Dill made finding for compliance with the Secretary of Interior Standards, as conditioned.    
 
CEQA REVIEW 
Section 15303(a) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts the construction of a single-family residence in a 
residential zone.  This project involves construction of a new single-family residence in the R-1 
(Single-Family Residential) Zoning District.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered 
during review of the proposed project.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission review the application and approve project application 
#13-179 based on the findings and conditions.    
 
FINDINGS 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 
Commission have all reviewed the project. The project secures the purpose of the Zoning 
Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan.  The integrity of the historic resource will be 
maintained with historic resource contributing to a historic district with the proposed design.   A 
variance has been granted to preserve the location of the historic structure and allow the non-
conforming structure to continue.   

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 
Commission have all reviewed the addition to the historic resource. The new addition will not 
overwhelm the historic structure.  The home is located within the Old Riverview Historic District 
and will continue to be a contributing structure within the district.  The design does not 
compromise the integrity of the historic resource.   

 
C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15331 of the California    Environmental      

Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15303(a) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts the construction of a single-family residence in 
a residential zone.  This project involves construction of a new single-family residence in the R-1 
(Single-Family Residential) Zoning District.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered 
during review of the proposed project.  

 
CONDITIONS 

1. The project approval consists of an addition to an existing historic resource located at 429 
Riverview Avenue. The project approval consists of construction of a 606 square-foot addition 
to a 1,764 square-foot single family home. The maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 3,096 
square foot property with accessory dwelling is 57% (1,764 square feet).  The total FAR of the 
project is 57% with a total of 1,764 square feet, compliant with the maximum FAR within the 
zone. The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Commission on June 4, 2015, except as modified through conditions imposed 
by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

-46-

Item #: 5.A. 429 Riverview Staff Report.pdf



 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent 
with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and site improvements 
shall be completed according to the approved plans.  
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 
full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, a no rise study must be submitted to the City at 
the satisfaction of the Building Official.   
 

5. At time of building plan submittal, the plans shall include a language on the cover sheet 
referring to the intent of the Secretary of Interior Standards and specifically reference Standard 
#6.  The plans shall identify specific repairs at the time of submittal of the building permit 
drawings.  
 

6. At time of building plan submittal, the California State Historical Building Code shall be 
referenced in the architectural notes on the front page, in the event that this preservation code 
can provide support to the project design.  
 

7. At the time of building plan submittal, all proposed preservation treatments (e.g., epoxy wood 
consolidant and paint preparation techniques), shall be identified on the plans. 
 

8. At the time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail Storm Water 
Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP) shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet 
into the construction plans.  All construction shall be done in accordance with Public Works 
Standard Detail Storm Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP).   

 
9. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested 

and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes 
to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require Planning Commission approval 
and potentially a review by the Historic Architect for continued conformance with the Secretary 
of Interior standards.  
 

10. Prior to making any changes to the historic structure, the applicant and/or contractor shall field 
verify all existing conditions of the historic buildings and match replacement elements and 
materials according to the approved plans.  Any discrepancies found between approved plans, 
replacement features and existing elements must be reported to the Community Development 
Department for further direction, prior to construction. 
 

11. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and approved by 
the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect the Planning 
Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species and details of 
irrigation systems, if proposed.  Native and/or drought tolerant species are recommended.       
 

12. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #14-116 shall be 
paid in full. 

 
13. Prior to issuance of building permits, the building plans must show that the existing overhead 

utility lines will be underground to the nearest utility pole.   
 

-47-

Item #: 5.A. 429 Riverview Staff Report.pdf



 

14. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel Water 
District, and Central Fire Protection District.   
 

15. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion control 
plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans shall be in 
compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16 Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

16. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater management 
plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements all applicable Post 
Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard Details, including all standards 
relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

17. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading official to 
verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan. 
 

18. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 
the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 
 

19. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 
except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise 
shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty a.m. on weekdays. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work 
between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. 
§9.12.010B 
 

20. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches or street edge shall be 
replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction of the Public Works 
Department.  All replaced driveway approaches shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 
 

21. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall 
be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.  Upon evidence 
of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions, the 
applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director or shall file an application for a permit amendment for Planning Commission 
consideration. Failure to remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in permit 
revocation. 
 

22. The applicant was granted a conditional use permit for the alteration to a historic structure.  In 
any case where the conditions of the permit have not been or are not complied with, the 
community development director shall give notice thereof to the permittee, which notice shall 
specify a reasonable period of time within which to perform said conditions and correct said 
violation. If the permittee fails to comply with said conditions, or to correct said violation, within 
the time allowed, notice shall be given to the permittee of intention to revoke such permit at a 
hearing to be held not less than thirty calendar days after the date of such notice. Following 
such hearing and, if good cause exists therefore, the Planning Commission may revoke the 
permit.  
 

23. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 

-48-

Item #: 5.A. 429 Riverview Staff Report.pdf



 

expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

24. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the applicant 
to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site on which 
the approval was granted. 
 

25. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be shielded 
and placed out of public view on non-collection days.  
 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A: Plans 
Attachment B: Historic Review – Leslie Dill of Archives and Architecture 
Attachment C: Historic Review - Kent L. Seavey 
Attachment D: Coastal Findings 
 

-49-

Item #: 5.A. 429 Riverview Staff Report.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-50-



R  I  V  E R    W  A  L  K

                                                                 

                                                

 

T1

APN:

71
6 

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

EN
U

E 
SU

IT
E 

A
, S

A
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z,

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
(8

31
)4

26
-8

40
0 

PH
O

N
E 

 (
83

1)
42

6-
84

46
 F

A
X

R
 E

 S
 I 

D
 E

 N
 T

 I 
A

 L
   

D
 E

 S
 I 

G
 N

   
IN

C
.

D
 E

 R
 E

 K
   

V
 A

 N
   

A
 L

 S
 T

 I 
N

 E

DVRD

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DEREK VAN ALSTINE

2013 COPYRIGHT

DESIGNER

R
EA

R
D

O
N

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

C
A

PI
T

O
LA

, C
A

 9
50

10
42

9 
R

IV
ER

V
IE

W
 A

V
EN

U
E

035-121-34

NOV-22-13

ISSUE DESCRIPTION

SCHEMATIC DESIGN:

PLANNING SUBMITTAL:

REVISIONS:

INC.

HISTORIC SUBMITTAL

BUILDING SUBMITTAL:

JAN-05-15

-51-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



-52-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



E1

APN:

71
6 

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

EN
U

E 
SU

IT
E 

A
, S

A
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z,

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
(8

31
)4

26
-8

40
0 

PH
O

N
E 

 (
83

1)
42

6-
84

46
 F

A
X

R
 E

 S
 I 

D
 E

 N
 T

 I 
A

 L
   

D
 E

 S
 I 

G
 N

   
IN

C
.

D
 E

 R
 E

 K
   

V
 A

 N
   

A
 L

 S
 T

 I 
N

 E

DVRD

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DEREK VAN ALSTINE

2013 COPYRIGHT

DESIGNER

R
EA

R
D

O
N

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

C
A

PI
T

O
LA

, C
A

 9
50

10
42

9 
R

IV
ER

V
IE

W
 A

V
EN

U
E

035-121-34

NOV-22-13

ISSUE DESCRIPTION

SCHEMATIC DESIGN:

PLANNING SUBMITTAL:

REVISIONS:

INC.

HISTORIC SUBMITTAL

BUILDING SUBMITTAL:

JAN-05-15

-53-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



E2

APN:

71
6 

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

EN
U

E 
SU

IT
E 

A
, S

A
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z,

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
(8

31
)4

26
-8

40
0 

PH
O

N
E 

 (
83

1)
42

6-
84

46
 F

A
X

R
 E

 S
 I 

D
 E

 N
 T

 I 
A

 L
   

D
 E

 S
 I 

G
 N

   
IN

C
.

D
 E

 R
 E

 K
   

V
 A

 N
   

A
 L

 S
 T

 I 
N

 E

DVRD

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DEREK VAN ALSTINE

2013 COPYRIGHT

DESIGNER

R
EA

R
D

O
N

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

C
A

PI
T

O
LA

, C
A

 9
50

10
42

9 
R

IV
ER

V
IE

W
 A

V
EN

U
E

035-121-34

NOV-22-13

ISSUE DESCRIPTION

SCHEMATIC DESIGN:

PLANNING SUBMITTAL:

REVISIONS:

INC.

HISTORIC SUBMITTAL

BUILDING SUBMITTAL:

JAN-05-15

-54-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



BATH
(E)

MASTER
BEDROOM

(E)

STORAGE /
CLOSET

(E)

LOFT
(E)

E3

APN:

71
6 

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

EN
U

E 
SU

IT
E 

A
, S

A
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z,

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
(8

31
)4

26
-8

40
0 

PH
O

N
E 

 (
83

1)
42

6-
84

46
 F

A
X

R
 E

 S
 I 

D
 E

 N
 T

 I 
A

 L
   

D
 E

 S
 I 

G
 N

   
IN

C
.

D
 E

 R
 E

 K
   

V
 A

 N
   

A
 L

 S
 T

 I 
N

 E

DVRD

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DEREK VAN ALSTINE

2013 COPYRIGHT

DESIGNER

R
EA

R
D

O
N

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

C
A

PI
T

O
LA

, C
A

 9
50

10
42

9 
R

IV
ER

V
IE

W
 A

V
EN

U
E

035-121-34

NOV-22-13

ISSUE DESCRIPTION

SCHEMATIC DESIGN:

PLANNING SUBMITTAL:

REVISIONS:

INC.

HISTORIC SUBMITTAL

BUILDING SUBMITTAL:

JAN-05-15

-55-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



E4

APN:

71
6 

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

EN
U

E 
SU

IT
E 

A
, S

A
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z,

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
(8

31
)4

26
-8

40
0 

PH
O

N
E 

 (
83

1)
42

6-
84

46
 F

A
X

R
 E

 S
 I 

D
 E

 N
 T

 I 
A

 L
   

D
 E

 S
 I 

G
 N

   
IN

C
.

D
 E

 R
 E

 K
   

V
 A

 N
   

A
 L

 S
 T

 I 
N

 E

DVRD

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DEREK VAN ALSTINE

2013 COPYRIGHT

DESIGNER

R
EA

R
D

O
N

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

C
A

PI
T

O
LA

, C
A

 9
50

10
42

9 
R

IV
ER

V
IE

W
 A

V
EN

U
E

035-121-34

NOV-22-13

ISSUE DESCRIPTION

SCHEMATIC DESIGN:

PLANNING SUBMITTAL:

REVISIONS:

INC.

HISTORIC SUBMITTAL

BUILDING SUBMITTAL:

JAN-05-15

-56-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



E5

APN:

71
6 

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

EN
U

E 
SU

IT
E 

A
, S

A
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z,

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
(8

31
)4

26
-8

40
0 

PH
O

N
E 

 (
83

1)
42

6-
84

46
 F

A
X

R
 E

 S
 I 

D
 E

 N
 T

 I 
A

 L
   

D
 E

 S
 I 

G
 N

   
IN

C
.

D
 E

 R
 E

 K
   

V
 A

 N
   

A
 L

 S
 T

 I 
N

 E

DVRD

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DEREK VAN ALSTINE

2013 COPYRIGHT

DESIGNER

R
EA

R
D

O
N

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

C
A

PI
T

O
LA

, C
A

 9
50

10
42

9 
R

IV
ER

V
IE

W
 A

V
EN

U
E

035-121-34

NOV-22-13

ISSUE DESCRIPTION

SCHEMATIC DESIGN:

PLANNING SUBMITTAL:

REVISIONS:

INC.

HISTORIC SUBMITTAL

BUILDING SUBMITTAL:

JAN-05-15

-57-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



A1

APN:

71
6 

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

EN
U

E 
SU

IT
E 

A
, S

A
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z,

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
(8

31
)4

26
-8

40
0 

PH
O

N
E 

 (
83

1)
42

6-
84

46
 F

A
X

R
 E

 S
 I 

D
 E

 N
 T

 I 
A

 L
   

D
 E

 S
 I 

G
 N

   
IN

C
.

D
 E

 R
 E

 K
   

V
 A

 N
   

A
 L

 S
 T

 I 
N

 E

DVRD

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DEREK VAN ALSTINE

2013 COPYRIGHT

DESIGNER

R
EA

R
D

O
N

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

C
A

PI
T

O
LA

, C
A

 9
50

10
42

9 
R

IV
ER

V
IE

W
 A

V
EN

U
E

035-121-34

NOV-22-13

ISSUE DESCRIPTION

SCHEMATIC DESIGN:

PLANNING SUBMITTAL:

REVISIONS:

INC.

HISTORIC SUBMITTAL

BUILDING SUBMITTAL:

JAN-05-15

-58-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



LIVING
ROOM

104

DINING
ROOM

103

KITCHEN
102

ENTRY
101

MASTER
BATH
106

POWDER
105 MASTER

BEDROOM
108

HALL
107

A2

APN:

71
6 

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

EN
U

E 
SU

IT
E 

A
, S

A
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z,

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
(8

31
)4

26
-8

40
0 

PH
O

N
E 

 (
83

1)
42

6-
84

46
 F

A
X

R
 E

 S
 I 

D
 E

 N
 T

 I 
A

 L
   

D
 E

 S
 I 

G
 N

   
IN

C
.

D
 E

 R
 E

 K
   

V
 A

 N
   

A
 L

 S
 T

 I 
N

 E

DVRD

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DEREK VAN ALSTINE

2013 COPYRIGHT

DESIGNER

R
EA

R
D

O
N

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

C
A

PI
T

O
LA

, C
A

 9
50

10
42

9 
R

IV
ER

V
IE

W
 A

V
EN

U
E

035-121-34

NOV-22-13

ISSUE DESCRIPTION

SCHEMATIC DESIGN:

PLANNING SUBMITTAL:

REVISIONS:

INC.

HISTORIC SUBMITTAL

BUILDING SUBMITTAL:

JAN-05-15

-59-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



BUNK
ROOM

201

HALL
202

BEDROOM #3
206

BEDROOM #2
207

BATH
203

BATH
204

HALL
205

A3

APN:

71
6 

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

EN
U

E 
SU

IT
E 

A
, S

A
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z,

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
(8

31
)4

26
-8

40
0 

PH
O

N
E 

 (
83

1)
42

6-
84

46
 F

A
X

R
 E

 S
 I 

D
 E

 N
 T

 I 
A

 L
   

D
 E

 S
 I 

G
 N

   
IN

C
.

D
 E

 R
 E

 K
   

V
 A

 N
   

A
 L

 S
 T

 I 
N

 E

DVRD

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DEREK VAN ALSTINE

2013 COPYRIGHT

DESIGNER

R
EA

R
D

O
N

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

C
A

PI
T

O
LA

, C
A

 9
50

10
42

9 
R

IV
ER

V
IE

W
 A

V
EN

U
E

035-121-34

NOV-22-13

ISSUE DESCRIPTION

SCHEMATIC DESIGN:

PLANNING SUBMITTAL:

REVISIONS:

INC.

HISTORIC SUBMITTAL

BUILDING SUBMITTAL:

JAN-05-15

-60-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



A4

APN:

71
6 

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

EN
U

E 
SU

IT
E 

A
, S

A
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z,

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
(8

31
)4

26
-8

40
0 

PH
O

N
E 

 (
83

1)
42

6-
84

46
 F

A
X

R
 E

 S
 I 

D
 E

 N
 T

 I 
A

 L
   

D
 E

 S
 I 

G
 N

   
IN

C
.

D
 E

 R
 E

 K
   

V
 A

 N
   

A
 L

 S
 T

 I 
N

 E

DVRD

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DEREK VAN ALSTINE

2013 COPYRIGHT

DESIGNER

R
EA

R
D

O
N

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

C
A

PI
T

O
LA

, C
A

 9
50

10
42

9 
R

IV
ER

V
IE

W
 A

V
EN

U
E

035-121-34

NOV-22-13

ISSUE DESCRIPTION

SCHEMATIC DESIGN:

PLANNING SUBMITTAL:

REVISIONS:

INC.

HISTORIC SUBMITTAL

BUILDING SUBMITTAL:

JAN-05-15

-61-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



R  I  V  E  R    W  A  L  K

A5

APN:

71
6 

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

EN
U

E 
SU

IT
E 

A
, S

A
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z,

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
(8

31
)4

26
-8

40
0 

PH
O

N
E 

 (
83

1)
42

6-
84

46
 F

A
X

R
 E

 S
 I 

D
 E

 N
 T

 I 
A

 L
   

D
 E

 S
 I 

G
 N

   
IN

C
.

D
 E

 R
 E

 K
   

V
 A

 N
   

A
 L

 S
 T

 I 
N

 E

DVRD

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DEREK VAN ALSTINE

2013 COPYRIGHT

DESIGNER

R
EA

R
D

O
N

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

C
A

PI
T

O
LA

, C
A

 9
50

10
42

9 
R

IV
ER

V
IE

W
 A

V
EN

U
E

035-121-34

NOV-22-13

ISSUE DESCRIPTION

SCHEMATIC DESIGN:

PLANNING SUBMITTAL:

REVISIONS:

INC.

HISTORIC SUBMITTAL

BUILDING SUBMITTAL:

JAN-05-15

-62-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



A6

APN:

71
6 

SO
Q

U
EL

 A
V

EN
U

E 
SU

IT
E 

A
, S

A
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z,

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
(8

31
)4

26
-8

40
0 

PH
O

N
E 

 (
83

1)
42

6-
84

46
 F

A
X

R
 E

 S
 I 

D
 E

 N
 T

 I 
A

 L
   

D
 E

 S
 I 

G
 N

   
IN

C
.

D
 E

 R
 E

 K
   

V
 A

 N
   

A
 L

 S
 T

 I 
N

 E

DVRD

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

DEREK VAN ALSTINE

2013 COPYRIGHT

DESIGNER

R
EA

R
D

O
N

 R
ES

ID
EN

C
E

C
A

PI
T

O
LA

, C
A

 9
50

10
42

9 
R

IV
ER

V
IE

W
 A

V
EN

U
E

035-121-34

NOV-22-13

ISSUE DESCRIPTION

SCHEMATIC DESIGN:

PLANNING SUBMITTAL:

REVISIONS:

INC.

HISTORIC SUBMITTAL

BUILDING SUBMITTAL:

JAN-05-15

-63-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s..p

d
f



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-64-



 

 

 

 

SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS REVIEW 

 

 

 

PROPOSED REHABILITATION AND ADDITION PROJECT 

for a 

Residential Contributor to the  

Old Riverview Historic District, a National Register-Listed Historic District 

 

 
Reardon Residence 

429 Riverview Drive, Capitola 

(Parcel Number 035-121-034) 

Capitola, Santa Cruz County 

California 

 

 

 
For: 

 

 City of Capitola  

Attn: Katie Cattan, AICP, Senior Planner 

Community Development Department 

420 Capitola Avenue 

Capitola, CA 95010 

 

 

 
 

Prepared by: 

 
A R C H I V E S  &  A R C H I T E C T U R E  L L C  

PO Box 1332 

San Jose, CA  95109 

408.369.5683 Vox 

408.228.0762 Fax 

 

Leslie A. G. Dill, Partner and Historic Architect 

 

 
March 26, 2015 

-65-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B. Archives and Architecture Historic Review.pdf



2 

 

ARCHIVES & ARCHITECTURE LLC 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

Executive Summary 

With some clarifications to the final design, the proposed project meets the Secretary of the Interior’s 

Standards for Rehabilitation (Standards). It is understood that the clarifications are minor, and it is 

recommended that the suggestions should be addressed in the form of “conditions for approval” appended 

to the City of Capitola’s planning approval process, and that the clarifications be required for 

incorporation in the design as part of the Building Department submittal. The analysis is summarized here 

in list form and described more fully in the report below: 

 

It is recommended that, as a clarification in the final permit drawings, the street-side historic 

window be shown as preserved and relocated from the second story to the first on the same 

elevation (Standard 5). 

 

It is recommended that as part of the final permit drawings, all specific original materials 

potentially impacted by the project be identified and documented as part of the building permit 

drawing set. (Standards 5 and 6). 

 

It is recommended that a general note that conveys the overall intent of Standard 6 is included 

prominently on the title page of the construction documents, and that the State Historical Building 

Code be referenced in the general notes, as well (Standard 6). 

 

 It is recommended that all proposed preservation treatments, including paint preparation, be 

identified prior to submittal of the building permit drawing set (Standards 6 and 7). 

 

Report Intent 

Archives & Architecture, LLC was retained by City of Capitola Community Development Department to 

conduct a Secretary of the Interior’s Standards Review of a proposed residential modification and 

addition at a historic house that is identified as a contributing structure to the National Register-listed Old 

Riverview Historic District in Capitola, California. Archives & Architecture was asked to review the 

exterior elevations, plans, and site plan of the project to determine if the proposed project is in compliance 

with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (Standards). The Standards are 

understood to be a common set of guidelines for the review of historic buildings and are used by many 

communities during the environmental review process to determine the potential impact of a project on an 

identified resource.  

 

Qualifications   

Leslie A. G. Dill, Partner of the firm Archives & Architecture, has a Master of Architecture with a 

certificate in Historic Preservation from the University of Virginia. She is licensed in California as an 

architect. Ms. Dill is listed with the California Office of Historic Preservation as meeting the requirements 

to perform identification, evaluation, registration, and treatment activities within the professions of 

Historic Architect and Architectural Historian in compliance with state and federal environmental laws. 

The Northwest Information Center utilizes the criteria of the National Park Service as outlined in 36 CFR 

Part 61. 

 

Review Methodology 

Leslie Dill reviewed the Architectural/Historical Inventory Forms provided by the City of Capitola. The 

individual forms are not dated, as they come from a larger document. It is assumed that they date from 

1986, when the Old Riverview Historic District was surveyed. The district was listed on the National 

Register in 1988. Due to the limited adopted documentation available on the subject parcel, a number of 

-66-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B. Archives and Architecture Historic Review.pdf



3 

 

ARCHIVES & ARCHITECTURE LLC 

 

 

assumptions about the significant historic features of the property were required to be incorporated into 

this report. Ms. Dill and Franklin Maggi, qualified architectural historian, together made a site visit, 

viewing the house and surrounding neighborhood from the public rights of way. They discussed the 

character-defining features of the neighborhood, and how the existing house design fits into the district as 

a whole. A list of the character-defining features is included within the analysis of this report. 

 

At the beginning of the review, the designer, Derek Van Alstine Residential Design, Inc., electronically 

forwarded an initial planning submittal set (Sheets T1 & 2, A1 through 9, and a site survey), dated 

November 22, 2013. Along with the drawings, Ms. Dill was sent a Standards analysis report prepared by 

Kent Seavey, dated December 2, 2013. The document provided invaluable background historical and 

architectural documentation; however, Ms. Dill did not fully concur with all of the design review analysis. 

Ms. Dill independently reviewed the initial drawing set according to the Standards. After she conducted 

her initial analysis and recommendations for revisions to the project, she prepared in memorandum form 

some recommendations for revisions. She then presented these recommendations to the City, and further 

clarified in a meeting with city staff and the project designer.  

 

The designer submitted a revised design in January 5, 2015; the city staff and Ms. Dill reviewed the 

design with him in a meeting where Ms. Dill verbally presented some minor recommendations for 

revisions. The final revised planning approval drawing set was submitted in Mid-March. The set includes 

sheets T1, A1 through A 6, E1 through E4, and a site survey. The drawings are dated January 5, 2015. 

This report is based on that submittal set. 

 

Project Constraints 

Please note that this is a particularly challenging design and analysis, for a number of reasons, all of 

which are addressed in this review. First, the property has not been individually evaluated, but is a listed 

contributor to a National Register historic district listed in the 1970s, so the documented basis for analysis 

is limited. It is important to note that the critical intent of the review is to confirm that the proposed 

project is compatible with a contributor to the Old Riverview Historic District, not as an individually 

listed property. Another major design/review concern is that the entire historic district is within a flood 

zone. All new construction in the area must conform to design parameters that would not be encountered 

in other historic districts. Adding complexity, the property has three major facades, the street façade, the 

river façade, and the adjacent public walkway façade, so all viewing angles have aspects of significance. 

The street view has been altered by the construction of a detached outbuilding to the front of that 

elevation; this accessory structure will be removed. Finally, the architect provided verbal information that 

the interiors of the house are an important part of the original design, and the drawing set confirms this 

assertion. Although it is a private home, a consideration in this review is that the exterior alterations need 

to address the preservation of the interior features. 

 

Disclaimers 

This report addresses the project plans in terms of historically compatible design of the exterior design 

only. The Consultant has not undertaken and will not undertake an evaluation or report on the structural 

conditions or other related safety hazards that might or might not exist at the site and building, and will 

not review the proposed project for structural soundness or other safety concerns. The Consultant has not 

undertaken analysis of the site to evaluate the potential for subsurface resources. 

 

 

  

-67-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B. Archives and Architecture Historic Review.pdf



4 

 

ARCHIVES & ARCHITECTURE LLC 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

 

Survey Status/Character of the Existing Resource/ 

The property at 429 Riverview Avenue is listed on the National Register as a contributor to the Old 

Riverview Historic District. According to Kent Seavey’s report, the house was constructed in the early-to-

mid-1930s, commensurate with its vernacular Eclectic-Revival and Late-Craftsman characteristics and 

materials. No adopted list of character-defining features exists, so Archives & Architecture created a list 

of assumed original features, cross-checked with the list from Mr. Seavey’s report: 

 

Character-defining features (assumed original): 

Massing and footprint of the house (one-and-one-half-story main wing with square footprint and 

internal balcony/mezzanine level and two-story façade overlooking the river; narrow, one-and-

two-story board-wall front wing, creating an unequal “L”-shaped footprint) 

Roof form: Distinctive bell-cast roofline covering the river wing; asymmetrical gabled roofline at the 

narrow street wing 

Simple bargeboards with tapered ends 

Turned finials at the apex of the end gables 

Board-and-batten siding 

Two original wood casement windows 

French doors 

 

Alterations include: 

River-side deck 

Chimney  

Scalloped window trim 

Aluminum windows and trim 

 

Summary of the Proposed Project 

The proposed project, as presented in the current set of architectural drawings noted above, includes the 

rehabilitation of the existing house, including the replacement of all recent non-historic alterations with 

more compatible materials, the demolition of a recent detached accessory building, and the addition of a 

new living space, raised over a car port on the street side of the property. 

 

 

SECRETARY’S STANDARD’S REVIEW: 

 

The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (Standards), originally published in 1977 and 

revised in 1990, include ten standards that present a recommended approach to repair, while preserving 

those portions or features that convey a resource’s historical, cultural, or architectural values. 

Accordingly, Standards states that, “Rehabilitation is defined as the act or process of making possible a 

compatible use for a property through repair, alterations, and additions while preserving those portions or 

features which convey its historical, cultural, or architectural values”. Following is a summary of the 

review with a list of the Standards and associated analysis for this project: 

 

Analysis 

 

1. “A property will be used as it was historically or be given a new use that requires minimal 

change to its distinctive materials, features, spaces, and spatial relationships.” 

 

 Analysis: The use of the single-family contributing residence does not change for this project. 

-68-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B. Archives and Architecture Historic Review.pdf



5 

 

ARCHIVES & ARCHITECTURE LLC 

 

 

 

2. “The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of 

historic materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that 

characterize a property will be avoided.” 

 

 Analysis: Although some original materials and features of the property are proposed for removal 

or relocation, no historic massing is proposed for demolition. The critical spatial relationships and 

spaces embodied in the historic design would be maintained, and compatible new spatial 

relationships would be created. The proposed addition attaches the house in a location that 

impacts the least amount of original building fabric, and it preserves the “L”-shaped footprint and 

original roof massing. The original massing will be preserved in three dimensions, with an open 

courtyard at the preserved street entrance to the house; this open space will be perceptible from 

the pedestrian walkway and should be visible from the street from various angles as well. 

 

3. “Each property will be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes 

that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or 

architectural elements from other historic properties, will not be undertaken.” 

 

 Analysis: There are no changes are proposed that might be mistaken for original features. 

Specifically, the replacement windows, although clad in wood, will have modern manufacturing; 

the siding will be differentiated, and the addition will be differentiated. See also Standard 9. 

 

4. “Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in their own right will be 

retained and preserved.” 

 

 Analysis: For this report, it is understood that no existing changes to the house have acquired 

historic significance in their own right. At the overall property, the front detached accessory 

structure proposed for demolition has not acquired significance. 

 

5. “Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize a property will be preserved.” 

 

 Analysis: The historic features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize the property are generally preserved in this proposal. Specifically, 

the asymmetrical roof forms, the majority of the eaves, and the board-and-batten siding are shown 

as preserved and/or restored as a part of the project, and the two historic windows will be 

preserved. It is understood that one historic window will be relocated within the composition to 

an existing location that has a replacement unit while the other historic window is preserved in-

situ. The street-view gable end will be abutted to the new addition; this proposed addition impacts 

as little of the exterior wall space as possible, creating an abutted hyphen between the large river-

side wing and the new addition. This design approach preserves the critical historic form and 

materials within the constraints of the historic district.  

 

6. “Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of 

deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will match the 

old in design, color, texture, and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features 

will be substantiated by documentary and physical evidence.” 

 

 Analysis: The project plans, as planning rather than building documents, do not specifically 

address the replacement of deteriorated features at the historic house, nor do they include a 

-69-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B. Archives and Architecture Historic Review.pdf



6 

 

ARCHIVES & ARCHITECTURE LLC 

 

 

general note that addresses this project as a historic preservation project. It is recommended that 

language referring to this Standard shall be included on the title sheet (T1) of the final permit 

drawings, and that all specific repairs, particularly repairs precipitated by structural upgrades, be 

identified prior to submittal of the building permit drawing set.  

 

7. “Chemical or physical treatments, if appropriate, will be undertaken using the gentlest 

means possible. Treatments that cause damage to historic materials will not be used.” 

 

 Analysis: Because this is a planning, rather than building set of drawings, no chemical treatments 

are shown as proposed in this project. It is recommended that all proposed preservation 

treatments (e.g., epoxy wood consolidant and paint preparation techniques), be identified prior to 

submittal of the building permit drawing set. 

 

8. “Archeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. If such resources must be 

disturbed, mitigation measures will be undertaken.” 

 

 Analysis: Archeological resources are not evaluated in this report. 

 

9. “New additions, exterior alterations or related new construction will not destroy historic 

materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new work 

shall be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, 

features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and 

its environment.” 

 

 Analysis: The current design of the project includes alterations and additions that are adequately 

compatible and differentiated from the historic design.  

 

 The proposed new replacement windows are compatible in scale with the historic wood casement 

windows, and they are sized and placed within existing openings that respond to an assumed 

historic fenestration configuration. The proposed windows have appropriately scaled multi-lite 

sash, while having a variety of window types (double-hung, fixed, casement) and modern 

manufacturing techniques that differentiate the new windows from the historic 2x3-lite and 2x2-

lite patterned wood casements. The simple board trim is proposed to match throughout, a 

compatible way of providing consistency between the proposed and existing window units. The 

clad wood windows are considerably more in keeping with the historic district than the current 

aluminum units. The replacement and new French doors will be clearly differentiated by their 

modern manufacturing. Their multi-lite design, placement within the walls, and overall design 

approach (openness vs. solid-wood doors) is compatible in scale and proportion with the historic 

design. 

 

 The proposed addition is compatible with the original house design in form, size, massing, and 

location, yet differentiated in form and detailing. Because of its height and proximity to the street, 

the proposed street-side addition will be more prominent along Riverview Avenue than the 

current set-back design, but the addition is designed to be keeping with the scale, massing, and 

materials of the Old Riverview Historic District, with regard to how the neighborhood is being 

slowly forced to evolve under the influence of the flood zoning. The location of the addition, 

toward the street, maintains the critically important “L”-shaped massing of the historic house, and 

allows the preservation of the significant river façade. The connection point is detailed to express 

the historic form of the house.  

 

-70-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B. Archives and Architecture Historic Review.pdf



7 

 

ARCHIVES & ARCHITECTURE LLC 

 

 

 The massing and size of the addition are compatible with the historic property and neighborhood. 

The two-story addition is designed as a raised half-story, echoing the main river wing of the 

house with its full-width bell-cast roofline. It is taller than the historic house, by nature of the 

flood requirements, but slightly smaller in width and depth, and has a similar amount of solid wall 

planes, creating a hierarchy of form. The addition is differentiated in massing from the main wing 

by its raised design and open first floor, and also because the flared roof has a longer flat plane at 

the gable and a more subtle bell-cast at the eaves. It is further differentiated by its clipped gables, 

diminishing the visual impact of the roof and distinguishing them from the historic gabled ends 

with their finials. The addition has cross-gables that break up the visual size of the roof planes. 

This massing is compatible with the character-defining variety and smaller roof forms within the 

street wing of the historic house, which seems to have been built over a period of time. The cross 

gable forms create a sense of hierarchy, with the large, unbroken roofline of the original house 

taking precedence.  

 

 The siding of the addition is compatible with the historic house in scale and material. The 

addition is differentiated by its shingle siding, in subtle contrast to the original house board-and-

batten siding. The shingles represent a wood siding material with small-scale repetitive 

components, compatible with the original. The use of vertical boards at the underside of the 

raised addition (at the car port) is compatible with the board-and-batten siding of the house, and 

also echoes the use of board fences at the street frontages within the district. 

 

 The design of the addition trim, with flat-board belly-bands, vertical corner boards and simple 

eave fascia boards, serves to visually separate the new from the original with lines, while visually 

unifying the design with the historic materials and sizes. The car-port posts are of a scale, 

placement, and material that also meet the design intent of this Standard. 

 

 The windows of the addition are compatible in scale and materials with the historic house and 

historic district; they are a traditional size and are divided into lites that are similar to the house 

and its surroundings. They are placed around the walls in proportion to scale of the entire 

property. The wood cladding maintains the design vocabulary of the property and district. 

 

10. “New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a 

manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic 

property and its environment would be unimpaired.” 

 

 Analysis: The essential form and integrity of the historic property would be maintained in this 

project. While some framing would need to be restored, the remaining character-defining form 

and materials of the house would be unimpaired in this project. 

 

Conclusion 

The proposed design is generally compatible with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for 

Rehabilitation. Minor clarifications are recommended to be included in the building permit submittal set. 

These include the clarification of the relocation of the historic window on the east façade, cover-page 

references to the California Historical Building Code and the significance of the house, and the 

identification of all preservation treatments of damaged and worn materials.  

-71-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B. Archives and Architecture Historic Review.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-72-



-73-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C. Kent Seavey Historic Review.pdf



-74-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C. Kent Seavey Historic Review.pdf



-75-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C. Kent Seavey Historic Review.pdf



-76-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C. Kent Seavey Historic Review.pdf



-77-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C. Kent Seavey Historic Review.pdf



-78-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C. Kent Seavey Historic Review.pdf



-79-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C. Kent Seavey Historic Review.pdf



-80-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C. Kent Seavey Historic Review.pdf



-81-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C. Kent Seavey Historic Review.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-82-



  

 

      
PROJECT APPLICATION #13-179 

429 RIVERVIEW AVENUE, CAPITOLA 
ADDITION TO SINGLE FAMILY HOME 

 
COASTAL FINDINGS 
 

D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific 
written factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development 
conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

 The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan (LCP). 
The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 
access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), 
to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and 
decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an 
access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how 
the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the 
dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the 
individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other current 
projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the 
regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity 
of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative build-out. 
Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal access and 
recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical 
characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland 
recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the 
importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities;  
 
 The proposed project is located at 429 Riverview Avenue.  The home is not located in an 

area with coastal access. The home will not have an effect on public trails or beach 
access. 
 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 
including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 
shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season 
when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 

-83-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment D. Coastal Findings.pdf



  

 

shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description and 
analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative 
effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of 
the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability of 
the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. 
Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public 
tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 
 

 The proposed project is located along Riverview Avenue.  No portion of the project is 
located along the shoreline or beach.   

 
(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 
public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) 
who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the 
nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the 
record owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner 
to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

 There is not history of public use on the subject lot.     

(D)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the 
development which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

 The proposed project is located on private property on Riverview Avenue.  The project 
will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, public 
recreation areas, or views to the shoreline.   

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other 
aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the 
public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any 
alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any 
diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be 
attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development.    
 

 The proposed project is located on private property that will not impact access and 
recreation.  The project does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands 
committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of 
public use areas. 
 

 (D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 
one of the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported 

-84-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment D. Coastal Findings.pdf



  

 

by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, 
bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, 
the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis 
for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, 
intensity, hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile 
coastal resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area 
of public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

 The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character 
of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 The project is located in a residential lot.   

 b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 The project is located on a flat lot.   

 c. Recreational needs of the public; 

 The project does not impact recreational needs of the public.  

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the 
project back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is 
the mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as 
part of a management plan to regulate public use. 

 
(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 
appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, 
required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 
 

 No legal documents to ensure public access rights  are required for the proposed 

-85-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment D. Coastal Findings.pdf



  

 

project 
  

(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  

 
SEC. 30222 

The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational facilities 
designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall have priority over 
private residential, general industrial, or general commercial development, but not over 
agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

 The project involves a single family home on a residential lot of record.     

SEC. 30223 

Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for such 
uses, where feasible. 

 The project involves a single family home on a residential lot of record.   

c)  Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed areas 
shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of attraction for 
visitors. 

 

 The project involves a single family home on a residential lot of record.   

 (D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for 
provision of public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of 
transportation and/or traffic improvements; 
 

 The project involves the construction of a single family home.  The project complies 
with applicable standards and requirements for provision for parking, pedestrian 
access, alternate means of transportation and/or traffic improvements.   

 
(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 
city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 

 The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by the 
Municipal Code.   

  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views 
to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

 The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views.  The project 
will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline.   

 
(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 

 The project is located on a legal lot of record with available water and sewer services.   

 
(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 

 The project is located within close proximity of the Capitola fire department.  Water is 

-86-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment D. Coastal Findings.pdf



  

 

available at the location.   

 (D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 

 

 The project is for a single family home.  The GHG emissions for the project are projected 
at less than significant impact. All water fixtures must comply with the low-flow standards of 
the soquel creek water district. 

 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 

 The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 
 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 

 The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes.   
 
(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies;  
 

 Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with established policies. 
 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 

 The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where Monarch 
Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

 Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with applicable erosion 
control measures. 

 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 
 

 Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professionals for this 
project.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project applicant shall 
comply with all applicable requirements of the most recent version of the California 
Building Standards Code.   
 

(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 
the project design; 

 

 Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project complies with geological, 
flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for and will be mitigated in the project design. 

   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  

 The proposed project complies with shoreline structure policies. 

-87-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment D. Coastal Findings.pdf



  

 

  
(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 
 

 This use is a conditional use consistent with the Single Family zoning district.  

(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project review procedures; 
 

 The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements and 
project development review and development procedures. 

 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 

 The project site is located within the area of the Capitola parking permit program. 

-88-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment D. Coastal Findings.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JUNE 4, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 1601 41st Ave.  #15-067  APN: 034-151-20 

Design permit and conditional use permit for expansion of nursery, outdoor sales, and 
exterior modifications, exception for a 16-foot fence, and sign permit for Orchard 
Supply Hardware in the Community Commercial (CC) zoning district.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit.   
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Ow Trusts 
Representative: Nicholas De Torres, filed 4/16/15 

  
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The application is for a design permit and conditional use permit (CUP) for a 744 square foot 
expansion of the nursery, exterior remodel, and outdoor display areas for the existing Orchard Supply 
Hardware store (Attachment A: Plans).  The application also includes new signs for the entry and 
nursery (Attachment B: Signs).  
 
BACKGROUND 
On May 13th, 2015, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application.   

 City Architect Frank Phantom reviewed the application and expressed support for the 
proposed remodel and expansion.      

 City Landscape Architect Craig Waltz reviewed the application and requested that a landscape 
plan be submitted to show the existing trees and any new landscaping along 38th.    

 City Public Works Representative Danielle Uharriet provided the applicant with stormwater 
requirement information.  She suggested a demonstration area in the garden expansion for the 
rain collection buckets.     

 City Building Official Brian Van Son discussed building code compliance and fire standards 
with the applicant.   

 City Historic Representative, Carolyn Swift, mentioned that this building was one of the first 
commercial buildings along the 41st Avenue corridor.  She thought the building had been 
modified significantly since it was originally built.   

 
DISCUSSION 
King’s Plaza is located on the southwest corner of the intersection of 41st Avenue and Capitola Road.  
King’s Plaza is a large (11.4 acre) commercial parcel with over 600 linear feet along Capitola Road 
and over 800 feet along 41st Avenue.  The plaza is set back from the road with parking located 
between the plaza and the street.  King’s Plaza hosts a mix of uses including a movie theater, grocery 
store, hardware store, restaurants, and other retail uses.  The Shell gas station located in front of the 
plaza is not under the same ownership.        

-89-

Item #: 5.B. 1601 41st Avenue Orchard Supply Hardware Expansion.pdf



 

 
Orchard Supply Hardware is the anchor tenant within the large building located in the north-west 
corner of the property.  The large retail hardware store utilizes the majority of the multi-tenant building 
and smaller retail, restaurants, and personal service establishments which line the north elevation 
facing Capitola Road and the south elevation facing into the parking lot of Kings Plaza.  The project is 
a remodel of the Orchard Supply Hardware store.  The entire building will be painted to create an 
updated look for the entire structure.       
 
Site and Structural Data 
The application includes expanding the existing nursery by 744 square feet. The nursery will be 
updated to include a new entrance accessible from the south elevation. The following table includes 
the zoning requirements for the proposal: 
 

Development Standards Proposed 

Use Retail with outdoor 
display 

Principally permitted or conditional use CUP for outdoor display 

Height: 40 ft  26’ 4” 

Front Yard: Landscaped areas of front yards shall be set back fifteen 
feet in accordance with the 41st Avenue design guidelines. 

No changes 

Side and rear yard setbacks may be required through architectural and 
site approval in order to provide adequate light and air, assure sufficient 
distance between adjoining uses to minimize any incompatibility and to 
promote excellence of development; except that where a side or rear 
yard is provided it shall be at least ten feet wide 

Existing:  
10’ at narrowest 

location.   
25’ behind nursery.  

Front yards and corner lot side yards shall not be used for required 
parking facilities. 

No changes 

Parking Required Proposed 

Retail 1/300 sf 

Restaurant, including all 

prepared food service 

1/60 sf floor area 

available for dining 

1/300 sf all 

other floor area 

Office 1/300 sf 
 

874 spaces required by 
zoning.  

654 typical 
642 Holiday due to 
Seasonal Sales. 

 
    

Kimley-Horn parking study indicates parking can be 
met onsite.  During December seasonal weekend 

peak there is a max of 50 to 60% occupancy within 
existing parking. 

Loading Areas per 17.51 No change to loading 

Landscaping. Five percent of the lot area shall be landscaped to ensure 
harmony with adjacent development in accordance with architectural and 
site approval standards 

6.8% 

 
The mixed use center is not in compliance with the City’s parking requirement of 874 onsite parking 
spaces.   The commercial center has 654 onsite parking spaces.  The City hired Kimley-Horn to 
complete a mixed use parking study for the project to analyze the city’s requirements relative to mixed 
use parking standards. The study made findings that parking is available on site for the proposed 
expansion.  The study also found that 12 spaces to be utilized for seasonal display could be 
converted as well without negatively impacting parking.  The study found that parking lot occupancy 
during a December weekend peak is between 50 and 60%.   
 
 

-90-

Item #: 5.B. 1601 41st Avenue Orchard Supply Hardware Expansion.pdf



 

 
Design Permit 
A design permit is required for the proposed modification to the exterior of the commercial buildings.  
The Planning Commission may utilize the following 41st Avenue Design Guidelines in their review of 
the project:   
 

1. Architectural consistency for all sides of the building must be carried out with colors, materials 
and details.  Facades or fronts unrelated to the rest of the building shall not be used.     

2. Materials, colors and textures shall be consistent with the building’s design theme.  
6. Entries should be protected from wind, rain and sun and provide a distinct entrance to the 

building. 
7. Buildings shall use design elements in public areas which provide a sense of human scale 

(insets, overhangs).  Elements of pedestrian interest shall be included at ground floor levels 
(courtyards, display windows). 

8. Projects containing many buildings or single large structures shall provide variety in building 
shape, height, roof lines, and setbacks.  Front of buildings shall provide variety and interest.  

9. Distinctive “trademark” buildings are discouraged. 
 
The Orchard Supply Hardware will undergo a full exterior remodel to update the outdated look of the 
existing large retail site.  The existing shingled canopy and roof will be removed and replaced with a 
new standing seam metal roof.  A new exposed beam truss will be installed over the entryway at the 
front of the building.  The existing stone veneer on both sides of the entryway will be replaced with 
stucco.  The exterior of the smaller commercial tenants along north and south of the structure will be 
freshly painted to create a uniform look throughout the entire multi-tenant building.  The south 
elevation around the nursery will be updated with a new 16 foot high wrought iron fence creating 
visibility into the area.  The new design elements will provide variety and interest within the large 
structure.  The proposed design is consistent with the 41st Avenue design guidelines.   
  
Fence Height Exception 
A new 16 feet high black wrought iron fence is proposed around the nursery.  The Planning 
Commission may grant exception for fences beyond the maximum 8 feet fence height. A 16 feet high 
fence around a commercial area is appropriate to avoid issues with vandalism and theft.  
 
Conditional Use Permit 
The expansion of the store, permanent outdoor display, and seasonal outdoor sales require a CUP 
within the CC zoning district.  In considering an application for a CUP, the Planning Commission must 
give due regard to the nature and condition of all adjacent uses and structures.  
  
The new garden area will expand the existing enclosed hardware store from 53,457 square feet to 
54,201 square feet. The Orchard Supply Hardware has included a request for a permanent outdoor 
display area and a season outdoor display area and fix the ongoing issue of non-permitted outdoor 
displays.  The application includes two 308 square feet permanent outdoor display areas located on 
each side of the front entrance and a 2,218 square feet seasonal outdoor display area.  The seasonal 
display is proposed within twelve parking spaces for 30 day periods in late February and the entire 
month of December.  There are no specific review criteria for outdoor displays or seasonal outdoor 
displays within the zoning ordinance.  In issuing the CUP, the Planning Commission may impose 
requirements and conditions with respect to location, design, siting, maintenance and operation of 
the use  as may be necessary for the protection of the adjacent properties and in the public interest.  
Conditions of approval 2 through 12 have been included to prevent future issues that may arise within 
outdoor display areas.   

 
  

-91-

Item #: 5.B. 1601 41st Avenue Orchard Supply Hardware Expansion.pdf



 

Sign Permit 
Kings Plaza does not have a master sign program to regulate signs throughout the multi-tenant 
center.  The tenants within Kings Plaza have box signs (2 feet x 12 feet) that are replaced in kind 
when there is a change in tenant.  As the anchor tenant for the structure, the Orchard Supply 
Hardware has had branding signs that are larger than the box signs.  Within the current application, 
two new wall signs are proposed. One wall sign is proposed within the open truss over the entrance 
and a second wall sign is proposed over the nursery entrance.  The zoning code allows each wall sign 
to be no greater than one square foot of sign area for each linear foot of business frontage.  The front 
(east) elevation is 150 linear feet.  The proposed sign on the front elevation is 6 feet tall by 20.3 feet 
wide and approximately 110 square feet in size due to the curved edge.  The nursery sign will be 
located on the south elevation.  The south elevation is 165 feet in length.  The proposed sign is 13.5 
feet wide by 4 feet tall and approximately 54 square feet.  The south elevation includes two retail 
shops that line the outside of the Orchard Supply Hardware store.  These stores each have a box sign 
that is 24 square feet in size.  With the proposed new sign, the south elevation will have a total of 102 
square feet of signs, under the 165 square foot maximum and therefore complies.     
 
Landscaping 
King’s Plaza is landscaped along 41st Avenue, Capitola Road, and within existing parking lot planters.  
The 38th Avenue street frontage has 6 London plane trees, 1 ash tree, and 1 flowering pear tree.  The 
applicant plans to remove the flowering pear tree on the south west corner to accommodate the new 
trash enclosures.  Two new purple leaf plum trees will be placed at the entrance of Capitola Road.  
The applicant will also plant manzanita shrubs along 38th Avenue as screening between the street and 
the loading area/yard.    Ground cover will also be planted along 38th Avenue in this area.   
 
CEQA 
This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental Quality Act 
and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. The proposed 
project involves a hardware store occupying an existing commercial space. No adverse environmental 
impacts were discovered during project review by staff. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve application #15-067 subject to the following 
conditions and based upon the following findings: 
 
CONDITIONS 
1.  The project approval consists of a Conditional Use Permit to expand the Orchard Supply 

Hardware Store, allow outdoor display, allow seasonal outdoor displays, an exception to fence 
height, and allow new signs at 1601 41st Avenue within Kings Plaza. The proposed project is 
approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on 
June 4, 2015 except as modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during 
the hearing. 
 

2.  Pavers or stamped concrete must be included in the building plan submittal to clearly 
delineate/identify the area permitted within the conditional use permit for outdoor display.  The two 
outdoor display areas are permitted at a maximum of 6.5 feet by 47.5 feet on each side of the front 
entry way.  No goods or materials utilized for the display may be located outside the delineated 
area.  The area may only be expanded with the approval of a modification to the CUP by the 
Planning Commission. 

 
3.  The outdoor display merchandise shall be the merchandise of the Orchard Supply Hardware only.  

The outdoor display area shall be managed by the Orchard Supply Hardware.  The outdoor 
display conditional use permit is not transferable between properties or businesses. 

      

-92-

Item #: 5.B. 1601 41st Avenue Orchard Supply Hardware Expansion.pdf



 

4.  All outdoor display merchandise shall only be displayed during business hours.   
 
5.  The outdoor display shall not obstruct pedestrian, bicycle, vehicular, or emergency services 

access and shall maintain four (4) feet of unobstructed access provided, however, that the width of 
the clear area shall in all events meet all applicable state and federal regulations and building 
codes, including all barrier-free and ADA requirements. 

 
6.  Outdoor vending machines and drop boxes or donation bins shall be prohibited.  
 
7.  The outdoor displays shall not contain any information which would routinely be placed on a 

business sign located on the building such as the name or type of business, hours of business 
operation, business logo, brand name information, etc. The outdoor display may include a sign 
which indicates the price of the display item(s) or simply indicates a "sale" on the item(s) limited to 
8.5” x 11”. 

 
8.  All outdoor displays shall be continuously maintained in a state of order, security, safety and 

repair. The display surface shall be kept clean, neatly painted, and free of rust, corrosion, 
protruding tacks, nails and/or wires. Any cracked, broken surfaces, or other unmaintained or 
damaged portion of a display shall be repaired or replaced or removed within thirty (30) days. 

  
9.  All outdoor displays shall be tasteful and assist in creating a top quality shopping environment. No 

display shall contain obscene, indecent or immoral matter.  
 
10. The outdoor displays must be self-supporting, stable and weighted or constructed to withstand 

being overturned by wind or contact. The display shall not be permanently affixed to any object, 
structure or the ground including utility poles, light poles, trees or any merchandise or products 
displayed outside permanent buildings. 

 
11. The seasonal display area is allowed between the hours of 9 am and 9 pm.  Lighting for the 

seasonal display area shall only light the area within the display.  The lighting must be terminated 
at 9 pm each evening.    

 
12. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or modifications 

to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent with the plans 
approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and site improvements shall be 
completed according to the approved plans 
 

13. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in full on 
the cover sheet of the construction plans.  

 
14. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested and 

submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes shall 
require Planning Commission approval.   

 
15. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #15-067 shall be paid 

in full. 
 

16. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 
except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise shall 
be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty a.m. on weekdays. Construction 
noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and 
four p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 

 

-93-

Item #: 5.B. 1601 41st Avenue Orchard Supply Hardware Expansion.pdf



 

17. Parking for the proposed hardware store expansion must be accommodated within the onsite 
parking.   

 
18. Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 

demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 
 

19. The applicant was granted a conditional use permit for the outdoor displays.  In any case where 
the conditions of the permit are not complied with, the community development director shall give 
notice thereof to the permittee, which notice shall specify a reasonable period of time within which 
to perform said conditions and correct said violation. If the permittee fails to comply with said 
conditions, or to correct said violation, within the time allowed, notice shall be given to the 
permittee of intention to revoke such permit at a hearing to be held not less than thirty calendar 
days after the date of such notice. Following such hearing and, if good cause exists therefore, the 
Planning Commission may revoke the permit.  

 
20. The conditional use permit will expire in the case where the conditional use permit has not been 

used within two years after the date of granting thereof.  Any interruption or cessation beyond the 
control of the property owner shall not result in the termination of such right or privilege. A permit 
shall be deemed to have been “used” when actual substantial, continuous activity has taken place 
upon the land pursuant to the permit. 

 
 
FINDINGS 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance and General Plan. 
Community Development Department Staff, the Architecture and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have reviewed the application and determined that the proposed expansion 
of the business, outdoor displays, and signs may be granted a design permit and conditional use 
permit within the CC Zoning District. The use meets the intent and purpose of the Community 
Commercial Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure that the use is 
consistent with the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
Community Development Department Staff, the Architecture and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have reviewed the proposed use and determined that the use complies with 
the applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and therefore maintain the character and 
integrity of this area of the City. Conditions of approval have been included to carry out these 
objectives. 

C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental 
Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 
The proposed project involves the expansion of the existing hardware store within an existing 
commercial space. No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by 
either the Planning Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Plans 
B.  Parking Study  
C.  Sign Plan 
D.  Landscape Plan 

 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan, AICP  

Senior Planner  

-94-

Item #: 5.B. 1601 41st Avenue Orchard Supply Hardware Expansion.pdf



TITLE SHEET A
0.

1

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
 S

U
P

P
LY

 H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

TE
N

A
N

T

O
W

N
E

R
 R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
TA

TI
V

E

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

S
Y

M
B

O
LS

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
E

P
A

R
TM

E
N

T 
S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
 S

U
P

P
LY

 H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F 
W

O
R

K
S

H
E

E
T 

IN
D

E
X

16
01

 4
1S

T 
S

TR
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
LA

, C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA

1601 41ST AVENUE
CAPITOLA, CA 95010

C
A

U
TI

O
N

:  
 IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T 

IS
 N

O
T 

24
"x

36
" I

T 
IS

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T 

N

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

S
IT

E

1

-95-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



OVERALL SITEPLAN A
1.

0
O

V
E

R
A

LL
 S

IT
E

P
LA

N
1

0
20
'

40
'

80
'

16
0'

N

1601 41ST AVENUE
CAPITOLA, CA 95010

C
A

U
TI

O
N

:  
 IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T 

IS
 N

O
T 

24
"x

36
" I

T 
IS

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T 

-96-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



EXISTING/DEMO SITE PLAN A
1.

0a
E

X
IS

TI
N

G
/D

E
M

O
 S

IT
E

 P
LA

N
1

0
15
'

30
'

60
'

12
0'

N

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

/D
E

M
O

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 N
O

TE
S

S
IT

E
 L

E
G

E
N

D

#E #D #A

1601 41ST AVENUE
CAPITOLA, CA 95010

C
A

U
TI

O
N

:  
 IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T 

IS
 N

O
T 

24
"x

36
" I

T 
IS

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T 

(E
)

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
S

U
P

P
LY

H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

36
,0

33
 S

F

14
E

2A
26

E

29
E

28
E

10
E

9E

7E

7E

1E

8E
4E

3E
3E

3E
3E

3E
3E

3E
3E

3E
3E

6E

16
E

1A
6E

1A6E1A9E

2A
4E

-97-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



SITE PLAN A
1.

1
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N
1

0
15
'

30
'

60
'

12
0'

N

S
IT

E
 N

O
TE

S

S
IT

E
 L

E
G

E
N

D

#E #N #A

1601 41ST AVENUE
CAPITOLA, CA 95010

C
A

U
TI

O
N

:  
 IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T 

IS
 N

O
T 

24
"x

36
" I

T 
IS

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T 

26
E

29
E

28
E

9E

7E

7E

8E
4E

3E
3E

3E
3E

3E
3E

3E
3E

3E
3E

26
E

29
E

28
E

9E

7E

7E

8E
4E

3E
3E

3E
3E

3E
3E

3E
3E

3E
3E

14
E

2A

10
E

6E

16
E

1A
6E

1A6E1A9E

1E
2A

4E

-98-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



1601 41ST AVENUE
CAPITOLA, CA 95010

C
A

U
TI

O
N

:  
 IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T 

IS
 N

O
T 

24
"x

36
" I

T 
IS

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T 

EXISTING/DEMO FLR. PLAN A
2.

0

N

D
E

M
O

LI
TI

O
N

 N
O

TE
S

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

/ D
E

M
O

 F
IR

S
T 

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N
1

LE
G

E
N

D

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

/D
E

M
O

 M
E

ZZ
A

N
IN

E
 P

LA
N

2
0

8'
16
'

32
'

64
'

0
8'

16
'

32
'

-99-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



G
LA

SS

1601 41ST AVENUE
CAPITOLA, CA 95010

C
A

U
TI

O
N

:  
 IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T 

IS
 N

O
T 

24
"x

36
" I

T 
IS

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T 

FLOOR PLAN A
2.

1

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N
 N

O
TE

S

N
FI

R
S

T 
FL

O
O

R
 P

LA
N

1

LE
G

E
N

D

M
E

ZZ
A

N
IN

E
 P

LA
N

2
0

8'
16
'

32
'

64
'

0
8'

16
'

32
'

64
'

-100-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 E
A

S
T 

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 E
A

S
T 

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
2

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
O

U
TH

 E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
3

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
O

U
TH

 E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
4

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS A
4.

0

0
8'

16
'

32
'

64
'

0
8'

16
'

32
'

64
'

0
8'

16
'

32
'

64
'

0
8'

16
'

32
'

64
'

1601 41ST AVENUE
CAPITOLA, CA 95010

C
A

U
TI

O
N

:  
 IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T 

IS
 N

O
T 

24
"x

36
" I

T 
IS

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T 

T

E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 L

E
G

E
N

D

E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 N

O
TE

S

-101-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS A
4.

1

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 W
E

S
T 

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 W
E

S
T 

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
2

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 N
O

R
TH

 E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
3

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 N
O

R
TH

 E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
4

0
8'

16
'

32
'

64
'

0
8'

16
'

32
'

64
'

0
8'

16
'

32
'

64
'

0
8'

16
'

32
'

64
'

1601 41ST AVENUE
CAPITOLA, CA 95010

C
A

U
TI

O
N

:  
 IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T 

IS
 N

O
T 

24
"x

36
" I

T 
IS

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T 

T

E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 L

E
G

E
N

D

E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 N

O
TE

S

-102-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



ENTRY TRUSS & CANOPY PLAN A
4.

21601 41ST AVENUE
CAPITOLA, CA 95010

C
A

U
TI

O
N

:  
 IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T 

IS
 N

O
T 

24
"x

36
" I

T 
IS

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T 

E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 L

E
G

E
N

D

E
N

TR
Y

 T
R

U
S

S
 A

N
D

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 P
LA

N
1

E
N

TR
Y

 T
R

U
S

S
 A

N
D

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 P
LA

N
2

E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 N

O
TE

S

T

-103-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



NURSERY ENTRANCE A
4.

31601 41ST AVENUE
CAPITOLA, CA 95010

C
A

U
TI

O
N

:  
 IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T 

IS
 N

O
T 

24
"x

36
" I

T 
IS

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T 

E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 N

O
TE

S

E
N

TR
Y

 N
U

R
S

E
R

Y
 E

LE
V

A
TI

O
N

1

E
N

TR
Y

 N
U

R
S

E
R

Y
  P

LA
N

2

TR
A

SH
/R

EC
YC

LE

-104-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



-105-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



42

8
12

13 15
1110

16

7
31

6
14

DETAILS A
6.

0

C
Y

C
LO

O
P

S
 B

IK
E

 R
A

C
K

 (5
 S

TA
LL

S
)

A
V

E
N

U
E

 S
E

R
IE

S
 L

IG
H

T 
FI

X
TU

R
E

1

W
A

LL
M

O
U

N
TS

 L
IG

H
T 

FI
X

TU
R

E

1601 41ST AVENUE
CAPITOLA, CA 95010

C
A

U
TI

O
N

:  
 IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T 

IS
 N

O
T 

24
"x

36
" I

T 
IS

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T 

9

E
N

LA
R

G
E

D
 O

U
TD

O
O

R
S

E
A

S
O

N
A

L 
D

IS
P

LA
Y

 A
R

E
A

E
N

LA
R

G
E

D
 O

U
TD

O
O

R
P

E
R

M
A

N
E

N
T 

D
IS

P
LA

Y
 A

R
E

A

-106-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



Kings Plaza OSH Store Expansion: Trip Generation and Parking Memorandum – City of Capitola
                                                                                                                                       Page 1

MEMORANDUM
From: Frederik Venter, PE, Janice Soriano, EIT – Kimley-Horn and Associates

To: Katie Cattan, AICP – City of Capitola

Date:   May 28, 2015

Re: Trip Generation & Parking Analysis for the OSH Store Expansion in Capitola

This memorandum contains the trip generation and parking analysis requested for the Orchard Supply
Hardware (OSH) Store in Kings Plaza Shopping Center on 41st Avenue in Capitola, California. The project
proposes to remodel the existing OSH Store to provide an additional 744 square feet to its nursery area,
which is located in the back (southwest side) of the building. Additionally, the project proposes to include
a permanent outdoor display area of 616 square feet at the front (east side) of the building and a seasonal
sales  area  that  will  take  up  2,218  square  feet  of  the  parking  lot  east  of  the  OSH  Store  building.  The
Proposed OSH Store Site Plan can be found in Appendix A. No parking will be lost with the 616-square-
foot display area.

A parking analysis is provided in this memo to evaluate the parking supply, demand, and requirements
per City code at the Kings Plaza Shopping Center due to the OSH Store remodel. Methods to conduct the
parking study are based on the shared parking model utilizing ITE and ULI shared parking methodologies
assumed in the parking study previously submitted by Kimley-Horn for Kings Plaza Shopping Center in
February 2014.

1. Trip Generation
To determine the increase in the number of daily, AM peak hour and PM peak hour trips due to the OSH
Store nursery expansion, trip generation for both existing and proposed conditions were calculated and
the net project trips were then found. Using rates published by the ITE Trip Generation Handbook, 9th

Edition in 2012, the project is expected to generate a net increase of 23 daily trips, a net increase of 1 trip
in the AM peak (0 in, 1 out), and a net increase of 2 trips in the PM peak (1 in, 1 out). Table 1 below
summarizes these calculations.

-107-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



Kings Plaza OSH Store Expansion: Trip Generation and Parking Memorandum – City of Capitola
                                                                                                                                       Page 2

Table 1. Trip Generation for OSH Store

2. Parking Analysis
Kings Plaza currently comprises 161,085 square feet of gross floor area (GFA) dedicated to various retail
and restaurant uses, as well as the CineLux Theatres which hosts 674 seats. CineLux Theatres will be
expanded in the near future to accommodate a total of 892 seats and 18,035 square feet GFA. Kimley-
Horn submitted a shared parking study for Kings Plaza Shopping Center on February 24, 2014 that
specifically evaluated the expected parking demand due to this movie theater expansion. This study can
be found in Appendix B.

This memo evaluates the impacts of the OSH Store renovations on parking while taking into account
findings from the 2014 study. While the nursery expansion and the permanent outdoor display area would
not displace any parking, the seasonal display area would displace a portion of the parking lot twice per
year. The number of parking spaces required by the City is therefore calculated to compare with total
parking supply during seasonal and non-seasonal periods.

City Parking Requirements
For purposes of this study, the movie theater expansion is assumed to be completed when the OSH Store
renovations are complete. Required parking for Kings Plaza, including both the CineLux Theatre and OSH
Store expansions, is calculated in Table 2 based on the parking standards contained in Section 17.51.130
of the Capitola Municipal Code.

WEEKDAY

Rates
Orchard Supply Hardware
Home Improvement Superstore2 862 30.74 1.49 5% 57% / 43% 2.33 8% 49% / 51%

Warehousing 150 3.56 0.30 8% 79% / 21% 0.32 9% 25% / 75%
Existing Uses
Orchard Supply Hardware
Home Improvement Superstore 862 45.52 1,000 Sq Ft GLA 1,399 68 39 / 29 106 52 / 54

Warehousing 150 7.93 1,000 Sq Ft 28 2 1 / 1 3 1 / 2

Subtotal: Existing Uses 1,427 70 40 / 30 109 53 / 56

Proposed Uses
Orchard Supply Hardware
Home Improvement Superstore 862 46.27 1,000 Sq Ft GLA 1,422 69 39 / 30 108 53 / 55

Warehousing 150 7.93 1,000 Sq Ft 28 2 1 / 1 3 1 / 2

Subtotal: Proposed Uses 1,450 71 40 / 31 111 54 / 57

Net Project Trips Generated 23 1 0 / 1 2 1 / 1

/ OUT Total Peak
Hour % Of ADT IN /Project Size

AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR

Notes:
1. Trip generation rates published by Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), "Trip Generation," 9th Edition, 2012.
2. The salesfloor and the nursery of the OSH store most closely match ITE Land Use 862, Home Improvement Store, and are therefore together defined under this land use.

OUTLand Uses ITE Land
Use Code Daily Trips Total Peak

Hour % Of ADT IN

-108-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



Kings Plaza OSH Store Expansion: Trip Generation and Parking Memorandum – City of Capitola
                                                                                                                                       Page 3

Table 2. Required Parking for Kings Plaza in Project Conditions

Based on the Municipal Code, Kings Plaza would be required to provide approximately 874 spaces. Per
the Proposed Site  Plan in Appendix A, the shopping center currently provides 654 parking spaces for
employees and customers. Additionally, as previously mentioned, the 2,218-square-foot seasonal sales
area on the parking lot would displace approximately 12 parking spaces two times per year 1, decreasing
the seasonal parking supply to 642 spaces.

The parking requirement per the City Zoning Code is much higher than the parking supply at Kings Plaza
because it does not take into consideration shared parking principles. Observations by Kimley-Horn staff
indicate there are still ample on-site parking spaces to meet the current needs of Kings Plaza 2. These
observations are also consistent with average rates reported in ITE Parking Generation.

1 Per email from Ema Shahinian to Katie Cattan on 4/13/15, the seasonal sales area in the parking lot will be utilized two times
per year accordingly: 1) Late February to March (30 consecutive calendar days) to display flowers, seeds, pots and soils; 2)
Entire month of December (30 consecutive calendar days) to display Christmas trees and holiday decorations.
2 April 23, 2015 observation made between 4-5PM which showed a parking demand of 273 vehicles.

Land Uses City Requirements2

ITE LU
Code(s)1 Description Project Conditions Size # Spaces Quantity per Unit

Orchard Supply Hardware Store
862 Home Improvement Store - retail 46,268 SF 155 1 per 300 SF GFA
150 Warehousing 7,933 SF 2 1 per 5,000 SF

Subtotal: OSH Store 54,201 SF 157
Shopping Center Uses (ITE LU 820)

820 Retail 35,533 SF 119 1 per 300 SF GFA
820 Restaurant Other3 9,300 SF 93 1 per 300 SF kitchen area;

1 per 60 SF dining area

Subtotal: Shopping Center Uses 44,833 SF 212
Other

444 Movie Theater w/Matinee 892 seats 298 1 per 3 seats
850a Supermarket (suburban) - retail 24,823 SF 83 1 per 300 SF GFA
880 Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive-Through

Window - retail
20,940 SF 70 1 per 300 SF GFA

932a1 Restaurant Dining3 5,397 SF 54 1 per 300 SF kitchen area;
1 per 60 SF dining area

Subtotal: Other 69,195 SF 505 spaces
Total Proposed Kings Plaza Area 168,229 SF
Total Supply (Average Weekday/Weekend) 654 spaces
Total Supply (Seasonal Peak Weekday/Weekend) 642 spaces
TOTAL SPACES/DEMAND (BASED ON INDIVIDUAL USES PER ITE) 874 spaces

Notes:
1. The average peak period parking demand is calculated based on methods used in the ITE Parking Generation, 4th Edition (2010).
2. Required parking is determined based on parking standards contained in Section 17.51.130 of the Capitola Municipal Code.
3. Restaurant uses are assumed to contain 50% kitchen space and 50% dining space.

-109-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



Kings Plaza OSH Store Expansion: Trip Generation and Parking Memorandum – City of Capitola
                                                                                                                                       Page 4

Shared Parking Analysis
To account for impacts on parking when the OSH Store is renovated, two methods were used to estimate
shared parking demand. The two methods were adapted from the 2014 shared parking study completed
by Kimley-Horn. The methodology and results from each are described in detail below.

Both  methods  assess  shared  parking  for  a  typical  Weekday  and  Saturday,  as  well  as  for  a  December
Weekday and Saturday in order to account for the decreased parking supply during times when the
seasonal sales area is in use. Data contained in Parking Generation 4th Edition published by ITE were used.
In some cases, data was not available for all land use types; therefore the following assumptions in both
methods were made regarding the data:

1. Parking demand for Kings Plaza Shopping Center was calculated based on average demand.
2. Average and December weekday demand for all land uses is calculated for Mondays-Thursday,

except for movie theaters. Weekday demand for the movie theater was based on Friday
conditions because movie theaters typically have higher parking demand on Fridays during the
weekday.

3. Average and December weekend demand for all land uses is calculated for Saturdays, except for
warehousing. Warehousing rates are not available for Saturdays; therefore, the Saturday rates
were assumed to be the same as a typical weekday.

4. December weekday and December weekend demand for all land uses are assumed to be the same
as Average weekday and Average weekend conditions, respectively, for the movie theater and for
warehousing.

Separated Land Uses Methodology
In this scenario parking was calculated by separating land uses into the following categories:

· Home Improvement Store (OSH Store and nursery area)
· Warehousing (separate OSH building materials pick-up yard)
· Movie Theater
· Supermarket
· Pharmacy/Drugstore
· High-Turnover Sit Down Restaurant
· Shopping Center (retail and other restaurants uses)

The  OSH  Store  consists  of  two  land  uses  per  ITE:  Home  Improvement  Store  (LU  Code  862)  and
Warehousing (LU Code 150). The OSH Store building and nursery area together most closely match LU
Code 862, while the OSH Store materials pick-up yard most closely matches LU Code 150.

The Movie Theater (CineLux Theatre), Supermarket (Savemart), Pharmacy/Drugstore (Rite Aid), and High-
Turnover Sit Down Restaurant (IHOP) most closely match ITE LU Codes 444, 850a, 880, and 932a1,
respectively.

-110-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



Kings Plaza OSH Store Expansion: Trip Generation and Parking Memorandum – City of Capitola
                                                                                                                                       Page 5

All other restaurant and retail uses were combined and therefore most closely match ITE LU Code 820.

Table 3 summarizes the supply and demand determined using the separated land use methodology and
compares them against parking requirements determined per City code. Parking supply and demand were
calculated for the average weekday, average weekend, December weekday, and December weekend in
pre-project and project conditions. The occupied parking spaces were then calculated to reflect the
current parking demand observed at Kings Plaza by Kimley-Horn staff.3

The percentage of spaces occupied on an average weekday/weekend was calculated from dividing the
estimated peak demand by the 654 spaces in the entire lot. The percentage of spaces occupied when the
OSH Store seasonal display area is in use was calculated from dividing the estimated peak demand by the
642 spaces not occupied by the seasonal display area.  Counted parking demand calculations depict that
minimal impact on parking is made from expanding the nursery area and adding a seasonal display area.
In project conditions, the counted parking demand shows that the parking lot would be 42% occupied on
an average weekday and 44% occupied on an average weekend, and that the project would occupy
between 1 and 2 additional parking spaces in both conditions. Similarly, with project implementation, the
lot would be 47% occupied on a December weekday and 50% occupied on a December weekend, and the
project would occupy 1 additional parking space in both conditions.

3 Counted parking demand was determined by proportioning ITE shared parking demand based on April 23, 2015 observation
made between 4-5PM by Kimley-Horn staff, which showed a parking demand of 273 vehicles.

-111-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



Kings Plaza OSH Store Expansion: Trip Generation and Parking Memorandum – City of Capitola
                                                                                                                                       Page 6

Table 3. Parking Requirements, Supply & Demand – Separated Land Use Methodology

Land Uses City Requirements2 Average Weekday3 Average Weekend4 December Weekday3,6 December Weekend4,6

ITE LU
Code(s)1 Description Pre-Project Conditions

Size5
Project Conditions

Size
#

Spaces Quantity per Unit

Pre-
Project

Peak
Total

Demand

Project
Peak
Total

Demand

Pre-
Project

Peak
Total

Demand

Project
Peak
Total

Demand

Pre-
Project

Peak
Total

Demand

Project
Peak
Total

Demand

Pre-
Project

Peak
Total

Demand

Project
Peak
Total

Demand

Orchard Supply Hardware Store
862 Home Improvement Store 45,524 SF 46,268 SF 155 1 per 300 SF GFA 102 103 145 148 90 92 129 131
150 Warehousing 7,933 SF 7,933 SF 2 1 per 5,000 SF 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Subtotal: OSH Store 53,457 SF 54,201 SF 157 106 107 149 152 94 96 133 135
Shopping Center Uses (ITE LU 820)

820 Retail 35,533 SF 35,533 SF 119 1 per 300 SF GFA
820 Restaurant Other 9,300 SF 9,300 SF 93 1 per 300 SF

kitchen area; 1 per
60 SF dining area

Subtotal: Shopping Center Uses 44,833 SF 44,833 SF 212 114 114 129 129 169 169 209 209
Other

444 Movie Theater w/Matinee 892 seats 892 seats 298 1 per 3 seats 232 232 169 169 232 232 169 169
850a Supermarket (suburban) 24,823 SF 24,823 SF 83 1 per 300 SF GFA 94 94 97 97 101 101 105 105

880 Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive-
Through Window            20,940  SF           20,940   SF 70 1 per 300 SF GFA 46 46 62 62 53 53 71 71

932a1 Restaurant Dining 5,397 SF 5,397 SF 54 1 per 300 SF
kitchen area; 1 per
60 SF dining area

57 57 73 73 59 59 76 76

Subtotal: Other 69,195 SF 69,195 SF 505 spaces 429 429 401 401 445 445 421 421
Total Supply (Average Weekday/Weekend) 654 spaces
Total Supply (Seasonal Peak Weekday/Weekend) 642 spaces
TOTAL SPACES/DEMAND (BASED ON INDIVIDUAL USES PER ITE) 874 spaces 649 650 679 682 708 710 763 765
TOTAL COUNTED DEMAND7 273 274 286 288 298 299 321 322
% OCCUPIED 42% 42% 44% 44% 46% 47% 50% 50%

Notes:
1. The average peak period parking demand is calculated based on methods used in the ITE Parking Generation, 4th Edition (2010).
2. Required parking is determined based on parking standards contained in Section 17.51.130 of the Capitola Municipal Code.
3. Average and December Weekday demand is calculated for Mondays-Thursdays, except for the following uses:

a) ITE LU Code 444 - weekday peak demand is based on Friday conditions because movie theaters typically have higher parking demand on Fridays duri ng the weekday.
4. Average and December Weekend demand is calculated for Saturdays, except for the following uses:

a) ITE LU Code 150 - weekend peak demand is not available for the Weekend (Saturday); therefore, the Saturday demand rates are assumed to be the s ame as a weekday.
5. Pre-project Conditions assume that the approved Cinelux Theatre expansion to accommodate 892 seats is complete.
6. Peak total demand during December weekday and weekend conditions are assumed to be the same as peak total demand during Av erage weekday and weekend conditions, respectively, for the following uses:

a) ITE LU Code 444 - Movie Theater w/Matinee
b) ITE LU Code 150 - Warehousing

7. Total counted demand was determined by proportioning Total ITE demand based on the 273 occupied parking spaces counted by Kimley-Horn during typical weekday peak hour on 4/23/15.

-112-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t B
. P

arkin
g

 S
tu

d
y.p

d
f



Kings Plaza OSH Store Expansion: Trip Generation and Parking Memorandum – City of Capitola
                                                                                                                                       Page 7

Shared Land Uses Methodology
In this scenario parking was calculated by combining the various land uses into three categories:

· Movie Theater
· Warehousing (separate OSH building materials pick-up yard)
· Shopping Center (retail and other restaurants uses)

The CineLux Theatre most closely matches the Movie Theater with Matinee (LU Code 444), just as it had
been categorized for the separate land uses method.

The OSH Store under this methodology is split into two land uses per ITE: Warehousing (LU Code 150) and
Shopping Center (LU Code 820). The OSH Store building and nursery area together most closely match LU
Code 862, while the OSH Store materials pick-up yard most closely matches LU Code 150.

All other restaurant and remaining retail uses not mentioned previously were again combined and
therefore most closely match ITE LU Code 820.

Table  4 summarizes the supply and demand determined using the shared land use methodology and
compares them against parking requirements determined per City code. Parking supply and demand were
calculated for the average weekday, average weekend, December weekday, and December weekend in
pre-project and project conditions. The occupied parking spaces were then calculated to reflect the
current parking demand observed at Kings Plaza by Kimley-Horn staff.4

The percentage of spaces occupied on an average weekday/weekend was calculated from dividing the
estimated peak demand by the 654 spaces in the entire lot. The percentage of spaces occupied when the
OSH Store seasonal display area is in use was calculated from dividing the estimated peak demand by the
642 spaces not occupied by the seasonal display area.  The results using the shared land use methodology
show a significantly lower parking demand than the separated land use methodology overall. Counted
parking demand calculations depict that minimal impact on parking is made from expanding the nursery
area and adding a seasonal display area.  In project conditions, the counted parking demand shows that
the parking lot would be 42% occupied on an average weekday and 41% occupied on an average weekend,
and that the project would occupy 1 additional parking space in both conditions. Similarly, with project
implementation, the lot would be 55% occupied on a December weekday and 60% occupied on a
December weekend, and the project would occupy 1 additional parking space in both conditions.

4 Counted parking demand was determined by proportioning ITE shared parking demand based on April 23, 2015
observation made between 4-5PM by Kimley-Horn staff, which showed a parking demand of 273 vehicles.

-113-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



Kings Plaza OSH Store Expansion: Trip Generation and Parking Memorandum – City of Capitola
                                                                                                                                       Page 8

Table 4. Parking Requirements, Supply & Demand – Shared Land Use Methodology

Land Uses City Requirements2 Average Weekday3 Average Weekend4 December Weekday3,6 December Weekend4,6

ITE LU
Code(s)1 Description Pre-Project Conditions

Size5
Project Conditions

Size
#

Spaces Quantity per Unit

Pre-
Project

Peak
Total

Demand

Project
Peak
Total

Demand

Pre-
Project

Peak
Total

Demand

Project
Peak
Total

Demand

Pre-
Project

Peak
Total

Demand

Project
Peak
Total

Demand

Pre-
Project

Peak
Total

Demand

Project
Peak
Total

Demand

Movie Theater
444 Movie Theater w/Matinee                892  seats                 892   seats 298 1 per 3 seats 232 232 169 169 232 232 169 169

Warehouse
150 Warehousing             7,933  SF             7,933   SF 2 1 per 5,000 SF 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Shopping Center
820 Home Improvement Store           45,524  SF           46,268   SF 155 1 per 300 SF GFA
820 Retail           35,533  SF           35,533   SF 119 1 per 300 SF GFA
820 Restaurant Other 9,300 SF 9,300 SF 93 1 per 300 SF

kitchen area; 1 per
60 SF dining area

820 Supermarket (suburban)           24,823  SF           24,823   SF 83 1 per 300 SF GFA

820
Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive-
Through Window           20,940  SF           20,940   SF

70 1 per 300 SF GFA
820 Restaurant Dining 5,397 SF 5,397 SF 54 1 per 300 SF

kitchen area; 1 per
60 SF dining area

Subtotal: Shopping Center        141,517  SF        142,261   SF 574 spaces 361 363 406 408 532 535 661 664
Total Supply (Average Weekday/Weekend) 654 spaces
Total Supply (Seasonal Peak Weekday/Weekend) 642 spaces
TOTAL SPACES/DEMAND (BASED ON SHARED USES PER ITE) 874 spaces 597 599 579 581 768 771 834 837
TOTAL COUNTED DEMAND7 273 274 265 266 352 353 382 383
% OCCUPIED 42% 42% 41% 41% 55% 55% 60% 60%

Notes:
1. The average peak period parking demand is calculated based on methods used in the ITE Parking Generation, 4th Edition (2010).
2. Required parking is determined based on parking standards contained in Section 17.51.130 of the Capitola Municipal Code.
3. Average and December Weekday demand is calculated for Mondays-Thursdays, except for the following uses:

a) ITE LU Code 444 - weekday peak demand is based on Friday conditions because movie theaters typically have higher parking demand on Fridays during the weekend.
4. Average and December Weekend demand is calculated for Saturdays, except for the following uses:

a) ITE LU Code 150 - weekend peak demand is not available for the Weekend (Saturday); therefore, the Saturday demand rates are assumed to be the same as a weekday.
5. Pre-project Conditions assume that the approved Cinelux Theatre expansion to accommodate 892 seats is complete.
6. Peak total demand during December weekday and weekend conditions are assumed to be the same as peak total demand during Average weekday and weekend conditions for the following uses:

a) ITE LU Code 444 - Movie Theater w/Matinee
b) ITE LU Code 150 - Warehousing

7. Total counted demand was determined by proportioning Total ITE demand based on the 273 occupied parking spaces counted by Kimley-Horn during typical weekday peak hour on 4/23/15.

-114-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t B
. P

arkin
g

 S
tu

d
y.p

d
f



Kings Plaza OSH Store Expansion: Trip Generation and Parking Memorandum – City of Capitola
                                                                                                                                       Page 9

3. Conclusions
The OSH Store renovations include a 744-square-foot expansion to the nursery area and the addition of
one permanent outdoor display area and one seasonal sales area on the parking lot. This project is
expected to generate a net increase of 23 daily trips, a net increase of 1 trip in the AM peak and 2 trips in
the PM peak to Kings Plaza. This increase is insignificant.

The parking evaluation, based on data published by ITE, confirms that the OSH Store renovations would
not significantly impact parking at Kings Plaza. With project implementation, Kings Plaza is anticipated to
have sufficient on-site parking spaces under average weekday and weekend conditions when considering
shared parking principles. Based on the counted parking demand at Kings Plaza, both shared parking study
methodologies indicate that parking demand would be approximately 42% during a  typical weekday peak
and between 41% and 44% during a typical weekend peak. Kings Plaza is also anticipated to have sufficient
on-site parking spaces under December (seasonal peak) conditions, with counted parking demand
calculations estimating between 47% and 55% parking lot occupancy during a December weekday peak
and between 50% and 60% occupancy during a December weekend peak. Under any of these conditions,
the project is anticipated to add no more than 2 additional parking spaces to the current parking demand
at Kings Plaza, and this increase is insignificant.

Appendices
A: Proposed Site Plan, Orchard Supply Hardware. Ware Malcomb, 06 April 2015.
B: Kings Plaza Shopping Center Shared Parking Evaluation Memo. Kimley-Horn, 25 February 2014.

-115-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



Appendix A
Proposed Site Plan

Orchard Supply Hardware

-116-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



C
A

P
IT

O
LA

 R
O

A
D

38TH AVENUE

41ST AVENUE

NORTH

SHEET

04.06.2015

SNR14-0020-00Orchard Supply Hardware

scheme:1

1601 41rst  Ave, Capitola, California 1

0 15 30 90 180

1" =30'

-117-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t B
. P

arkin
g

 S
tu

d
y.p

d
f



Appendix B
Shared Parking Study

Kings Plaza Shopping Center

-118-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



K:\BAY_TPTO\097763004 - Capitola - Kings Plaza Parking - FV - JW\Documents\KingsPlazaParkingStudy03.DraftMemoV4.doc

Suite 250
100 W. San Fernando Street,
San Jose, CA  95113

Office:  669-800-4146

Memorandum

To: Katie Cattan, AICP
Senior Planner
City of Capitola
420 Capitola Avenue
Capitola, CA 95010

From: Frederik Venter
Date: February 25, 2014
Re: King’s Plaza Shopping Center Shared Parking Evaluation

BACKGROUND

King’s Plaza Shopping Center is located at the intersection of 41st Avenue
and Capitola Road.  The shopping center includes a mix of uses including a
movie theater, grocery store, hardware store, restaurants, and other retail.

In 2008 a shared parking study was prepared to evaluate the effect of
increasing restaurant uses at the shopping center.1  Although King’s Plaza
contains a variety of tenants, the site was evaluated as a combination of
three uses which comprised movie theater, shopping center, and
warehouse.2  The 2008 study concluded that there was sufficient parking
available to accommodate the proposed increase in restaurant uses during
typical weekday and weekend conditions.

It is now proposed that the 6,400 square foot Capitola Book Café be
eliminated to permit expansion of the CineLux Theatre from 675 seats to
892 seats, which may increase parking demand at the shopping center.
This memorandum contains an evaluation of the expected parking demand
at the shopping center if the movie theater is expanded.

1 Shared Parking Study for King’s Plaza 1601 41st Avenue, Marquez Transportation
Engineering, December 23, 2008.
2 The warehouse use was for the Orchard Supply Hardware (OSH) drive-through pickup
facility which is separate from the main hardware store.

-119-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



King’s Plaza Shared Parking, page 2

k:\bay_tpto\097763004 - capitola - kings plaza parking - fv - jw\documents\kingsplazaparkingstudy03.draftmemov4.doc

METHODOLOGY

Kimley-Horn estimated shared parking demand using two methods:

1. Using separate land uses comprising the movie theater (CineLux),
grocery store (Save Mart), hardware store (OSH), hardware store
warehouse (OSH building materials pick-up yard),
pharmacy/drugstore (Rite Aid) high-turnover restaurant (IHOP),
and shopping center (for the remaining restaurant and retail uses).

2. Following the same condensed methodology as the 2008 study
assuming only three types of land uses which comprised movie
theater (CineLux), warehouse (OSH) and shopping center (for all
other retail and restaurant uses).

Shared parking analyses were prepared for a typical Weekday and Saturday
using data contained in Parking Generation 4th Edition published by the
Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) and supplemented by data in
Shared Parking 2nd Edition published by Urban Land Institute (ULI).  In
some cases data was not available for all land use types, therefore the
following assumptions were made regarding the data:

· Parking demand for King’s Plaza Shopping Center was calculated
based on average demand.

· Shared weekday demand for the movie theater was based on Friday
conditions because movie theaters typically have higher parking
demand on Fridays during the weekday.

· Trip rates for warehousing (i.e. OSH building materials pick-up
yard) are not available for Saturday; therefore, the Saturday demand
rates were assumed to be the same as a weekday.

· Time-of-day demand for the OSH building materials pick-up yard
was assumed to follow the same time-of-day pattern as Home
Improvement Superstore (ITE Land Use 862) instead of traditional
warehouse.

· Time-of-day data for pharmacy is incomplete for Saturday;
therefore, it was assumed to be the same as weekday.

-120-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



King’s Plaza Shared Parking, page 3

k:\bay_tpto\097763004 - capitola - kings plaza parking - fv - jw\documents\kingsplazaparkingstudy03.draftmemov4.doc

ANALYSIS

King’s Plaza currently comprises 161,085 square feet of gross floor area
(GFA) with approximately 134,753 square feet dedicated to retail uses,
11,635 square feet for the CineLux Theaters which hosts 674 seats, and
14,697 square feet for restaurant uses.3

Required parking4 is determined based on the parking standards contained
in Section 17.51.130 of the Capitola Municipal Code which notes the
following:

Retail Uses – 1 space per 300 square feet of gross floor area (GFA)

Theater Use – 1 space per each 3 seats

Restaurant Uses – 1 space per 60 square feet of GFA available for dining,
plus 1 space per 300 square feet for all other floor area

Detailed information on the restaurant GFA dedicated to dining was
unavailable at the time this memorandum was prepared; therefore, it was
estimated to be 60 percent.

Based on the Municipal Code the shopping center would be required to
provide approximately the following spaces:

Retail: 134,735  sf x 1 space per 300 sf  =       450 spaces
Theater: 674 seats x 1 space per 3 seats =   224 spaces
Restaurant Dining:  14,697 sf x 0.60 x 1 space per 60 sf = 147 spaces
Restaurant Other: 14,697 sf x 0.40 x 1 space per 300 sf = 20 spaces
Total Required (estimated)  841 spaces

The shopping center has 680 parking spaces for employees and customers.5

However, the parking requirement per the City Zoning Code does not take

3 Email and attachments from Benjamin Ow to Jim West, 2/14/2014.
4 Parking standards provided in Chapter 17.51 except Section 17.51.130(J), (L), (M), and
(O) which are replaced per email from Katie Cattan to Frederik Venter, February 13, 2014.
5 Email from Benjamin Ow to Jim West, 2/14/2014.

-121-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



King’s Plaza Shared Parking, page 4

k:\bay_tpto\097763004 - capitola - kings plaza parking - fv - jw\documents\kingsplazaparkingstudy03.draftmemov4.doc

into consideration shared parking principles and time-of-day use as
outlined in the ULI Shared Parking guide.

Cursory observations by Kimley-Horn staff (including the most recent on
Monday, February 17, 2014) indicate there are ample on-site parking
spaces to meet the current needs of King’s Plaza.6  Observations also
suggest that the shopping center’s potential demand is similar to the
average rates reported in ITE Parking Generation of 547 parked vehicles.
No exact counts were performed and the current parking demand is thus
not known.

The following calculations were prepared to estimate the demand for
parking spaces when the Book Café is converted to additional movie
theater space.

Separate Land Use Methodology

Shared parking was calculated by segregating land uses into the following
categories:

· Movie Theater
· Hardware Store
· Warehouse
· Grocery Store
· Pharmacy/Drugstore
· High-Turnover Sit Down Restaurant
· Shopping Center

The CineLux Theatre most closely matches Movie Theater with Matinee
(ITE Land Use 444) which is defined by ITE as a traditional movie theater
consisting of audience seating, less than ten screens, a lobby and a
refreshment stand. These show movies on weekday afternoons and
evenings as well as on weekends.

The OSH store most closely matches Home Improvement Superstore (ITE
Land Use 862) which is defined by ITE as facilities that that specialize in

6 February 17, 2014 observation made between 8-9 PM which showed a parking demand
of 166 vehicles.

-122-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



King’s Plaza Shared Parking, page 5

k:\bay_tpto\097763004 - capitola - kings plaza parking - fv - jw\documents\kingsplazaparkingstudy03.draftmemov4.doc

the sale of home improvement merchandise and typically maintain long
store hours 7 days a week. Examples of items sold in these stores include
lumber, tools, paint, lighting, wallpaper and paneling, kitchen and
bathroom fixtures, lawn equipment and plant and garden accessories.

The separate OSH building materials pick-up yard most closely matches
Warehousing (ITE Land Use 150) which is defined as being primarily
devoted to the storage of materials, but they may also include office and
maintenance areas.

The Save Mart grocery store can be classified as a Supermarket (ITE Land
Use 850) or Discount Supermarket (ITE Land Use 854).  Because there is
more published data on Supermarket land uses, it was used for the shared
parking evaluation.  Supermarket is defined by ITE as a retail store selling
a complete assortment of food, food preparation and wrapping materials
and household cleaning items.  Supermarkets may also contain the
following products and services: ATMs, automobile supplies, bakeries,
books and magazines, dry cleaning, floral arrangements, greeting cards,
limited-service banks, photo centers, pharmacies and video rental areas.

The Rite Aid store most closely matches Pharmacy/Drugstore without
Drive-Through Window which is defined by ITE as a retail facility that
primarily sells prescription and non-prescription drugs.  These facilities
may also sell cosmetics, toiletries, medications, stationary, personal care
products, limited food products and general merchandise.

The IHOP restaurant most closely matches High-Turnover Sit Down
Restaurant ITE Land Use 932) which is defined as a sit-down, full-service
eating establishment with turnover rates of approximately one hour or less.
This type of restaurant is usually moderately priced and frequently belongs
to a restaurant chain. Generally, these restaurants serve lunch and dinner
and may also be open for breakfast and are sometimes open 24 hours per
day.

The remaining retail and restaurant uses, most closely match Shopping
Center (ITE Land Use 820) which is defined as an integrated group of
commercial establishments that is planned, developed, owned and managed
as a unit.  Aside from retail stores shopping centers may also contain

-123-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



King’s Plaza Shared Parking, page 6

k:\bay_tpto\097763004 - capitola - kings plaza parking - fv - jw\documents\kingsplazaparkingstudy03.draftmemov4.doc

offices, restaurants, post offices, banks, health clubs, movie theaters, and
other uses.

Figure 1 and Figure 2 respectively summarize the shared weekday and
weekend average parking demand for King’s Plaza.  It is noted that the
parking demand for the OSH warehouse is very small in comparison to the
other uses and therefore is difficult to see in the figure.  Calculations using
this methodology are attached to this memorandum.

Figure 1 – Average Weekday Parking Demand – Separate Land Use
Methodology

-124-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



King’s Plaza Shared Parking, page 7

k:\bay_tpto\097763004 - capitola - kings plaza parking - fv - jw\documents\kingsplazaparkingstudy03.draftmemov4.doc

Figure 2 – Average Weekend Parking Demand – Separate Land Use
Methodology
As noted in the figures, the parking demand is not expected to exceed more
than about 500 occupied parking spaces on a weekday or weekend.  In fact,
in comparison with the observed demand, the calculated demand appears to
be conservative with actual demand being lower.

Condensed Land Use Methodology (from 2008 Study)

Consistent with the 2008 parking study, shared parking demand at King’s
Plaza was also calculated by condensing the various land uses into the
following three categories:

1. Movie Theater
2. Warehouse
3. Shopping Center

As noted previously, the CineLux Theater most closely matches Movie
Theater with Matinee (ITE Land Use 444) and the separate OSH building
materials pick-up yard most closely matches Warehousing (ITE Land Use
150).

-125-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



King’s Plaza Shared Parking, page 8

k:\bay_tpto\097763004 - capitola - kings plaza parking - fv - jw\documents\kingsplazaparkingstudy03.draftmemov4.doc

The remaining retail and restaurant uses, if grouped together, most closely
match Shopping Center (ITE Land Use 820).  Although the CineLux
Theater could be included in the Shopping Center land use, movie theater
parking demand was calculated separately from the rest of the shopping
center to be consistent with the 2008 parking study.

Figure 3 and Figure 4 respectively summarize the shared weekday and
weekend average parking demand for King’s Plaza using the condensed
land use methodology.  Calculations are attached to this memorandum.

Figure 3 – Average Weekday Parking Demand – Condensed (2008)
Methodology

-126-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



King’s Plaza Shared Parking, page 9

k:\bay_tpto\097763004 - capitola - kings plaza parking - fv - jw\documents\kingsplazaparkingstudy03.draftmemov4.doc

Figure 4 – Average Weekend Parking Demand – Condensed (2008)
Methodology

Although slightly less than calculated using the Separate Land Use
methodology, the Condensed Land Use methodology also indicates that
peak parking demand is about 500 on the weekday and the weekend.  In
comparison with the observed demand, the calculated demand appears to
be conservative with actual demand being lower.

85th Percentile Demand

As noted previously, the above calculations are made based on observed
average rates reported at other shopping centers.

Shopping center parking demand often fluctuates over the lifespan of the
facility.  As tenants change and improvements are made, an average
performing center may function at a higher level of parking demand.  As a
check, parking demand was recalculated based on 85th percentile demand
rates for weekday and weekend.7

7 ITE defines the 85th percentile as the point at which 85 percent if the values fall at or
below and 15 percent of the values are above.  The 85th percentile demand rate therefore
corresponds to a high performing land use.

-127-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



King’s Plaza Shared Parking, page 10

k:\bay_tpto\097763004 - capitola - kings plaza parking - fv - jw\documents\kingsplazaparkingstudy03.draftmemov4.doc

When calculated using 85th percentile rates the peak parking demand for
the weekday is 678 and the peak demand for the weekend is 620.  In both
instances the existing parking spaces (i.e. 680 spaces) are sufficient to meet
an increased 85th percentile demand.  Eighty-fifth percentile calculations
are attached to this memorandum.

CONCLUSIONS

It is proposed that existing retail space at King’s Plaza be eliminated to
allow for the existing CineLux Theatre to be expanded from 675 seats to
892 seats.

An evaluation based on data published by the Institute of Transportation
Engineers (and supplemented by data from the Urban Land Institute)
confirmed that King’s Plaza will have sufficient on-site parking spaces
under current (i.e. average) conditions and also if demand increases in the
future (i.e. at 85th percentile conditions).  Therefore, it is Kimley-Horn’s
professional opinion that parking associated with King’s Plaza can be fully
contained on site with little risk of spillover into nearby businesses or
residential areas.

-128-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf



Parking Generation Planner (ITE Parking Generation, 4th Edition)
Weekday/Weekend Parking Generation Project Name
Demand Based on Average Rates Project Number

ITE
Code Land Use Description

Independent
Variable

No. of
Units

Day of
Week Month Avg 33% 85% Avg 33% 85% 8am 9am 10am 11am Noon 1pm 2pm 3pm 4pm 5pm 6pm 7pm 8pm 9pm 10pm 11pm

150 Warehousing 1,000 Sq Ft 6.012 Mon-Thu Avg 0.5 0.3 0.8 3 2 5 1 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 3 2 1
444 Movie Theater w/ Matinee Seat(s) 892 Friday Avg 0.3 0.2 0.4 232 187 321 46 104 128 128 128 139 139 186 232 232 186 151
820 Shopping Center 1,000 Sq Ft (GLA) 47.441 Mon-Thu Avg 2.6 2.2 3.2 121 104 150 22 46 82 110 121 117 115 106 94 75 77 93 85 51 18 6
850a Supermarket (Suburban) 1,000 Sq Ft 23.2 Mon-Thu Avg 3.8 3.0 5.1 87.696 69.136 117.16 37 72 55 62 82 88 83 86 85 81 69 53 41 30 22 18
862 Home Improvement Superstore 1,000 Sq Ft 39.957 Mon-Thu Avg 2.2 1.9 2.8 89.104 73.92 112.68 28 45 77 87 89 86 87 81 77 70 68 70 78 61 37
880 Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive-Through Window 1,000 Sq Ft 21.44 Mon-Thu Avg 2.2 1.9 2.7 47.168 40.736 58.317 17 17 17 29 24 41 27 31 47 40 32
932a1 High-Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant (Suburban) w/o Bar 1,000 Sq Ft 5 Mon-Thu Avg 10.6 7.4 16.3 53 37 81.5 30 40 45 49 53 48 28 22 22 40 44 33 35 33 25 23

.

.

.
Totals 633 514 846 117 204 278 328 411 475 468 467 436 438 447 477 506 410 289 199

Average Parking Demand by Time of Day

King's Plaza Shopping Center

Peak Rates Peak Demand

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Pa
rk

in
g

D
em

an
d

in
Sp

ac
es

Hour of Day

Average Parking Demand by Time of Day.

.

.

High-Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant
(Suburban) w/o Bar

Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive-Through
Window

Home Improvement Superstore

Supermarket (Suburban)

Shopping Center

Movie Theater w/ Matinee

Warehousing

KingsPlazaParkingStudy04.Weekday2014Methodology.xls
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
2010 CQI, Jim West, Pleasanton, CA 1

2/19/2014
10:58 AM

Planner Summary Sheet

-129-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t B
. P

arkin
g

 S
tu

d
y.p

d
f



Parking Generation Planner (ITE Parking Generation, 4th Edition)
Weekday/Weekend Parking Generation Project Name
Demand Based on Average Rates Project Number

ITE
Code Land Use Description

Independent
Variable

No. of
Units

Day of
Week Month Avg 33% 85% Avg 33% 85% 8am 9am 10am 11am Noon 1pm 2pm 3pm 4pm 5pm 6pm 7pm 8pm 9pm 10pm 11pm

150 Warehousing 1,000 Sq Ft 6.012 Saturday Avg 0.51 0.29 0.81 3 2 5 1 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 3 2 1
444 Movie Theater w/ Matinee Seat(s) 892 Saturday Avg 0.19 0.2 0.23 169 178 205 34 76 93 93 93 102 102 136 169 169 169 136
820 Shopping Center 1,000 Sq Ft (GLA) 47.441 Saturday Avg 2.87 2.46 3.4 136 117 161 37 82 102 123 136 136 133 124 103 91 98 69 71 60 39
850a Supermarket (Suburban) 1,000 Sq Ft 23.2 Saturday Avg 3.92 3.25 4.94 90.944 75.4 114.61 27 52 52 55 82 84 80 79 75 68 57 50 44 31 28 29
862 Home Improvement Superstore 1,000 Sq Ft 39.957 Saturday Avg 3.19 2.79 4.34 127.46 111.48 173.41 40 64 110 122 127 125 122 125 115 98 83 101 112 88 52
880 Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive-Through Window 1,000 Sq Ft 21.44 Saturday Avg 2.94 2.53 3.74 63.034 54.243 80.186 22 22 22 38 32 54 62 63 59 52 38
932a1 High-Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant (Suburban) w/o Bar 1,000 Sq Ft 5 Saturday Avg 13.5 7.8 20.6 67.5 39 103 34 49 63 68 63 57 43 26 32 37 43 50 37 26 27 36

.

.

.
Totals 658 577 843 139 248 352 393 467 519 507 505 484 462 444 460 474 377 318 200

Average Parking Demand by Time of Day

King's Plaza Shopping Center

Peak Rates Peak Demand

0

100

200

300

400

500

600
Pa

rk
in

g
D

em
an

d
in

Sp
ac

es

Hour of Day

Average Parking Demand by Time of Day.

.

.

High-Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant
(Suburban) w/o Bar

Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive-Through
Window

Home Improvement Superstore

Supermarket (Suburban)

Shopping Center

Movie Theater w/ Matinee

Warehousing

KingsPlazaParkingStudy05.Weekend2014Methodology.xls
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
2010 CQI, Jim West, Pleasanton, CA 1

2/19/2014
11:04 AM

Planner Summary Sheet

-130-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t B
. P

arkin
g

 S
tu

d
y.p

d
f



Parking Generation Planner (ITE Parking Generation, 4th Edition)
Weekday/Weekend Parking Generation Project Name
Demand Based on Average Rates Project Number

ITE
Code Land Use Description

Independent
Variable

No. of
Units

Day of
Week Month Avg 33% 85% Avg 33% 85% 8am 9am 10am 11am Noon 1pm 2pm 3pm 4pm 5pm 6pm 7pm 8pm 9pm 10pm 11pm

150 Warehousing 1,000 Sq Ft 6.012 Mon-Thu Avg 0.51 0.29 0.81 3 2 5 1 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 3 2 1
444 Movie Theater w/ Matinee Seat(s) 892 Friday Avg 0.26 0.21 0.36 232 187 321 46 104 128 128 128 139 139 186 232 232 186 151
820 Shopping Center 1,000 Sq Ft (GLA) 137.04 Mon-Thu Avg 2.55 2.2 3.16 349 301 433 63 133 238 318 349 339 332 308 273 217 224 269 245 147 52 17

.

.

.

.

.

.

.
Totals 584 491 759 64 134 240 321 399 446 463 438 403 358 365 457 479 381 239 168

Average Parking Demand by Time of Day

King's Plaza Shopping Center

Peak Rates Peak Demand

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Pa
rk

in
g

D
em

an
d

in
Sp

ac
es

Hour of Day

Average Parking Demand by Time of Day.

.

.

.

.

.

.

Shopping Center

Movie Theater w/ Matinee

Warehousing

KingsPlazaParkingStudy02.Weekday2008Methodology.xls
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
2010 CQI, Jim West, Pleasanton, CA 1

2/19/2014
10:57 AM

Planner Summary Sheet

-131-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t B
. P

arkin
g

 S
tu

d
y.p

d
f



Parking Generation Planner (ITE Parking Generation, 4th Edition)
Weekday/Weekend Parking Generation Project Name
Demand Based on Average Rates Project Number

ITE
Code Land Use Description

Independent
Variable

No. of
Units

Day of
Week Month Avg 33% 85% Avg 33% 85% 8am 9am 10am 11am Noon 1pm 2pm 3pm 4pm 5pm 6pm 7pm 8pm 9pm 10pm 11pm

150 Warehousing 1,000 Sq Ft 6.012 Saturday Avg 0.51 0.29 0.81 3 2 5 1 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 3 2 1
444 Movie Theater w/ Matinee Seat(s) 892 Saturday Avg 0.19 0.2 0.23 169 178 205 34 76 93 93 93 102 102 136 169 169 169 136
820 Shopping Center 1,000 Sq Ft (GLA) 137.04 Saturday Avg 2.87 2.46 3.4 393 337 466 106 236 295 354 393 393 385 358 299 264 283 201 205 173 114

.

.

.

.

.

.

.
Totals 566 517 676 107 238 298 357 430 473 482 454 395 368 387 339 377 345 285 136

Average Parking Demand by Time of Day

King's Plaza Shopping Center

Peak Rates Peak Demand

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Pa
rk

in
g

D
em

an
d

in
Sp

ac
es

Hour of Day

Average Parking Demand by Time of Day.

.

.

.

.

.

.

Shopping Center

Movie Theater w/ Matinee

Warehousing

KingsPlazaParkingStudy03.Weekend2008Methodology.xls
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
2010 CQI, Jim West, Pleasanton, CA 1

2/19/2014
10:47 AM

Planner Summary Sheet

-132-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t B
. P

arkin
g

 S
tu

d
y.p

d
f



Parking Generation Planner (ITE Parking Generation, 4th Edition)
Weekday/Weekend Parking Generation Project Name
Demand Based on 85th Percentile Rates Project Number

ITE
Code Land Use Description

Independent
Variable

No. of
Units

Day of
Week Month Avg 33% 85% Avg 33% 85% 8am 9am 10am 11am Noon 1pm 2pm 3pm 4pm 5pm 6pm 7pm 8pm 9pm 10pm 11pm

150 Warehousing 1,000 Sq Ft 6.012 Mon-Thu Avg 0.51 0.29 0.81 3 2 5 2 2 4 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 2
444 Movie Theater w/ Matinee Seat(s) 892 Friday Avg 0.26 0.21 0.36 232 187 321 64 145 177 177 177 193 193 257 321 321 257 209
820 Shopping Center 1,000 Sq Ft (GLA) 47.441 Mon-Thu Avg 2.55 2.20 3.16 121 104 150 27 57 102 136 150 145 142 132 117 93 96 115 105 63 45 15
850a Supermarket (Suburban) 1,000 Sq Ft 23.2 Mon-Thu Avg 3.78 2.98 5.05 88 69 117 49 96 74 83 110 117 111 115 114 108 93 70 55 40 29 25
862 Home Improvement Superstore 1,000 Sq Ft 39.957 Mon-Thu Avg 2.23 1.85 2.82 89 74 113 35 56 97 110 113 109 110 103 97 88 86 89 99 78 46
880 Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive-Through Window 1,000 Sq Ft 21.44 Mon-Thu Avg 2.20 1.90 2.72 47 41 58 20 20 20 36 30 50 34 38 58 49 40
932a1 High-Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant (Suburban) w/o Bar 1,000 Sq Ft 5 Mon-Thu Avg 10.6 7.4 16.3 53 37 81.5 46 62 69 75 82 73 43 34 34 62 68 51 54 51 39 36

.

.

.
Totals 633 514 846 159 274 367 430 544 630 618 615 576 585 596 636 678 556 418 284

Peak Rates Peak Demand 85th Percentile Parking Demand by Time of Day

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Pa
rk

in
g

D
em

an
d

in
Sp

ac
es

Hour of Day

85th  Percentile Parking Demand by Time of Day.

.

.

High-Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant
(Suburban) w/o Bar

Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive-Through
Window

Home Improvement Superstore

Supermarket (Suburban)

Shopping Center

Movie Theater w/ Matinee

Warehousing

KingsPlazaParkingStudy07.Weekday85thPercentile.xls
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
2010 CQI, Jim West, Pleasanton, CA 1

2/19/2014
11:06 AM

Planner Summary Sheet

-133-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t B
. P

arkin
g

 S
tu

d
y.p

d
f



Parking Generation Planner (ITE Parking Generation, 4th Edition)
Weekday/Weekend Parking Generation Project Name
Demand Based on 85th Percentile Rates Project Number

ITE
Code Land Use Description

Independent
Variable

No. of
Units

Day of
Week Month Avg 33% 85% Avg 33% 85% 8am 9am 10am 11am Noon 1pm 2pm 3pm 4pm 5pm 6pm 7pm 8pm 9pm 10pm 11pm

150 Warehousing 1,000 Sq Ft 6.012 Saturday Avg 0.51 0.29 0.81 3 2 5 2 2 4 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 3 4 4 3 2
444 Movie Theater w/ Matinee Seat(s) 892 Saturday Avg 0.19 0.20 0.23 169 178 205 41 92 113 113 113 123 123 164 205 205 205 164
820 Shopping Center 1,000 Sq Ft (GLA) 47.441 Saturday Avg 2.87 2.46 3.40 136 117 161 44 97 121 145 161 161 158 147 123 108 116 82 84 71 47 24
850a Supermarket (Suburban) 1,000 Sq Ft 23.2 Saturday Avg 3.92 3.25 4.94 91 75 115 34 65 65 70 103 105 101 100 95 86 72 63 55 39 36 37
862 Home Improvement Superstore 1,000 Sq Ft 39.957 Saturday Avg 3.19 2.79 4.34 127 111 173 54 87 149 166 173 170 166 170 156 134 113 137 153 120 71
880 Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive-Through Window 1,000 Sq Ft 21.44 Saturday Avg 2.94 2.53 3.74 63 54 80 79 80 75 67 49
932a1 High-Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant (Suburban) w/o Bar 1,000 Sq Ft 5 Saturday Avg 13.5 7.8 20.6 67.5 39 103 53 75 97 103 96 87 65 40 49 57 65 76 57 40 41 55

.

.

.
Totals 658 577 843 186 326 436 489 580 620 608 574 619 591 568 593 606 478 402 280

Peak Rates Peak Demand 85th Percentile Parking Demand by Time of Day

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Pa
rk

in
g

D
em

an
d

in
Sp

ac
es

Hour of Day

85th  Percentile Parking Demand by Time of Day.

.

.

High-Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant
(Suburban) w/o Bar

Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive-Through
Window

Home Improvement Superstore

Supermarket (Suburban)

Shopping Center

Movie Theater w/ Matinee

Warehousing

KingsPlazaParkingStudy08.Weekend85thPercentile.xls
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
2010 CQI, Jim West, Pleasanton, CA 1

2/19/2014
10:13 AM

Planner Summary Sheet

-134-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t B
. P

arkin
g

 S
tu

d
y.p

d
f



-135-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t C
. S

ig
n

 P
lan

.p
d

f



-136-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t C
. S

ig
n

 P
lan

.p
d

f



-137-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t C
. S

ig
n

 P
lan

.p
d

f



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-138-



-139-

Item
 #: 5.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t D
. L

an
d

scap
e P

lan
.p

d
f



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-140-



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION  
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JUNE 4, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 809 Bay Ave    #15-074  APN: 035-021-43 

Design Permit and Conditional Use Permit for a private outdoor seating area and on-
site sale and consumption of beer and wine for Nob Hill, located in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and thus does not require a Coastal 
Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Raley’s Inc. 
Representative: Michael Gates, filed: 4/22/15 

   
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant has submitted plans to construct an outdoor dining area in front of the existing Nob Hill 
grocery store located at 809 Bay Avenue. The dining area was previously approved by the Planning 
Commission in 2004 as an “outside quasi-public seating area”, but never built. Nob Hill is applying for 
a beer and wine license (no hard liquor) for the vacant outdoor dining area and small indoor dining 
space. The outdoor dining area is proposed to be a private seating area that is only accessible to Nob 
Hill customers, and thus not quasi-public. The outdoor dining area will contain 40 seats, a speaker 
system, portable stage, and TV. The proposed private outdoor eating area requires a Design Permit 
for the modification to an existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and Design Permit, as well as a CUP 
for the sale of beer and wine. Nob Hill is currently working on an interior remodel to the grocery store; 
they have a Building Permit for the interior work which does not need Planning Commission approval.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On May 13th, 2015, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application. 

 City Architect Representative, Frank Phanton, thought the project was well designed and 
would be a good use of vacant space.  

 City Building Official, Brian Van Son, cautioned the applicant to ensure that the access ways 
meet ADA standards. 

 City Public Works representative, Danielle Uharriet, had no concerns.   

 City Planner, Ryan Safty, informed the applicant that any amplified noise activity would require 
an Entertainment Permit from the Police Department and asked that the applicant provide a 
Landscape Plan for the proposal. 

 City Landscape Architect Representative, Craig Walsh, asked the applicant to submit a 
Landscape Plan showing existing trees.  

 
Following the Architectural and Site Review meeting, the applicant submitted a Landscape Plan 
showing the existing trees and plants on site. There will be no addition or removal of landscaping.  

 

-141-

Item #: 5.C. Staff report 809 Bay Ave Nob Hill.pdf



 

DISCUSSION 
Nob Hill is a grocery store chain with a branch located in the Capitola Center retail area. The applicant 
is proposing to create a 1,561 square foot outdoor private dining area on the northeast-side of the 
subject property, adjacent to Nob Hill’s northeastern entrance. (Attachment A) The CUP is to allow 
Nob Hill to serve beer and wine to customers both in the small indoor dining section (old Peet’s 
Coffee) and in the proposed new outdoor seating area.  
 
Nob Hill is in the process of obtaining a building permit for interior work. Nob Hill plans to remodel and 
refurnish much of the interior space, including turning the café area into a tap room. No exterior 
modifications are allowed within the building permit.  
 
The subject property is located at the north end of Bay Avenue, adjacent to the Soquel Creek corridor. 
The entire Capitola Center is zoned CC (Community Commercial). The properties to the south are 
zoned R-1 (Single-Family Residential), and across Bay Avenue to the east of Nob Hill are commercial 
and office uses and a multi-family residential (RM-M) senior housing facility.  
 
Design Permit 
A modification to an existing CUP and Design Permit requires a Design Permit and Architectural and 
Site Review. (§17.63.030) In order to change the previously approved quasi-public seating area into a 
private dining area, the applicant must obtain approval from the Planning Commission.  
 
Conditional Use Permit 
The applicant is requesting approval of a CUP to allow on-site consumption of beer and wine in the 
outdoor seating and indoor dining areas. In considering an application for a CUP, the Planning 
Commission must give due regard to the nature and condition of all adjacent uses and structures. The 
municipal code lists additional requirements and review criteria for some uses within the CUP 
consideration (§17.60.030). In issuing the CUP, the Planning Commission may impose requirements 
and conditions with respect to location, design, siting, maintenance and operation of the use  as may 
be necessary for the protection of the adjacent properties and in the public interest.   
 
The breakdown of tenant use and size within the Capitola Center is as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

*This table does not include the recycle center in the parking lot 
 
 

-142-

Item #: 5.C. Staff report 809 Bay Ave Nob Hill.pdf



 

Nob Hill is proposing to operate the outdoor dining area under the same hours as the grocery store: 
6:00am–11:00pm, 7 days a week (Attachment B). The outdoor seating area contains a portable stage 
in the center, with a TV located above. Nob Hill is proposing to place speakers around the outdoor 
seating area, creating a surround-sound system. The applicant would like to have live, amplified 
acoustic music, limited to the afternoons and weekends. The live music will have a maximum of two 
performers. On weekdays, Nob Hill would like to have music from 3:00pm – 9:00 pm, and on 
weekends 10:00am – 9:00 pm. An Entertainment Permit would need to be obtained from the Police 
Department prior to operating the stage area or having live performers (Condition #4).  
 
The outdoor dining area is enclosed by a three foot tall metal gate. There are two proposed exterior 
openings in the gate (on the eastern and western edges) that contain latches and self-closing hinges 
to ensure the gate remains shut. Inside the 1,561 square foot outdoor dining area is a total of 14 
proposed tables and 40 chairs (Attachment A).   
 
Parking 
Pursuant to the Capitola Municipal Code, the 1,561 square foot outdoor dining area requires one 
parking space for every 60 square feet (26 spaces). In total, the shopping center is required to have 
298 parking spaces. The Capitola Center contains a total of 434 parking spaces for its tenants. 
Accordingly, adequate parking is available to accommodate the additional demand created by the 
proposed outdoor dining area.  
 
Project Issues 
Planning staff and the Police Department have concerns with the proposed hours of operation and the 
applicant’s request to allow live, amplified entertainment in the outdoor dining area.  Although the 
proposed dining area is located within an existing commercial shopping center, the site is proximate to 
a senior living facility, a sleep center, and single-family residences which could be adversely impacted 
by noise generated by the proposed project.  As proposed, the dining area could host nightly outdoor 
entertainment seven nights a week for 40 or more patrons. 
 
Staff therefore recommends the Planning Commission limit the hours of operation to 8:00am – 
9:00pm Sunday-Thursday and 8:00am – 11:00pm on Friday and Saturday. Additionally, staff 
recommends the Planning Commission limit entertainment to acoustic music only (subject to 
entertainment permit conditions as determined necessary by the Police Department) and add a 
condition to prohibit outdoor amplified entertainment.  
 
CEQA 
This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental Quality Act 
and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. The proposed 
project involves an existing grocery store adding an outdoor dining area with on-site sale and 
consumption of beer and wine. No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project 
review by either the Planning Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve application #15-074, minus the outdoor stage 
and live music proposal, subject to the following conditions and based upon the following findings: 
 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1. The project approval consists of a Conditional Use Permit to allow beer and wine sales and 
Design Permit to construct and operate an outdoor dining area at 809 Bay Avenue. The 
proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the 

-143-

Item #: 5.C. Staff report 809 Bay Ave Nob Hill.pdf



 

Planning Commission on June 4, 2015, except as modified through conditions imposed by the 
Planning Commission during the hearing.  
 

2. The establishment must maintain a valid license from the Alcohol Beverage Control.  A copy of 
the approved Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control Permit must be filed with the 
Community Development Department prior to initiating beer and wine sales.  
 

3. The applicant was granted a Conditional Use Permit to allow the serving of beer and wine and 
construction and operation of an outdoor seating area.  In any case where the conditions of 
the permit have not been or are not complied with, the community development director shall 
give notice thereof to the permittee, which notice shall specify a reasonable period of time 
within which to perform said conditions and correct said violation. If the permittee fails to 
comply with said conditions, or to correct said violation, within the time allowed, notice shall be 
given to the permittee of intention to revoke such permit at a hearing to be held not less than 
thirty calendar days after the date of such notice. Following such hearing and, if good cause 
exists therefore, the Planning Commission may revoke the permit.  
 

4. No amplified entertainment is approved within this permit (#15-074).  An Entertainment Permit 
is required for any live entertainment that is audible outside of the structure.  An Entertainment 
Permit may be applied for through the Capitola Police Department. 
 

5. Patrons shall not be allowed to leave with open alcoholic beverage containers. 
 
6. Permits are non-transferrable.    

 
7. The establishment must maintain a valid license from the Alcohol Beverage Control. 

 
8. The applicant is responsible for maintaining the area directly in front of the business free from 

litter and/or graffiti. 
 

9. Operational hours of the outdoor dining area are limited to 8:00am – 9:00pm on weekdays, 
and 8:00am – 11:00pm on weekends.  

 

10. The applicant shall receive permission from ABC to serve alcoholic beverages prior to June 4, 
2017.  The conditional use permit will expire in the case where the conditional use permit has 
not been used within two years after the date of granting thereof.  Any interruption or cessation 
beyond the control of the property owner shall not result in the termination of such right or 
privilege. A permit shall be deemed to have been “used” when actual substantial, continuous 
activity has taken place upon the land pursuant to the permit. 
 

11. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent 
with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and site improvements 
shall be completed according to the approved plans.  
 

12. The applicant is required to complete and follow the Responsible Beverage Service (RBS) 
practices and procedures.  Employees who serve alcoholic beverages are required to attend 
and complete L.E.A.D.S. training offered by the Capitola Police Department. 
 

13. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 
full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

-144-

Item #: 5.C. Staff report 809 Bay Ave Nob Hill.pdf



 

14. At the time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail Storm Water 
Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP) shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet 
into the construction plans.  All construction shall be done in accordance with Public Works 
Standard Detail Storm Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP).   
 

15. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested 
and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes 
to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require Planning Commission 
approval.  
 

16. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #15-074 shall be 
paid in full. 
 

17. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel Water 
District, and Central Fire Protection District.   
 

18. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion control 
plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans shall be in 
compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16 Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

19. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater management 
plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements all applicable Post 
Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard Details, including all standards 
relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

20. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 
the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 
 

21. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 
except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise 
shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty a.m. on weekdays. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work 
between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. 
§9.12.010B 
 

22. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or sidewalk 
shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction of the Public 
Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or sidewalk shall meet 
current Accessibility Standards. 
 

23. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration.  Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

24. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the applicant 
to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site on which 
the approval was granted. 

 

-145-

Item #: 5.C. Staff report 809 Bay Ave Nob Hill.pdf



 

FINDINGS 
 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance and General Plan. 
Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the 
application and determined that the proposed business may be granted a conditional use permit 
for the sale of alcohol and dining area within the CC Zoning District. The use meets the intent and 
purpose of the Community Commercial Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have been 
included to ensure that the use is consistent with the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   

Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the 
proposed use and determined that the use complies with the applicable provisions of the Zoning 
Ordinance and maintains the character and integrity of this area of the City. This area of the City is 
a mix of commercial and residential uses.  Conditions of approval have been included to carry out 
these objectives. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California Environmental 

Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 
The proposed project involves an existing retail area with the additional use of beer and wine 
sales and a dining area.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project 
review by either the Planning Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A) Project Plans 
B) Management Plan 

 
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Safty  

Assistant Planner 
 

-146-

Item #: 5.C. Staff report 809 Bay Ave Nob Hill.pdf



-147-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment A. Project Plans.pdf



-148-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment A. Project Plans.pdf



-149-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment A. Project Plans.pdf



-150-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment A. Project Plans.pdf



NOB HILL PATIO MANAGEMENT PLAN 

• Operational hours are the same as the Store – 6:00 AM until 11:00 PM 7 Days per week 

• Live Music will be limited to one or two performing artists 

• Music will be mainly acoustic, but amplified by the sound system 

• Entertainment during the week will perform in the later afternoons and evenings, between 

3:00 and 9:00 

• Entertainment on the weekends will perform between 10:00 AM and 9:00 PM 

• Performances will be 4 hours in length or shorter 

 

-151-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment B. Nob Hill Management Plan.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-152-


	AGENDA
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
	A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda
	B. Public Comments
	C. Commission Comments
	D. Staff Comments

	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. Approval of Draft May 7, 2015 Planning Commission meeting minutes.
	[5-7-15 DRAFT Minutes.pdf]


	4. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. 2185 41st Avenue #15-083 APN: 034-192-02
	[2185 41st Ave Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attachment A. Project Plans.pdf]
	Sign Permit for a new awning with signs for a dentist’s office in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. This project is not in the Coastal Zone and thus does not require a Coastal Development Permit.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Dr. Mike RaffoRepresentative: Christian Nielsen, filed: 5/11/15

	B. 3555 Clares Street Suite TT #15-079 APN: 034-261-59
	[3555 Clares Street #PP staff report.pdf]
	[Attachment A. Letter from Applicant.pdf]
	Conditional Use Permit for sale of beer and wine at an existing restaurant (Roux Dat) in the Community Commercial (CC) zoning district.This project is not in the Coastal Zone and thus does not require a Coastal Development Permit.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Bob Rivers (Brown Ranch Properties)Representative: Chad Glassley, filed: 4/30/15


	5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
	A. 429 Riverview Avenue #13-179 APN: 035-121-034
	[429 Riverview Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attachment A. Plans..pdf]
	[Attachment B. Archives and Architecture Historic Review.pdf]
	[Attachment C. Kent Seavey Historic Review.pdf]
	[Attachment D. Coastal Findings.pdf]
	Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and Variance to setback requirements for an addition to an existing historic single family home in the R-1 (Single Family) zoning district. This application requires a Coastal Development permit which is appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the City. Environmental Determination: ExemptProperty Owner: Mike and Cindy ReardonRepresentative: Derek Van Alstine, filed 12/19/13

	B. 1601 41st Avenue #15-067 APN: 034-151-20
	[1601 41st Avenue Orchard Supply Hardware Expansion.pdf]
	[Attachment A. Plans.pdf]
	[Attachment B. Parking Study.pdf]
	[Attachment C. Sign Plan.pdf]
	[Attachment D. Landscape Plan.pdf]
	Design Permit and Conditional Use Permit for expansion of nursery, exterior remodel, permanent and seasonal outdoor displays, and height exception for a 16-foot highfence for Orchard Supply Hardware in the Community Commercial (CC) zoning district. This project is not in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development Permit. Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Ow TrustsRepresentative: Nicholas De Torres, filed 4/16/15

	C. 809 Bay Avenue #15-074 APN: 035-021-43
	[Staff report 809 Bay Ave Nob Hill.pdf]
	[Attachment A. Project Plans.pdf]
	[Attachment B. Nob Hill Management Plan.pdf]
	Design Permit and Conditional Use Permit for a private outdoor seating area and onsite sale and consumption of beer and wine for the Nob Hill grocery store located in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and thus does not require a Coastal Development Permit.
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption
Property Owner: Redtree Properties
Representative: Michael Gates, filed: 4/22/15



	6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
	7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS
	8. ADJOURNMENT

